
CITY OF SANTA BARBARA 
CITY COUNCIL 

 
Helene Schneider 
Mayor 

 
James L. Armstrong 

City Administrator 
 Randy Rowse 

Mayor Pro Tempore 
Grant House 
Ordinance Committee Chair 

Stephen P. Wiley 
City Attorney 

Dale Francisco 
Finance Committee Chair 

 

Frank Hotchkiss  
Cathy Murillo 
Bendy White 

City Hall 
735 Anacapa Street 

http://www.SantaBarbaraCA.gov 
 

JANUARY 15, 2013 
AGENDA 

 
ORDER OF BUSINESS:  Regular meetings of the Finance Committee and the Ordinance Committee begin at 12:30 p.m.  
The regular City Council meeting begins at 2:00 p.m. in the Council Chamber at City Hall.   
 
REPORTS:  Copies of the reports relating to agenda items are available for review in the City Clerk's Office, at the Central 
Library, and http://www.SantaBarbaraCA.gov.  In accordance with state law requirements, this agenda generally contains 
only a brief general description of each item of business to be transacted or discussed at the meeting.  Should you wish 
more detailed information regarding any particular agenda item, you are encouraged to obtain a copy of the Council 
Agenda Report (a "CAR") for that item from either the Clerk's Office, the Reference Desk at the City's Main Library, or 
online at the City's website (http://www.SantaBarbaraCA.gov).  Materials related to an item on this agenda submitted to 
the City Council after distribution of the agenda packet are available for public inspection in the City Clerk’s Office located 
at City Hall, 735 Anacapa Street, Santa Barbara, CA 93101, during normal business hours. 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT:  At the beginning of the 2:00 p.m. session of each regular City Council meeting, and at the 
beginning of each special City Council meeting, any member of the public may address the City Council concerning any 
item not on the Council's agenda.  Any person wishing to make such address should first complete and deliver a “Request 
to Speak” form prior to the time that public comment is taken up by the City Council.  Should City Council business 
continue into the evening session of a regular City Council meeting at 6:00 p.m., the City Council will allow any member of 
the public who did not address them during the 2:00 p.m. session to do so.  The total amount of time for public comments 
will be 15 minutes, and no individual speaker may speak for more than 1 minute.  The City Council, upon majority vote, 
may decline to hear a speaker on the grounds that the subject matter is beyond their jurisdiction. 
 
REQUEST TO SPEAK:  A member of the public may address the Finance or Ordinance Committee or City Council 
regarding any scheduled agenda item.  Any person wishing to make such address should first complete and deliver a 
“Request to Speak” form prior to the time that the item is taken up by the Finance or Ordinance Committee or City 
Council. 
 
CONSENT CALENDAR:  The Consent Calendar is comprised of items that will not usually require discussion by the City 
Council.  A Consent Calendar item is open for discussion by the City Council upon request of a Councilmember, City staff, 
or member of the public.  Items on the Consent Calendar may be approved by a single motion.  Should you wish to 
comment on an item listed on the Consent Agenda, after turning in your “Request to Speak” form, you should come 
forward to speak at the time the Council considers the Consent Calendar. 
 
AMERICANS WITH DISABILITIES ACT:  In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, if you need special 
assistance to gain access to, comment at, or participate in this meeting, please contact the City Administrator's Office at 
564-5305 or inquire at the City Clerk's Office on the day of the meeting.  If possible, notification at least 48 hours prior to 
the meeting will enable the City to make reasonable arrangements in most cases. 
 
TELEVISION COVERAGE:  Each regular City Council meeting is broadcast live in English and Spanish on City TV 
Channel 18 and rebroadcast in English on Wednesdays and Thursdays at 7:00 p.m. and Saturdays at 9:00 a.m., and in 
Spanish on Sundays at 4:00 p.m.  Each televised Council meeting is closed captioned for the hearing impaired.  Check 
the City TV program guide at www.citytv18.com for rebroadcasts of Finance and Ordinance Committee meetings, and for 
any changes to the replay schedule. 

http://www.ci.santa-barbara.ca.us/
http://www.santabarbaraca.gov/


1/15/2013 Santa Barbara City Council Agenda Page 1 

 
 

ORDER OF BUSINESS 
 

 12:30 p.m. - Ordinance Committee Meeting, Council Chamber 
 2:00 p.m. - City Council Meeting  
 
 
ORDINANCE COMMITTEE MEETING  

ORDINANCE COMMITTEE MEETING - 12:30 P.M. IN THE COUNCIL CHAMBER 
(120.03) 

Subject:  Municipal Code Amendments For Implementation Of Nonresidential 
Growth Management Program  

Recommendation:  That the Ordinance Committee consider proposed amendments to 
the Municipal Code for implementation of the Nonresidential Growth Management 
Program and forward the ordinance amendments to the City Council for introduction 
and adoption. 

 
 

REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING – 2:00 P.M. 
 
 
CALL TO ORDER 

 
 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
 
ROLL CALL 
 
 
CHANGES TO THE AGENDA 
 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



1/15/2013 Santa Barbara City Council Agenda Page 2 

CONSENT CALENDAR 

1. Subject:  Contract For Preliminary Design Services For Aeration Basin 
System Improvements, Phase 2 (540.13) 

Recommendation:  That Council authorize the Public Works Director to execute a 
contract, in a form approved by the City Attorney, with Brown and Caldwell in the 
amount of $259,215 for preliminary design services for the Aeration Basin 
System Improvements Project, Phase 2, and authorize the Public Works Director 
to approve expenditures of up to $25,921 for extra services of Brown and 
Caldwell that may result from necessary changes in the scope of work. 
  

2. Subject:  Renewal Of Maintenance And Support For Advanced Utility 
Systems Software (170.04) 

Recommendation:  That Council approve a renewal of the technical support and 
maintenance agreement with Advanced Utility Systems Software for the utility 
billing system software for five years in an annual amount not to exceed $49,621 
in the first year (Fiscal Year 2013) and increasing by no more than 5% per year 
in years two through five. 
  

3. Subject: Parks and Recreation Community (PARC) Foundation 
Contributions (570.05) 

Recommendation:  That Council: 
A. Accept a contribution from the Parks and Recreation Community (PARC) 

Foundation in the amount of $48,868 for Parks and Recreation 
Department programs; 

B. Increase Fiscal Year 2013 General Fund appropriations and estimated 
revenues for the Parks and Recreation Department in the amount of 
$4,368; and 

C. Increase Fiscal Year 2013 Miscellaneous Grants Fund appropriations and 
estimated revenues for the Parks and Recreation Department in the 
amount of $44,500. 

 

4. Subject:  Approval Of Emergency Purchase Order For Cater Water 
Treatment Plant Replacement Flocculation Variable Frequency Drives 
(540.10) 

Recommendation:  That Council approve an emergency purchase order to 
Steven Engineering in the amount of $26,266 to replace two Flocculation 
Variable Frequency Drives at the Cater Water Treatment Plant. 
  

 



1/15/2013 Santa Barbara City Council Agenda Page 3 

CONSENT CALENDAR (CONT’D) 

NOTICES 

5. The City Clerk has on Thursday, January 10, 2013, posted this agenda in the 
Office of the City Clerk, on the City Hall Public Notice Board on the outside 
balcony of City Hall, and on the Internet. 

 
This concludes the Consent Calendar. 
 
 
REPORT FROM THE ORDINANCE COMMITTEE 
 
 
CITY COUNCIL ADMINISTRATIVE AND ATTORNEY REPORTS 
 
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DEPARTMENT 

6. Subject:  Loan Modification Request On Property Located At 4006, 4007 
And 4021 Via Lucero Street ("El Patio") (620.06) 

Recommendation:  That Council: 
A. Approve a Restatement of the 1994 Loan Agreement Funded with 

Redevelopment Agency Housing Set-aside and Socioeconomic Mitigation 
Program (SEMP) Funds; 

B. Approve a Restatement of the Deed of Trust to secure the Restated Loan; 
C. Approve a New Affordable Housing Covenant with an Extended Term of 

an Additional 27 Years; and 
D. Authorize the Community Development Director to Execute Such 

Agreements and Related Documents, Subject to Approval as to Form by 
the City Attorney, as Necessary. 

 
 
PUBLIC WORKS DEPARTMENT 
 
7. Subject:  Annual Water Supply Management Report (540.08) 

Recommendation:  That Council approve and adopt the City of Santa Barbara 
Water Supply Management Report for the 2012 water year, finding that 
groundwater resources are in long-term balance in accordance with the 
conjunctive management element of the City's Long-Term Water Supply Plan. 

 

 

 



1/15/2013 Santa Barbara City Council Agenda Page 4 

8. Subject:  Cachuma Conservation Release Board Amended Fiscal Year 2013 
Budget (540.03) 

Recommendation:  That Council: 
A. Ratify the amended Fiscal Year 2013 budget for the Cachuma 

Conservation Release Board; and 
B. Appropriate $234,889 from Water Fund reserves to the Water Operating 

Budget. 
 
 
COUNCIL AND STAFF COMMUNICATIONS 
 
 
COUNCILMEMBER COMMITTEE ASSIGNMENT REPORTS 
 
 
CLOSED SESSIONS 
 
9. Subject:  Conference with Legal Counsel - Pending Litigation (160.03) 

Recommendation:  That Council hold a closed session to consider pending 
litigation pursuant to subsection (a) of section 54956.9 of the Government Code 
and take appropriate action as needed.  The pending litigation is:  Luke Brost as 
Trustee for the Luke Brost Living Trust, et al., v. City of Santa Barbara, 
Case No. 1342979; and Ruben Barajas and Pamela Barajas as trustees for 
the Ruben and Pamela Barajas Living Trust, v. City of Santa Barbara, Santa 
Barbara Superior Court Case No.1383054. 

Scheduling:  Duration, 20 Minutes; anytime 
Report:  None anticipated 
 

  
10. Subject:  Conference With Labor Negotiator (440.05) 

Recommendation:  That Council hold a closed session, per Government Code 
Section 54957.6, to consider instructions to City negotiator Kristy Schmidt, 
Employee Relations Manager, regarding negotiations with the Police Officers’ 
Association, Fire Management Association and the Firefighters Association, and 
regarding discussions with certain unrepresented managers about salaries and 
fringe benefits. 

Scheduling:  Duration, 30 Minutes; anytime 
Report:  None anticipated 

  

ADJOURNMENT 



CITY OF SANTA BARBARA 
 

ORDINANCE COMMITTEE MEETING 
 

MEETING AGENDA 
 

 
DATE: January 15, 2013 Grant House, Chair 
TIME:  12:30 p.m. Frank Hotchkiss 
PLACE:  Council Chambers Randy Rowse 
                             
 
Office of the City                                                           Office of the City 
Administrator                                                                 Attorney 
 
Nina Johnson                                                Stephen P. Wiley 
Assistant to the City Administrator                        City Attorney 
                                                

 
ITEM FOR CONSIDERATION 

 
 
Subject:  Municipal Code Amendments For Implementation Of Nonresidential 
Growth Management Program 
 
Recommendation:  That the Ordinance Committee consider proposed amendments to 
the Municipal Code for implementation of the Nonresidential Growth Management 
Program and forward the ordinance amendments to the City Council for introduction 
and adoption. 
 



Agenda Item No._____________ 

File Code No.  120.03 
 

 

 

CITY OF SANTA BARBARA 
 
 ORDINANCE COMMITTEE AGENDA REPORT 

 
 
 

AGENDA DATE: January 15, 2013 
 
TO: Ordinance Committee 
 
FROM: Planning Division, Community Development  
 
SUBJECT: Municipal Code Amendments For Implementation Of Nonresidential 

Growth Management Program 
 
RECOMMENDATION:  
 
That the Ordinance Committee consider proposed amendments to the Municipal Code 
for implementation of the Nonresidential Growth Management Program and forward the 
ordinance amendments to the City Council for introduction and adoption. 
 
DISCUSSION: 
 
Background: 
 
A key Phase I implementation action of the General Plan Update is revising the 
ordinance and resolution that carry forward policies related to new nonresidential 
growth.  This ordinance will manage the distribution and approval process for the 
1.35 million square feet under the General Plan Policy LG2, Limit Nonresidential Growth 
and LG6, Community Benefit Nonresidential Land Uses. 
 
For the past 22 years nonresidential growth has been managed through the 
Development Plan Ordinance (DPO), Santa Barbara Municipal Code Section 28.87.300, 
and a companion Resolution.  This program has served the City well in managing 
nonresidential development.  The DPO and Resolution are currently effective until 
January 1, 2014. 
 
On May 17, 2012, the Planning Commission initiated amendments to the proposed 
nonresidential Growth Management Program (GMP).  Subsequently, two meetings were 
held with the Planning Commission on the approach to the Traffic Management 
Strategy.  Meetings were also held with two focus groups comprised of stakeholders 
knowledgeable about the development process.   
 
On December 6, 2012, the Planning Commission unanimously recommended 
forwarding the ordinance with staff edits to the Council Ordinance Committee.   
 



Council Agenda Report 
Municipal Code Amendments For Implementation Of Nonresidential Growth Management 
Program  
January 15, 2013 
Page 2 

 

Proposed Growth Management Program 

Proposed is a new chapter 28.85 entitled “Growth Management Program” (Attachment 
1).  The former DPO, Section 28.87.300 is being deleted from the Zoning Ordinance.  
Also attached is the draft Council Resolution that provides direction for implementation 
of the new Growth Management Program (Attachment 2).  The Planning Commission 
Staff Report (Attachment 3) outlines all the components of the Growth Management 
Program, (i.e. categories of development, allocation process, and where it can be 
allocated and approved throughout the City). 
 
Key Revisions To The Growth Management Program 
 
The following are some of the main revisions to the Growth Management Program, as 
described in the Planning Commission Staff Report (Attachment 3). 
 

• Small Additions annual allocation and roll over 
• Simplified process for Council designation of Community Benefit 
• Development Plan threshold based on proposed size of project 
• A new Traffic Management Strategy that: 

o Identifies allowed development categories by location 
o Limits Transfer of Existing Development Rights by location 
o Identifies which development categories are eligible for overriding 

considerations for project-specific significant traffic impacts 
• Transfer of Existing Development Rights of 1,000 square feet or less without a 

Development Plan 
• Updated Approval Findings 

 
Public Comment To Date 
 
A main provision of the Traffic Management Program is to preclude allocation of Small 
Additions and Economic Development square footage in the Outlying Development 
Areas, including the Upper State Street.  Two letters were received by the Planning 
Commission regarding this provision.  
 
Ralph Horowitz, the Horowitz Group, who owns the property at 350 Hitchcock Way 
(Lexus Dealership) requested an amendment to the proposed ordinance such that 
Economic Development square footage would be allowed in the P-D zone for a 
dealership or an alternative use that the City Council finds desirable (Attachment 4).  He 
also requested that the City have the ability to make a finding of overriding 
consideration for any project specific traffic impacts generated by such an Economic 
Development allocation.  The Traffic Management Strategy as proposed does not allow 
for an Economic Development allocation in the Outlying Areas such as Upper State 
Street.  Furthermore, historically, the City has not supported overriding considerations 
for Economic Development allocation projects.  However, given the City is supportive of 
auto dealership uses that generate low traffic counts, an allocation category for new 



Council Agenda Report 
Municipal Code Amendments For Implementation Of Nonresidential Growth Management 
Program  
January 15, 2013 
Page 3 

 

automobile sales has been added under Community Benefit, and specifically for the 
Planned Development zone including properties on Hitchcock Way and Hope Avenue.  
 
The second letter is from the Santa Barbara Growth Management Program 
Stakeholders Group which does not support the proposed restriction on nonresidential 
development within the Outlying Areas (Attachment 5).  They request that Small 
Additions and Economic Development projects be added to the list of development 
categories in the Outlying Areas.  They also request that overriding considerations be 
allowed for project specific traffic impacts for Economic Development projects and 
TEDR projects proposed Downtown. 
 
The Planning Commission did not direct Staff to incorporate the Santa Barbara Growth 
Management Program Stakeholders Group requests due to congestion concerns in the 
Outlying Areas and the likelihood that these amendments would undermine the 
effectiveness of the overall Traffic Management Strategy. 
 
Ordinance Committee review is necessary per City procedure.  Staff recommends that 
the Ordinance Committee forward the ordinance and resolution to the Council.  If the 
Ordinance Committee directs significant changes, the ordinance and resolution may 
need to go back to the Planning Commission per State planning law before going to the 
full Council for introduction and adoption. 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 1. Draft Nonresidential Growth Management Program and 

 Transfer of Existing Development Rights Ordinance 
 2. Draft Council Resolution w/Exhibits 
 3. Planning Commission Staff Report, December 6, 2012 

 w/Exhibits C, D and E. 
 4. Letter from Ralph Horowitz 
 5. Letter from Santa Barbara Growth Management Program 

 Stakeholders Group 
 
PREPARED BY: Beatriz E. Gularte, Project Planner 
 
SUBMITTED BY: Paul Casey, Assistant City Administrator/Community 

Development Director  
 
APPROVED BY:  City Administrator's Office 
 



 ATTACHMENT 1 
ORDINANCE COMMITTEE DISCUSSION DRAFT 1/15/13 

SHOWING CHANGES FROM EXISTING CODE FOR CHAPTER 28.95 
 

 

1 
 

 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
SANTA BARBARA ADDING CHAPTER 28.85 TO THE 
SANTA BARBARA MUNICIPAL CODE, DELETING 
SECTIONS 28.87.300 AND 28.87.350, AND AMENDING 
SECTIONS 28.95.010 THROUGH 28.95.070 TO IMPLEMENT 
THE 2011 GENERAL PLAN NONRESIDENTIAL GROWTH 
MANAGEMENT PROGRAM 

 

THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SANTA BARBARA DOES ORDAIN AS FOLLOWS: 
 

SECTION 1.  Title 28 of the Santa Barbara Municipal Code is amended by adding Chapter 
28.85 to read as follows: 
 
 
28.85 Nonresidential Growth Management Program. 

28.85.010  Nonresidential Development Limitation. 

 No application for a land use permit for a nonresidential construction project, as defined in 

Section 28.85.020 of this Chapter, will be accepted or approved on or after December 6, 

1989 unless all of the new nonresidential floor area within the project is allocated from one or 

more of the categories specified in this Section and the project is consistent with the City’s 

Traffic Management Strategy as implemented in Section 28.85.050. 

 A. DEVELOPMENT LIMIT.  From the effective date of this ordinance until December 31, 

2033, the amount of new nonresidential floor area available for nonresidential construction 

projects shall be restricted to no more than one million three hundred fifty thousand 

(1,350,000) square feet.  This allowable floor area shall be allocated from the following 

categories, as defined in Section 28.85.020 of this Chapter: 

Category 
 

Community Benefit 
Small Addition Floor Area 
 Vacant Property 
 

 Square Footage 
 
 600,000 s.f 
 400,000 s.f. 
    350,000 s.f.



 ATTACHMENT 1 
ORDINANCE COMMITTEE DISCUSSION DRAFT 1/15/13 

SHOWING CHANGES FROM EXISTING CODE FOR CHAPTER 28.95 
 

 

2 
 

 

 Except as otherwise provided in this Section and as allocated by Resolution of the 

Planning Commission, Small Additions shall be limited to no more than twenty thousand 

(20,000) square feet of nonresidential floor area during each calendar year from the 

effective date of this ordinance through December 31, 2033.  Any unused, expired, or 

withdrawn development square footage remaining from the annual allotment from the 

Small Additions category may be rolled over to the following year’s Small Additions 

allotment or allocated to another category by resolution of the Planning Commission.  

Procedures for allocating square footage under these categories shall be established by 

resolution of City Council. 

 B. NONRESIDENTIAL FLOOR AREA EXCLUDED FROM THE DEVELOPMENT 

LIMIT.  Nonresidential floor area may be constructed or converted from residential floor 

area without requiring an allocation from the allowable square footage specified in 

Subsection A of this Section so long as the nonresidential floor area falls within the 

following categories, as defined in Section 28.85.020 of this Chapter: 

  1. City Government Buildings. 

  2. Government Displacement Floor Area. 

  3. Hotel Room for Room Replacement. 

  4. Minor Addition Floor Area.  

  5. Prior-Pending Projects.  

  6. Prior-Approved Projects.  

  7. Prior-Approved Specific Plan Project.  

  8. Transfers of Existing Development Rights, as defined in Section 28.95.020 of 



 ATTACHMENT 1 
ORDINANCE COMMITTEE DISCUSSION DRAFT 1/15/13 

SHOWING CHANGES FROM EXISTING CODE FOR CHAPTER 28.95 
 

 

3 
 

this Code. 

28.85.020  Definitions. 

 The following words and phrases shall have the meaning indicated, unless the 

context or usage clearly requires a different meaning: 

 A. COMMUNITY BENEFIT PROJECT.  A project which has been designated by the 

City Council as satisfying one or more of the following categories is a Community 

Benefit Project: 

  1. Community Priority Project.  A Community Priority Project is a project that has 

a broad public benefit, is not principally operated for private profit, and is necessary to 

meet a present or projected need directly related to public health, safety or general 

welfare (e.g., museums, childcare facilities, health clinics). 

  2. Economic Development Project.  An Economic Development Project is a 

project that is consistent with the City Charter, General Plan and this Title, will enhance 

the standard of living for City and South Coast residents and will strengthen the local or 

regional economy by either creating new permanent employment opportunities or 

enhancing the City's revenue base.  An Economic Development Project should also 

accomplish one or more of the following: 

    a. Support diversity and balance in the local or regional economy by 

establishing or expanding businesses or industries in sectors which currently do not 

exist on the South Coast or are present only in a limited manner; or 

    b. Provide new recreational, educational, or cultural opportunities for 

City residents and visitors; or 



 ATTACHMENT 1 
ORDINANCE COMMITTEE DISCUSSION DRAFT 1/15/13 

SHOWING CHANGES FROM EXISTING CODE FOR CHAPTER 28.95 
 

 

4 
 

    c. Provide products or services which are currently not available or 

are in limited supply either locally or regionally; or 

    d. Support a small and local business in the community that is started, 

maintained, relocated, redeveloped or expanded.  

For purposes of this Section, "standard of living" is defined as wages, employment, 

environment, resources, public safety, housing, schools, parks and recreation, social 

and human services, and cultural arts. 

  3. Planned Development – New Automobile Sales Project.  A Planned 

Development – New Automobile Sales Project is a project within a Planned 

Development Zone that proposes a project involving new automobile sales, rental and 

leasing as allowed in Chapter 28.39 of this Code. 

 B. DEVELOPMENT AREA.  A Development Area is a portion of the City that the 

City of Santa Barbara Traffic Model has shown to have distinct traffic generation 

patterns, as identified on the Development Area Map.  The City of Santa Barbara 

Development Areas are shown on the map labeled "Growth Management Program 

Development Areas."  All notations, references and other information shown on said 

map are incorporated by reference herein and made a part hereof. 

 C.  EXISTING NONRESIDENTIAL FLOOR AREA.  Existing Nonresidential Floor 

Area is nonresidential floor area that existed on a lot as of October 1, 1988 or 

nonresidential floor area that was approved and constructed or converted from 

residential floor area after October 1, 1988 in compliance with, or exempt from, a City 

development plan or nonresidential growth management program ordinance.  

 D. FLOOR AREA.  Floor Area is the area included within the surrounding exterior 



 ATTACHMENT 1 
ORDINANCE COMMITTEE DISCUSSION DRAFT 1/15/13 

SHOWING CHANGES FROM EXISTING CODE FOR CHAPTER 28.95 
 

 

5 
 

walls of a building, or a portion thereof, excluding the area occupied by the exterior 

walls, vent shafts and courts, stairway landings, or areas or structures used exclusively 

for parking.  Enclosed spaces that contain building “infrastructure” (e.g., mechanical 

equipment enclosures, trash and recycling enclosures, air conditioners, forced air units, 

electric vaults, water heaters and softeners, cellular telephone equipment, and other 

similar uses) shall not count toward the calculation of floor area if such areas are 

designed in the minimum size necessary to screen or enclose such equipment and the 

space cannot be converted to storage or another use.  The area occupied by an 

elevator shaft or stairs shall only be counted in the calculation of floor area on one floor.  

A building, or a portion thereof, occupied exclusively by public utility equipment 

constitutes floor area for purposes of development plan review, but shall not count 

toward the calculation of floor area for purposes of the development limit specified in 

Subsection 28.85.010.A.  Any floor area which was constructed, approved, demolished 

or converted in violation of any provision of this Municipal Code, shall not give rise to 

any right to rebuild or transfer floor area.  

 E. GOVERNMENT BUILDING.  A government building is a building owned by the 

City of Santa Barbara, excluding buildings or portions of buildings that are leased to 

private entities conducting commercial activities (e.g., the private leaseholds at the 

Harbor or Airport). 

 F. GOVERNMENT DISPLACEMENT FLOOR AREA.  Government Displacement 

Floor Area is nonresidential floor area that is constructed or converted from residential 

floor area to replace nonresidential floor area that was acquired, removed or damaged 

by direct condemnation or negotiated acquisition by the government (federal, state or 



 ATTACHMENT 1 
ORDINANCE COMMITTEE DISCUSSION DRAFT 1/15/13 

SHOWING CHANGES FROM EXISTING CODE FOR CHAPTER 28.95 
 

 

6 
 

local); provided, the nonresidential floor area of the project constructed to replace a 

building acquired or removed by the government does not exceed the nonresidential 

floor area of the building so acquired or removed, unless the additional nonresidential 

floor area is allocated from another available category. 

 G. HOTEL ROOM FOR ROOM REPLACEMENT. A hotel room for room 

replacement is a project which consists of the replacement of existing hotel rooms at the 

same location, or transferred from another location as part of an approved Transfer of 

Existing Development Rights pursuant to Chapter 28.95 of this Code, on a room for 

room basis.  A hotel room for room replacement does not include nonresidential floor 

area outside the hotel rooms.  Nonresidential floor area outside the hotel rooms would 

need to be transferred from existing development rights or would require an allocation of 

new nonresidential floor area from an available category of development. 

 H. LAND USE PERMIT.  A land use permit is a governmental decision concerning a 

permit, license, certificate, or other entitlement for use of land, including a conditional 

use permit, variance, modification, development plan, specific plan, general plan 

amendment, coastal development permit, conversion permit, subdivision map (except 

those creating new single family lots), building permit, grading permit, demolition permit, 

water service connection or any similar approval or use. 

 I. MINOR ADDITION FLOOR AREA. Minor Addition Floor Area is the first 1,000 

square feet of new nonresidential floor area, over the amount of nonresidential floor 

area that existed on the lot as of December 6, 1989.  Procedures for allocating and 

accounting for Minor Addition Floor Area shall be established by resolution of the City 

Council. 



 ATTACHMENT 1 
ORDINANCE COMMITTEE DISCUSSION DRAFT 1/15/13 

SHOWING CHANGES FROM EXISTING CODE FOR CHAPTER 28.95 
 

 

7 
 

 J. NONRESIDENTIAL CONSTRUCTION PROJECT.  A nonresidential construction 

project is a project, or portion thereof, which consists of the construction of new 

nonresidential floor area or the conversion of existing residential floor area to 

nonresidential use.  The repair, replacement, or reconstruction of Existing 

Nonresidential Floor Area (including existing development rights that are transferred 

from another site) is not considered new nonresidential floor area for the purpose of the 

nonresidential development limitation specified in Subsection 28.85.010.A.  A 

nonresidential construction project may occur in the following forms: 

  1. The addition of new nonresidential floor area to an existing structure; or 

  2. The construction of new nonresidential floor area in a free standing structure 

on a lot containing another structure; or 

  3. The construction of new nonresidential floor area as a portion of a mixed use 

building; or 

  4. The conversion of residential floor area to nonresidential floor area. 

  5. A new building on a vacant lot that contains nonresidential floor area. 

 K. NONRESIDENTIAL FLOOR AREA RATIO.  The Nonresidential Floor Area Ratio 

of a lot is a ratio of the nonresidential floor area on the lot to the net lot area of the lot. 

 L. PRIOR-APPROVED PROJECTS.  A Prior-Approved Project is a project for which 

a land use permit (other than an application for Specific Plan approval) was approved 

on or before the effective date of this ordinance and the approval is still valid.   

 M. PRIOR-APPROVED SPECIFIC PLAN PROJECT.  A Prior-Approved Specific 

Plan Project is a project that implements a specific plan that was approved prior to April 

16, 1986, the specific plan required the construction of substantial circulation system 



 ATTACHMENT 1 
ORDINANCE COMMITTEE DISCUSSION DRAFT 1/15/13 

SHOWING CHANGES FROM EXISTING CODE FOR CHAPTER 28.95 
 

 

8 
 

improvements, and the required circulation system improvements were either: 

  1. Installed prior to the effective date of this ordinance; or 

  2. Constructed after the effective date of this ordinance pursuant to an Owner 

Participation Agreement and installed prior to the approval of any development plan(s) 

related to the approved specific plan. 

 N. PRIOR-PENDING PROJECT.  A Prior-Pending Project is a nonresidential 

construction project for which an application for a land use permit was deemed 

complete by the City before the effective date of this ordinance and the application:  i. 

has not been denied by the City; ii. has not been withdrawn by the applicant; and iii. has 

not yet received City approval. 

 O. SMALL ADDITION FLOOR AREA.  Small Addition Floor Area is the 2,000 

square feet of new nonresidential floor area over the amount of nonresidential floor area 

that existed on the lot on December 6, 1989 and any floor area that has been 

constructed or approved as Minor Addition Floor Area pursuant to this Chapter or any 

preceding development plan ordinance since December 6, 1989.  Procedures for 

allocating Small Addition Floor Area shall be established by resolution of the City 

Council.    

 P. VACANT PROPERTY.  A Vacant Property is a lot of land that was not developed 

with a permanent building containing floor area as of October 1, 1988 and has not since 

been developed with any permanent building containing floor area.  A vacant property 

may be allocated new nonresidential floor area from the Vacant Property category up to 

a maximum nonresidential floor area ratio of .25.  Any nonresidential development 

proposed for the lot over the .25 floor area ratio must be allocated from another 



 ATTACHMENT 1 
ORDINANCE COMMITTEE DISCUSSION DRAFT 1/15/13 

SHOWING CHANGES FROM EXISTING CODE FOR CHAPTER 28.95 
 

 

9 
 

development category available for allocation on the lot. 

 

28.85.030 Development Plan Review Procedures. 

 

 A. DEVELOPMENT PLAN APPLICATION SUBMISSION.  Before any project 

requiring approval of a development plan pursuant to this Chapter is hereafter permitted 

in any zone, including zones at the Santa Barbara Municipal Airport, a complete 

development plan application for the proposed development shall be submitted to the 

Community Development Department for review and consideration in accordance with 

the provisions of this Chapter. 

 B. REVIEW BY PRE-APPLICATION REVIEW TEAM.   All nonresidential 

construction projects involving the construction, addition, or conversion of more than 

3,000 square feet of nonresidential floor area and all transfers of existing development 

rights, regardless of size, shall be reviewed by the Pre-Application Review Team as 

provided in Section 27.07.070 of this Code. 

 C. DEVELOPMENT PLAN APPROVAL REQUIREMENTS.  Except as otherwise 

specified in this Subsection C, all nonresidential construction projects and all transfers 

of existing development rights require approval of a development plan. 

  1. Design Review Approval.  Any nonresidential construction project that 

involves the construction, addition, or conversion of more than one thousand (1,000) 

square feet of new nonresidential floor area and not more than three thousand (3,000) 

square feet of new nonresidential floor shall require approval of a development plan 

from the Architectural Board of Review, or the Historic Landmarks Commission if the 



 ATTACHMENT 1 
ORDINANCE COMMITTEE DISCUSSION DRAFT 1/15/13 

SHOWING CHANGES FROM EXISTING CODE FOR CHAPTER 28.95 
 

 

10 
 

property is located within El Pueblo Viejo Landmark District or another landmark district, 

or if the structure is a designated City Landmark. 

  2. Staff Hearing Officer Approval.  Any nonresidential construction project that 

involves the construction, addition, or conversion of more than one thousand (1,000) 

square feet of new nonresidential floor area and not more than three thousand (3,000) 

square feet of new nonresidential floor area and which requires approval of another land 

use permit from the Staff Hearing Officer shall require approval of a development plan 

from the Staff Hearing Officer. 

  3. Planning Commission Approval.  The following projects shall require approval 

of a development plan from the Planning Commission: 

   a. Any nonresidential construction project (including a public utility facility) 

that involves the construction, addition, or conversion of more than three thousand 

(3,000) square feet of new nonresidential floor area, or 

   b. Any transfer of existing development rights that involves the construction, 

addition, or conversion of more than one thousand (1,000) square feet of nonresidential 

floor area (as an aggregate total of all development categories) on the receiving site, or 

   c.  Any nonresidential construction project that involves the construction, 

addition, or conversion of more than one thousand (1,000) square feet of new 

nonresidential floor area and not more than three thousand (3,000) square feet of new 

nonresidential floor area and which requires approval of another land use permit from 

the Planning Commission shall require approval of a development plan from the 

Planning Commission. 

   d.  Notwithstanding the review assignments specified in Paragraphs 1 and 2 



 ATTACHMENT 1 
ORDINANCE COMMITTEE DISCUSSION DRAFT 1/15/13 

SHOWING CHANGES FROM EXISTING CODE FOR CHAPTER 28.95 
 

 

11 
 

above, any nonresidential construction project or transfer of existing development rights 

that requires the preparation of an Environmental Impact Report shall be reviewed by 

the Planning Commission. 

  4. Exceptions.  Unless the project requires the preparation of an Environmental 

Impact Report, the following projects do not require the approval of a development plan: 

   a. A nonresidential construction project that involves the construction, 

addition, or conversion of not more than 1,000 square feet of nonresidential floor area 

(as an aggregate total of all development categories), or 

   b. A Transfer of Existing Development Rights that involves the construction, 

addition, or conversion of nonresidential floor area as long as the project will not result 

in more than 1,000 square feet of nonresidential floor area over the amount of 

nonresidential floor area that existed on the lot as of the effective date of this ordinance.  

This exception is not available for a Transfer of Existing Development Rights that 

involves the transfer of a hotel room on a room-for-room basis. 

 

28.85.040  Standards for Review. 

  The following findings shall be made prior to approving any development plan pursuant 

to this Chapter: 

 A. The proposed development complies with all provisions of this Title; and 

 B. The proposed development is consistent with the principles of sound community 

planning; and 

 C. The proposed development will not have a significant adverse impact upon the 

community's aesthetics or character in that the size, bulk or scale of the development 



 ATTACHMENT 1 
ORDINANCE COMMITTEE DISCUSSION DRAFT 1/15/13 

SHOWING CHANGES FROM EXISTING CODE FOR CHAPTER 28.95 
 

 

12 
 

will be compatible with the neighborhood based on the Project Compatibility Analysis 

criteria found in Sections 22.22.145 or 22.68.045 of this Code; and 

 D. The proposed development is consistent with the policies of the City of Santa 

Barbara Traffic Management Strategy as expressed in the allocation allowances 

specified in Section 28.85.050. 

 

28.85.050  Traffic Management Strategy. 

 In order to utilize the City’s transportation capacity efficiently and to prioritize 

constrained transportation capacity for high priority land uses, the City has established a 

Traffic Management Strategy, adopted by Resolution of the City Council.  In furtherance 

of the Traffic Management Strategy and recognizing the differential rates of traffic 

generation observed in the City of Santa Barbara Traffic Model between the different 

Development Areas, only certain categories of nonresidential development are available 

for allocation within the identified Development Areas.    

 A. DOWNTOWN DEVELOPMENT AREA.  If all of the floor area for a project is 

proposed from a category or categories of development that are available for allocation 

within the development area in which the proposed project is located, the project’s 

contribution to a significant cumulative traffic impact may be overridden.  Within the 

Downtown Development Area, unless specifically authorized below, a project-specific 

significant adverse traffic impact cannot be overridden.  The following categories of 

nonresidential development are available for allocation to lots within the Downtown 

Development Area: 

  1. Prior-Approved Projects.  Prior-Approved projects do not require further 



 ATTACHMENT 1 
ORDINANCE COMMITTEE DISCUSSION DRAFT 1/15/13 

SHOWING CHANGES FROM EXISTING CODE FOR CHAPTER 28.95 
 

 

13 
 

environmental review.   

  2. Prior-Pending Projects. 

  3. Prior-Approved Specific Plan Projects.  A Prior-Approved Specific Plan 

Project that presents a project-specific significant traffic impact may be approved 

following the adoption of a Statement of Overriding Considerations. 

  4. Minor Addition Floor Area.  A project constructing, adding, or converting Minor 

Addition Floor Area that presents a project-specific significant traffic impact may be 

approved following the adoption of a Statement of Overriding Considerations. 

  5. Small Addition Floor Area.  

  6. Vacant Property. A Vacant Property Project that presents a project-specific 

significant traffic impact may be approved following the adoption of a Statement of 

Overriding Considerations. 

  7. Community Priority Projects.  A Community Priority Project that presents a 

project-specific significant traffic impact may be approved following the adoption of a 

Statement of Overriding Considerations. 

  8. Economic Development Projects. 

  9. Transfers of Existing Development Rights (TEDR), as defined in Section 

28.95.020 of this Code, from any Development Area. 

   a.  A Transfer of Existing Development Rights between lots within the same 

Development Area that will result in the construction, addition, or conversion of not more 

than 1,000 square feet of nonresidential floor area over the amount of nonresidential 

floor area that existed on the receiving lot as of the effective date of this ordinance and 

that presents a project-specific significant traffic impact may be approved following the 



 ATTACHMENT 1 
ORDINANCE COMMITTEE DISCUSSION DRAFT 1/15/13 

SHOWING CHANGES FROM EXISTING CODE FOR CHAPTER 28.95 
 

 

14 
 

adoption of a Statement of Overriding Considerations. 

   b. All other Transfers of Existing Development Rights (including Hotel Room 

for Room Replacements) that result in a project-specific significant traffic impact cannot 

be overridden. 

  10.  Hotel Room for Room Replacement.  An on-site Hotel Room for Room 

Replacement that presents a project-specific significant traffic impact may be approved 

following the adoption of a Statement of Overriding Considerations.   

  11.  Demolition and Reconstruction of Existing Nonresidential Floor Area on the 

same lot.  The Demolition and Reconstruction of Existing Nonresidential Floor Area on 

the same lot that presents a project-specific significant traffic impact may be approved 

following the adoption of a Statement of Overriding Considerations. 

  12. City Government Buildings.  A government building project that presents a 

project-specific significant traffic impact may be approved following the adoption of a 

Statement of Overriding Considerations. 

  13. Government Displacement Floor Area.  A Government Displacement Floor 

Area Project that presents a project-specific significant traffic impact may be approved 

following the adoption of a Statement of Overriding Considerations. 

  14. Public Utility Facilities.  A Public Utility Facility that presents a project-specific 

significant traffic impact may be approved following the adoption of a Statement of 

Overriding Considerations. 

 B. UPPER STATE STREET, MESA, COAST VILLAGE ROAD, AND RIVIERA 

DEVELOPMENT AREAS (OUTLYING DEVELOPMENT AREAS).  If all of the floor area 

for a project is proposed from a category or categories of development that are 



 ATTACHMENT 1 
ORDINANCE COMMITTEE DISCUSSION DRAFT 1/15/13 

SHOWING CHANGES FROM EXISTING CODE FOR CHAPTER 28.95 
 

 

15 
 

available for allocation within the development area in which the proposed project is 

located, the project’s contribution to a significant cumulative traffic impact may be 

overridden.  Within the Outlying Development Areas, unless specifically authorized 

below, a project-specific significant adverse traffic impact cannot be overridden.  The 

following categories of nonresidential development are available for allocation to lots 

within the Outlying Development Areas: 

  1. Prior-Approved Projects.  Prior-Approved Projects do not require further 

environmental review. 

  2. Prior-Pending Projects. 

  3. Prior-Approved Specific Plan Projects.  A Prior-Approved Specific Plan 

Project that presents a project-specific significant traffic impact may be approved 

following the adoption of a Statement of Overriding Considerations. 

  4. Minor Addition Floor Area.  A project constructing, adding, or converting Minor 

Addition Floor Area that presents a project-specific significant traffic impact may be 

approved following the adoption of a Statement of Overriding Considerations. 

  5. Vacant Property. A Vacant Property Project that presents a project-specific 

significant traffic impact may be approved following the adoption of a Statement of 

Overriding Considerations. 

  6. Community Priority Projects.  A Community Priority Project that presents a 

project-specific significant traffic impact may be approved following the adoption of a 

Statement of Overriding Considerations. 

  7.  Transfer of Existing Development Rights (including Hotel Room for Room 

Replacements), as defined in Section 28.95.020 of this Code, from and to lots within the 



 ATTACHMENT 1 
ORDINANCE COMMITTEE DISCUSSION DRAFT 1/15/13 

SHOWING CHANGES FROM EXISTING CODE FOR CHAPTER 28.95 
 

 

16 
 

same Development Area.  No receiving site located in an Outlying Development Area 

may receive a Transfer of Existing Development Rights from a sending site that is 

located in another Development Area. 

    a. A Transfer of Existing Development Rights between lots within the 

same Development Area that will result in the construction, addition, or conversion of 

not more than 1,000 square feet of nonresidential floor area over the amount of 

nonresidential floor area that existed on the receiving lot as of the effective date of this 

ordinance and that presents a project-specific significant traffic impact may be approved 

following the adoption of a Statement of Overriding Considerations. 

    b. All other Transfers of Existing Development Rights (including Hotel 

Room for Room Replacements) that result in a project-specific significant traffic impact 

cannot be overridden. 

  8. Demolition and Reconstruction of Existing Nonresidential Floor Area on the 

same parcel.  The Demolition and Reconstruction of Existing Nonresidential Floor Area 

on the same lot that presents a project-specific significant traffic impact may be 

approved following the adoption of a Statement of Overriding Considerations. 

  9.  Government Buildings.  A government building that presents a project-specific 

significant traffic impact may be approved following the adoption of a Statement of 

Overriding Considerations. 

  10. Government Displacement Project.  A Government Displacement Floor Area 

Project that presents a project-specific significant traffic impact may be approved 

following the adoption of a Statement of Overriding Considerations. 

  11. Hotel Room for Room Replacement.  An on-site Hotel Room for Room 



 ATTACHMENT 1 
ORDINANCE COMMITTEE DISCUSSION DRAFT 1/15/13 

SHOWING CHANGES FROM EXISTING CODE FOR CHAPTER 28.95 
 

 

17 
 

Replacement that presents a project-specific significant traffic impact may be approved 

following the adoption of a Statement of Overriding Considerations. 

  12.  Public Utility Facilities.  A Public Utility Facility that presents a project-

specific significant traffic impact may be approved following the adoption of a Statement 

of Overriding Considerations. 

  13. Planned Development – New Automobile Sales Project.   

 C.  AIRPORT DEVELOPMENT AREA.  If all of the floor area for a project is 

proposed from a category or categories of development that are available for allocation 

within the development area in which the proposed project is located, the project’s 

contribution to a significant cumulative traffic impact may be overridden.  Within the 

Airport Development Area, unless specifically stated below, a project-specific significant 

traffic impact may be overridden with the adoption of a Statement of Overriding 

Considerations.  The following categories of nonresidential development are available 

for allocation to lots within the Airport Development Area: 

  1. Prior-Approved Projects.   

  2. Prior-Pending Projects.  

  3. Prior-Approved Specific Plan Projects. 

  4. Minor Addition Floor Area. 

  5. Small Addition Floor Area. 

  6. Vacant Property. 

  7. Community Priority Projects. 

  8. Economic Development Projects. 

  9.  Transfers of Existing Development Rights (including Hotel Room for Room 



 ATTACHMENT 1 
ORDINANCE COMMITTEE DISCUSSION DRAFT 1/15/13 

SHOWING CHANGES FROM EXISTING CODE FOR CHAPTER 28.95 
 

 

18 
 

Replacements), as defined in Section 28.95.020 of this Code, from and to lots within the 

Airport Development Area are available for allocation.  No receiving site located in the 

Airport Development Area may receive a Transfer of Existing Development Rights 

(including Hotel Room for Room Replacements) from a sending site that is located in 

another Development Area. 

  10.  Demolition and Reconstruction of Existing Nonresidential Floor Area on the 

same lot. 

  11.  Government Buildings. 

  12.  Government Displacement Projects. 

  13.  Public Utility Facilities. 

 

28.85.060  Development Plan Notice and Hearing.   

 If a nonresidential construction project or transfer of existing development rights 

requires the approval of a development plan by the Architectural Board of Review, 

Historic Landmarks Commission, Staff Hearing Officer, Planning Commission, or the 

City Council on appeal, the Architectural Board of Review, Historic Landmarks 

Commission, Staff Hearing Officer, Planning Commission, or City Council shall hold a 

public hearing prior to taking action on any development plan.  Notice of the public 

hearing shall be given in accordance with Section 28.87.380. 

 

28.85.070  Appeals. 

 A decision by the Architectural Board of Review, the Historic Landmarks 

Commission, or the Planning Commission under this Chapter may be appealed 



 ATTACHMENT 1 
ORDINANCE COMMITTEE DISCUSSION DRAFT 1/15/13 

SHOWING CHANGES FROM EXISTING CODE FOR CHAPTER 28.95 
 

 

19 
 

according to the provisions of Chapter 1.30.  A decision by the Staff Hearing Officer 

under this Chapter may be appealed according to the provisions of Section 28.05.020 of 

this Code. 

 

28.85.080  Fees.    

Fees for filing applications and appeals in accordance with this Chapter shall be 

established by resolution of the City Council. 

 

28.85.090  Development Plan Time Limits. 

 Subject to the adjustments for projects with multiple approvals specified in Section 

28.87.370 of this Code, development plan approvals shall have the following time limits: 

 A. TIME LIMIT.  A development plan approved pursuant to any provision of this Title 

shall expire four (4) years from the date of its approval, except as otherwise provided 

herein.  No building or grading permit for any work authorized by a development plan 

shall be issued following expiration of that plan. 

 B. CONDITIONS.  Any condition imposed on a development plan may, in the 

discretion of the body approving the development plan, also constitute (i) a condition to 

the issuance of and continued validity of any building or grading permit issued to 

implement that development plan, (ii) a condition to the issuance of the certificate of 

occupancy with respect to any improvements authorized by the development plan and 

(iii) if recorded with the County Recorder, to the continued validity of the certificate of 

occupancy.  Violation of any such condition shall be grounds for suspension or 

revocation of any building or grading permit or certificate of occupancy issued with 



 ATTACHMENT 1 
ORDINANCE COMMITTEE DISCUSSION DRAFT 1/15/13 

SHOWING CHANGES FROM EXISTING CODE FOR CHAPTER 28.95 
 

 

20 
 

respect to the development plan. 

 C. EXTENSION OF TIME PERIOD.  Upon application of the developer filed prior to 

the expiration of the development plan, the time at which the development plan expires 

may be extended by the Community Development Director for one (1) year.  An 

extension of the expiration date of a development plan shall be granted if it is found that 

there has been due diligence to implement and complete the proposed project as 

substantiated by competent evidence in the record.  

 D. SUSPENSION OF TIME DURING MORATORIUM.  The period of time specified 

in Subsection A, including any extension thereof granted pursuant to Subsection C, 

shall not include any period of time during which a moratorium, imposed after approval 

of the development plan, is in existence, provided however, that the length of the 

moratorium does not exceed five (5) years.  For purposes of this Subsection, a 

development moratorium shall include (i) a water or sewer moratorium, (ii) a water and 

sewer moratorium, and (iii) a building or grading permit moratorium, as well as other 

actions of public agencies which regulate land use, development, or the provision of 

services to the land other than the City, which thereafter prevents, prohibits, or delays 

the completion of the development.  Once a moratorium is terminated, the development 

plan shall be valid for the same period of time as was left to run on the development 

plan at the time that the moratorium was imposed.  However, if the remaining time is 

less than 120 days, the development plan shall be valid for 120 days following the 

termination of the moratorium. 

 E. SUSPENSION OF TIME DURING LITIGATION.  The period of time specified in 

Subsection A, including any extension thereof granted pursuant to Subsection C, shall 



 ATTACHMENT 1 
ORDINANCE COMMITTEE DISCUSSION DRAFT 1/15/13 

SHOWING CHANGES FROM EXISTING CODE FOR CHAPTER 28.95 
 

 

21 
 

not include the period of time during which a lawsuit involving the approval of the 

development plan or related approvals is or was pending in a court of competent 

jurisdiction.  After service of the initial petition or complaint in the lawsuit upon the City, 

the applicant may advise the City of the need for a litigation tolling stay pursuant to the 

City's adopted procedures.   

 F. DEVELOPMENT PLANS ALREADY APPROVED. 

  1. Beginning Date – Development Plan Approvals.  The adoption of this 

ordinance shall not alter the date of approval of a Development Plan approved prior to 

the adoption of this ordinance. 

  2. Specific Plan Development Plan Approvals.  For the purposes of calculating 

the expiration date of a Specific Plan project Development Plan approved in accordance 

with Santa Barbara Municipal Code Chapter 29.30, Development Plan approvals shall 

be deemed to expire eight (8) years after the date of the final City action approving the 

project Development Plan and shall include any related project approvals or 

modifications granted by the City in connection therewith. 

 G. DISPOSITION OF FLOOR AREA ALLOCATED TO EXPIRED PROJECTS.  For 

projects with floor area allocated from the Small Addition category, the unused floor 

area shall be made available for allocation to Small Addition or Community Benefit 

Projects, as determined by Planning Commission Resolution, upon expiration of the 

development plan.  For projects with floor area allocated from the Community Benefit 

and Vacant Property categories, the unused floor area shall revert to the category from 

which the floor area was allocated upon expiration of the development plan.  Floor area 

that was excluded from the development limit specified in Section 28.85.010 under the 



 ATTACHMENT 1 
ORDINANCE COMMITTEE DISCUSSION DRAFT 1/15/13 

SHOWING CHANGES FROM EXISTING CODE FOR CHAPTER 28.95 
 

 

22 
 

Prior-Approved or Prior-Pending categories shall expire upon expiration of the 

development plan and shall not be available for another allocation. 

 

28.85.100  Multiple Development Plans.   

 When more than one valid approved development plan exists for a lot, upon issuance 

of a building or grading permit for any work authorized by one of the approved 

development plans, all other development plans approved for that lot are deemed 

abandoned by the property owner.  No building or grading permit shall be issued for any 

work authorized by a development plan following abandonment of that plan.  For 

projects with floor area allocated from the Small Addition category, any unused floor 

area shall be made available for allocation to the Small Addition category or the 

Community Benefit Project category upon abandonment of a development plan.  For 

projects with floor area allocated from the Community Benefit and Vacant Property 

categories, any unused floor area shall revert to the category from which the floor area 

was allocated upon abandonment of a development plan.   

 

SECTION 2.  Section 28.87.300 of Chapter 28.87 of Title 28 of the Santa Barbara 
Municipal Code is deleted in its entirety. 
 
 
SECTION 3.  Section 28.87.350 of Chapter 28.87 of Title 28 of the Santa Barbara 
Municipal Code is deleted in its entirety. 
 



 ATTACHMENT 1 
ORDINANCE COMMITTEE DISCUSSION DRAFT 1/15/13 

SHOWING CHANGES FROM EXISTING CODE FOR CHAPTER 28.95 
 

 

23 
 

 

 

SECTION 4.  Sections 28.95.010 through 28.95.070 of Chapter 28.95 of Title 28 of the 
Santa Barbara Municipal Code are amended to read as follows: 

 

28.95.010  Purposes. 

 A. To ensure a strong economy by providing a voluntary mechanism which would 

allow the transfer of existing nonresidential development rights from certain properties 

to certain other properties within the City, thereby encouraging economic vitality. 

 B. To encourage new development, but not new floor area, in a manner consistent 

with Charter Section 1508the City Nonresidential Growth Management Program 

Ordinance and Traffic Management Strategy. 

 C. To promote the efficient use of under used space, and creative re-use of existing 

buildings. 

 D. To encourage uses compatible with surrounding areas. 

 E. To provide flexibility and opportunities for redirecting growth within the growth 

cap. 

 F. To encourage the development of a balanced community with economic 

diversity. 

 G. To stimulate revitalization of existing commercial areas of the City. 

 H. To accommodate large scale development that is consistent with Charter Section 

1508the City Nonresidential Growth Management Program Ordinance and Traffic 

Management Strategy. 



 ATTACHMENT 1 
ORDINANCE COMMITTEE DISCUSSION DRAFT 1/15/13 

SHOWING CHANGES FROM EXISTING CODE FOR CHAPTER 28.95 
 

 

24 
 

 I. To encourage the construction of housing.  

 

28.95.020  Definitions. 

 

 A. Existing Development Rights consist of the following: 

  1. Existing Floor Area.  The amount of nonresidential floor area of existing 

structures on a sending site; and 

  2. Approved Floor Area.  Nonresidential floor area which has received all 

discretionary approvals from the City prior to the date of application for a transfer, 

provided that none of those approvals has expired prior to the date of such application;  

and 

  3. Demolished Floor Area.  Nonresidential floor area of a structure, demolished 

after October 1988 and not subsequently reconstructed, and   

  4. Converted Floor Area.  Nonresidential floor area of a structure, which has 

been permanently converted from nonresidential use to a residential use after October 

1988. 

  Existing Development Rights may be aggregated from the above four categories 

but not so as to increase floor area above the amount allowed by Charter Section 1508 

and its implementing ordinancesthe City Nonresidential Growth Management Program 

Ordinance (Chapter 28.85).   

 A transfer of Existing Development Rights shall transfer to the receiving site only 

nonresidential floor area governed by City Charter Section 1508 and implementing 

ordinances regulated by the City Nonresidential Growth Management Program 



 ATTACHMENT 1 
ORDINANCE COMMITTEE DISCUSSION DRAFT 1/15/13 

SHOWING CHANGES FROM EXISTING CODE FOR CHAPTER 28.95 
 

 

25 
 

Ordinance, and shall not transfer any other right, permit or approval.  A transfer of 

Existing Development Rights shall not transfer credit for resource use by existing 

development on the sending site to the receiving site for purposes including but not 

limited to environmental review, development fees, or conditions of approval.  Existing 

Development Rights shall be measured in square feet of floor area, except that hotel 

and motel rooms may be measured by room when Existing Development Rights are 

developed as hotel or motel rooms on the receiving site, and in all other cases shall be 

measured in square feet of floor area.  Hotel and motel rooms which are approved and 

not developedbut not constructed at the time of transfer approval shall be measured 

only in square feet of floor area.   

 B. Floor Area.  "Floor area" is defined in Section 28.87.300.B.428.85.020. 

 C. Hotel or Motel Room.  A hotel or motel room includes only that floor area within 

the walls of rooms let for the exclusive use of individuals as a temporary abiding place, 

and does not include any other areas.  No replacement room shall be designed for 

rental or rented as more than one separate accommodation. 

 D. Nonresidential Floor Area.  Floor area is "nonresidential" if the Community 

Development Director determines that the floor area was used exclusively for 

nonresidential purposes in October, 1988; or that the floor area was vacant in October 

of 1988 and the latestlast use of the floor area prior to the proposed transfer was 

nonresidential in nature; or that the floor area was approved for nonresidential purposes 

as described in Paragraph A.2 above. 

 E. Receiving Site.  A site to which Existing Development Rights are transferred. 

 F. Sending Site.  A site from which Existing Development Rights are transferred. 



 ATTACHMENT 1 
ORDINANCE COMMITTEE DISCUSSION DRAFT 1/15/13 

SHOWING CHANGES FROM EXISTING CODE FOR CHAPTER 28.95 
 

 

26 
 

 G. Transfer of Existing Development Rights.  The transfer of Existing Development 

Rights as defined in Subsection A above from a sending site to a receiving site.  

Existing Development Rights may be transferred by sale, exchange, gift or other 

approved legal means, but such transfer shall not be effective until the Planning 

Commission, or City Council on appeal, has approved the transfer and the conditions of 

the transfer have been satisfied. 

 

28.95.030  Approval of Transfer of Existing Development Rights. 

 

 A. Application Review.  The application(s) and supporting documentation submitted 

by the applicant(s) shall be reviewed by the Community Development Department.  If 

the application(s) for processing are determined to be complete by the Community 

Development Department, the applicant(s) shall proceed in accordance with the 

standard application process in place at the time of submittal. 

 B. Transfer Approval.  Existing Development Rights may be transferred from 

sending site(s) to receiving site(s) pursuant to the provisions of this Chapter and any 

guidelines adopted by City Council resolution pursuant to this Chapter.  Development 

plan proposals for the sending site(s) and the receiving site(s) shall receive a single 

transfer approval, in addition to all other discretionary approvals required, and shall be 

considered one "project" for purposes of environmental analysis. 

 After approval, any change in the project, at either the sending site(s) or receiving 

site(s) which is not determined by the Planning Commission and/or the Community 

Development Director to be in substantial conformity with the approved project, shall be 



 ATTACHMENT 1 
ORDINANCE COMMITTEE DISCUSSION DRAFT 1/15/13 

SHOWING CHANGES FROM EXISTING CODE FOR CHAPTER 28.95 
 

 

27 
 

a new project and require a new application, review, and approval and/or disapproval.  

No transfer or receipt of Existing Development Rights shall be valid or effective unless 

the transfer and receipt, and development plans for both the sending site(s) and 

receiving site(s), comply with all requirements of this Municipal Code and have been 

reviewed and approved by the Planning Commission, or City Council on appeal, and all 

applicable conditions to the transfer have been satisfied. 

 C. Community Priorities.  Any Existing Development Rights approved as a 

community priority on a sending site may be transferred only if the new development on 

the receiving site is also approved as a community priority. 

 D. Multiple Sending and Receiving Sites.  Existing Development Rights may be 

transferred from more than one sending site to a single receiving site.  Existing 

Development Rights may be transferred from one sending site to more than one 

receiving site. 

 E. Compliance with Traffic Management Strategy.  Every transfer of Existing 

Development Rights must comply with the City Traffic Management Strategy as 

implemented in Section 28.85.050 of this Code.  Any Existing Development Rights 

proposed for transfer must qualify for allocation at the Receiving Site. 

 

28.95.040 Amount of Existing Development Rights That Can Be Transferred from a 

Sending Site to a Receiving Site. 

 

 A. The total amount of Existing Development Rights that can be transferred to a 

receiving site is subject to the applicable zoning of that receiving site, provisions of the 



 ATTACHMENT 1 
ORDINANCE COMMITTEE DISCUSSION DRAFT 1/15/13 

SHOWING CHANGES FROM EXISTING CODE FOR CHAPTER 28.95 
 

 

28 
 

Municipal Code, and any and all other applicable City rules and regulations. 

 B. The total amount of Existing Development Rights that can be transferred from a 

sending site is equal to the difference between the eliminated floor area on the sending 

site and the floor area of all nonresidential structures constructed or proposed to be 

constructed on the sending site. 

 

28.95.050 Development Plan Approval. 

 

 The following Transfers of Existing Development Rights must receive development 

plan approval by the Planning Commission, or the City Council on appeal: 

 A. Any transfer of more than 1,000 square feet of Existing Development Rights from 

a sending site, 

 B. Any transfer that involves the transfer of a hotel room on a room-for-room basis, 

and  

 C. aAny project using that is constructing, adding, or converting more than 1,000 

square feet of nonresidential floor area on a receiving site and which includes any 

amount of transferred Existing Development Rights must receive development plan 

approval by the Planning Commission, or the City Council on appeal.  Once a 

development plan is approved for a sending site, the sending site development plan 

approval may be used for subsequent transfers of Existing Development Rights from 

the sending site as long as the Community Development Director determines that the 

condition of the sending site following such subsequent transfers will substantially 

conform to the original development plan approval. 



 ATTACHMENT 1 
ORDINANCE COMMITTEE DISCUSSION DRAFT 1/15/13 

SHOWING CHANGES FROM EXISTING CODE FOR CHAPTER 28.95 
 

 

29 
 

 

28.95.060 Review and Findings. 

 

 The Planning Commission, or the City Council on appeal, shall review each 

application for a transfer of Existing Development Rights and shall not approve any 

such transfer unless it finds that: 

 A. The proposed development plans for both the sending and receiving sites are 

consistent with the goals and objectives of the General Plan of the City of Santa 

Barbara and the Municipal Code; and 

 B. The proposed developments will not be detrimental to the site(s), neighborhood 

or surrounding areas; and 

 C. The floor area of proposed nonresidential development on the receiving site does 

not exceed the sum of the amount of Existing Development Rights transferred when 

added to the amount of Existing Development Rights on the receiving site, and does not 

exceed the maximum development allowed by the applicable zoning of the receiving 

site. 

 D. Each of the proposed nonresidential developments on the respective sending 

site(s) and receiving site(s) will meet all standards for review as set forth in Section 

28.87.300.E 28.85.040 of the Municipal Code and all provisions of this Chapter, and will 

comply with any additional specific conditions for a transfer approval. 

 E. Development remaining, or to be built, on a sending site is appropriate in size, 

scale, use, and configuration for the neighborhood and is beneficial to the community. 

 



 ATTACHMENT 1 
ORDINANCE COMMITTEE DISCUSSION DRAFT 1/15/13 

SHOWING CHANGES FROM EXISTING CODE FOR CHAPTER 28.95 
 

 

30 
 

28.95.070 Conditions of Approval.   

 

 A. The Planning Commission, or the City Council on appeal, shall require conditions 

of development plan approval for plans submitted for sending and receiving sites.  

Conditions may include, but are not limited to a development agreement, as defined in 

State law, executed by the City and the sending site owner or the receiving site owner, 

or both.  The Planning Commission, or the City Council on appeal, may impose other 

conditions and restrictions upon the proposed development plans and transfer approval 

consistent with the General Plan and may require security to assure performance of all 

conditions and restrictions. 

 B. The Planning Commission, or City Council on appeal, shall require, as conditions 

of development plan approval for plans submitted for the sending and receiving sites 

that: 

  1. Whenever a sending site owner is required by this Chapter to offer to 

dedicate the sending site to the City or other governmental entity approved by the City, 

and the floor area to be transferred will be eliminated by demolition, a sending site 

owner shall make such offer prior to issuance of a demolition permit for the sending site.  

If the City or other governmental entity approved by the City rejects said offer of 

dedication, the Planning Commission approval is null and void; and 

  2. Any Existing Development Rights, measured in square feet of floor area, 

and/or number of hotel or motel rooms when appropriate, and whether such Existing 

Development Rights derive from existing, approved, demolished or converted floor area, 

shall be clearly and accurately designated on both the sending and receiving site 



 ATTACHMENT 1 
ORDINANCE COMMITTEE DISCUSSION DRAFT 1/15/13 

SHOWING CHANGES FROM EXISTING CODE FOR CHAPTER 28.95 
 

 

31 
 

development plans; and  

  3. Prior to issuance of any necessary permit relating to any Existing 

Development Rights approved for transfer from a sending site, the option, deed, 

easement, covenant, or other legal instrument by which the existing development rights 

are being transferred, and proof of recordation of the development plan for both sending 

and receiving sites shall be reviewed and approved by the Community Development 

Director. 

  4. Proof of the elimination of the transferred floor area from the sending site 

must be reviewed and approved by the Community Development Director prior to 

recordation of the approved instrument of transfer.  The City shall be a party to the 

instrument of transfer; and 

  5. Prior to the issuance of any building permit for the project proposed on the 

receiving site pursuant to this Chapter, proof of recordation of the transfer instrument, 

and proof of elimination of the Existing Development Rights on the sending site shall be 

accepted as satisfactory by the Community Development Director. 

 



 

1 
 

RESOLUTION NO. _______ 
A RESOLUTION OF THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SANTA 
BARBARA ADOPTING AMENDED ADMINISTRATIVE 
PROCEDURES FOR THE IMPLEMENTATION OF THE 
GENERAL PLAN GROWTH MANAGEMENT PROGRAM AND 
THE ADOPTION OF THE CITY TRAFFIC MANAGEMENT 
STRATEGY 
 

WHEREAS, in 1989, the City Council placed a nonresidential growth limitation 
before City voters as ballot Measure E, which was approved and incorporated into the 
City Charter as Charter Section 1508, and limited nonresidential growth to not more 
than three million square feet until 2010. 

WHEREAS, on February 12, 1991, the City Council adopted amendments to the 
Zoning Ordinance as well as a Resolution to implement the Growth Decisions and 
Charter Section 1508 which expired on December 31, 2009.   

WHEREAS, in 2005, the City Council initiated the update to the General Plan 
including an updated Land Use element to specifically address the expiration of Charter 
Section 1508, and to determine future nonresidential growth in the City. 

WHEREAS, on July 14, 2009 and November 20, 2012, the City Council adopted 
ordinances amending Section 28.87.300 of the Municipal Code extending the 
regulations relating to nonresidential growth management through January 1, 2014.  
The City Council extended Section 28.87.300 for the purpose of maintaining the status 
quo concerning nonresidential growth management until the completion of the updated 
General Plan and to allow for the orderly implementation of policies regarding 
nonresidential growth management. 

WHEREAS, on January 1, 2010, Charter Section 1508 expired according to its 
own terms. 

WHEREAS, on December 1, 2011, the City Council adopted the update to the 
General Plan with growth limitations for the next 20 years, along with goals, policies and 
standards to implement the Growth Management Program considering the community’s 
values of “living within our resources.”   

WHEREAS, the updated General Plan includes Policy LG2, Limit Nonresidential 
Growth, that limits most new nonresidential floor area to 1.35 million square feet over 
the 20 year life of the General Plan excluding Prior-Pending projects, Prior-Approved 
projects, Government buildings, Minor Additions and the demolition and replacement of 
existing square footage from the development limitation. 

WHEREAS, General Plan Policy LG2 includes implementation actions that 
necessitate updating the City’s Development Plan Ordinance (SBMC § 28.87.300) and 
Transfer of Existing Development Rights Ordinance  (SBMC Chapter 28.95) to continue 
to limit nonresidential growth (LG2.1), establish required findings for new development 
approvals (LG2.3) and consider the disposition of future demolished nonresidential 
square footage (LG2.4) that is not rebuilt on site. 

ATTACHMENT 2 
DRAFT 



 

2 
 

WHEREAS, the updated General Plan includes policies (Principles for 
Development) to focus growth in the Downtown, encourage a mix of land uses, 
strengthen mobility options, and promote healthy active living, including encouraging a 
mix of land uses, particularly Downtown, to maintain its strength as a viable commercial, 
retail, residential, and workplace center. 

WHEREAS, one of the key tenets of the General Plan is for the remaining 
increment of growth to occur within commercial and multi-family districts with more 
availability and use of alternative modes of transportation in order to minimize 
congestion. 
 WHEREAS, a Final Program Environmental Impact Report (FEIR) was certified 
in September of 2010 and December 2011 for the General Plan.  The FEIR assessed 
citywide impacts associated with 2,178,202 square feet of nonresidential development.  
Subsequently, an Addendum to the FEIR analyzed a revised lower growth management 
program of 1.85 million square feet of nonresidential development (addressing up to 
1.35 million square feet within the growth limitation policy and 0.5 million square feet for 
excluded uses).  The FEIR and Addendum evaluated the potential environmental 
effects from citywide development under General Plan Update policies over the twenty-
year Plan horizon.   
 
 WHEREAS, the FEIR and Addendum concluded that even with identified 
mitigation measures, unavoidable significant impacts associated with increased traffic 
congestion and greenhouse gas generation would occur by 2030 as a result of potential 
new development under the General Plan policies.   
  
 WHEREAS, on September 18, 2012, the City Council adopted the City’s Climate 
Action Plan.  An Addendum to the FEIR was prepared to document the Climate Action’s 
Plan updated greenhouse gas emissions analysis, which showed that citywide 
greenhouse gas emissions would be lower than earlier identified in the FEIR and would 
meet the State target, thereby constituting a less than significant impact. 

 WHEREAS, the FEIR identified that the increase of vehicle trips associated with 
the potential development under the General Plan would increase the number of 
intersections exceeding the City’s level of service standard from 13 to up to 20 – 26. 
 

WHEREAS, the City Council approved the General Plan Update and adopted a 
statement of overriding considerations finding the anticipated cumulative traffic impact 
to be acceptable given the benefits of the Plan.  
 
 WHEREAS, new development will contribute to the identified cumulative traffic 
impact, and the previous finding required for Development Plan approval - “The 
proposed development will not have a significant unmitigated adverse impact on the 
City’s Traffic; and resources will be available and traffic improvements will be in place at 
the time or project’s occupancy.” is proposed to be replaced.  A new Traffic 
Management Strategy is necessary to manage and track traffic associated with future 
growth.   
 



 

3 
 

 WHEREAS, the FEIR traffic analysis completed for the General Plan found that 
the Downtown area is distinguished from other development areas because land 
developed within this area will generate the least amount of traffic compared to the 
other development areas.  Additionally, implementation actions recommended in the 
Circulation Element are anticipated to be more effective in the Downtown development 
area than within the other Development Areas.   
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
SANTA BARBARA THAT: 
 

1. The Council of the City of Santa Barbara hereby adopts The 
Administrative Procedures for the Implementation of the General Plan Growth 
Management Program attached hereto as Exhibit A. 

 
2. The Council of the City of Santa Barbara hereby adopts The Traffic 

Management Strategy attached hereto as Exhibit B. 
 

 3. The Council of the City of Santa Barbara makes the following findings in 
accordance with the California Environmental Quality Act regarding the adoption of 
General Plan Growth Management Program: 
 

A. CEQA Section 21083.3 and Guidelines Section 15183 provides that 
projects which are consistent with the development density established by general plan 
policies for which a FEIR was certified, and rezonings consistent with the plan, shall not 
require additional environmental review except under specified instances. The City 
Environmental Analyst determined that the proposed implementing ordinance 
amendments do not trigger the additional environmental review requirements for the 
following reasons:  

i. There are no additional site-specific or project-specific 
significant effects which are peculiar to the proposed zoning amendments; 

ii. There are no new significant effects not addressed in the 
prior Program FEIR; and 

iii. There is no new information since the FEIR that would 
involve more significant impacts than identified in the FEIR.  
 
Environmental review for the proposed implementing ordinance amendments is 
addressed by the General Plan FEIR and Addenda, and no further environmental 
review is required.  The zoning amendments to implement growth limitations are a 
citywide program and any future project-specific significant effects will have 
environmental review.   
 



 

4 
 

 
B. The policies and standards for the city’s projected growth have 

been previously analyzed in the FEIR and Addenda for the General Plan and Climate 
Action Plan.  Specifically, the environmental and traffic impacts associated with 
implementing General Plan Policy LG2 and 1.35 million net new square feet of 
nonresidential floor area was included in the analysis of the General Plan FEIR and 
Addendum and the potential development is within the growth and traffic distribution 
assumptions. 
  

C. The City Planner is the custodian of the record of proceedings for 
the General Plan Update, FEIR, the Addenda, and the documents and other materials 
which constitute the record of proceedings for City actions related to the General Plan 
Update and FEIR that are located at the City of Santa Barbara Community 
Development Department, Planning Division, 630 Garden Street, Santa Barbara, 
California.  Copies of these documents are available for public review during normal 
business hours upon request at the office of the City of Santa Barbara Community 
Development Department, Planning Division. 

 
4. Resolution No. 12-075 is hereby rescinded. 
 
5. This Resolution shall become effective upon the effective date of the 

ordinance adopting the City’s Nonresidential Growth Management Program Ordinance 
(SBMC Chapter 28.85). 



 

Administrative Procedures - Growth Management Program Page 1 
 

EXHIBIT A 
 

The Administrative Procedures for the Implementation of the 
General Plan Growth Management Program 

 
 
The following are administrative procedures for the implementation of the City’s 

Nonresidential Growth Management Program Ordinance (Municipal Code Chapter 
28.85) through January 1, 2033 and the Traffic Management Strategy by which 
nonresidential development will be evaluated. 

 
1. Applications. 

 
Applications for land use permits for nonresidential construction projects and 

transfers of existing development rights, as those terms are defined in Sections 
28.85.020 and 28.95.020 of the Santa Barbara Municipal Code, shall be submitted in 
accordance with the following procedures: 
 

A. Minor Additions, Projects on Vacant Property, Government Displacement 
Projects, and City Government Buildings. 

 
An application for a land use permit for a nonresidential construction project 

involving a proposed minor addition, a project on vacant property, a government 
displacement project or a city government building shall be submitted to the Community 
Development Department in accordance with the standard application requirements in 
place at the time of the application submittal. 

 
B. Prior-Pending or Prior-Approved Projects. 

 
If a Prior-Pending Project or a Prior-Approved Project that includes nonresidential 

floor area that would otherwise require an allocation of floor area from one of the 
categories specified in Subsection A of Section 28.85.010 of the Municipal Code expires 
or is withdrawn, any future project on the lot involving nonresidential floor area shall be 
required to submit a new application to the Community Development Department in 
accordance with the standard application requirements in place at time of the 
application submittal.   

If a Prior-Pending or Prior-Approved project is withdrawn or expires, any future 
project on the lot will require a new allocation of square footage under Chapter 28.85. 

 
C. Small Additions. 

 
An application for a land use permit for a nonresidential construction project 

involving a proposed small addition shall be submitted to the Community Development 
Department in accordance with the following procedures: 

 



 

Administrative Procedures - Growth Management Program Page 2 
 

(1) Annual Allocation.  The annual allocations available from Small 
Additions shall be the total of 20,000 and any unused Small Additions from the previous 
year as may be carried over from time to time by resolution of the Planning 
Commission.  The Planning Commission will decide annually whether unused or 
expired Small Additions from the previous year should roll over to Small Additions for 
the next year or to the Community Benefit allocation category. 
 

(2) Initial Application Period.  Applications for small additions will be 
accepted on the first two (2) business days of each calendar year.  Applications 
received during this two (2) day period will be reviewed by staff to determine the total 
amount of square footage requested from the small addition category.   

 
(a) Initial Applications Less than Annual Allocation. If the total 

amount of small addition square footage requested is less than or equal to the 20,000 
square foot annual allotment, plus any rollover approved by the Planning Commission 
from the previous year, the accepted applications will be allocated square footage in the 
amounts requested. Subsequent applications for small additions will be accepted on a 
first-come, first-served basis until the 20,000 square foot annual limit plus any approved 
rollover from the previous year has been reached.  Applications submitted after the 
annual allocation has been expended will be returned to the applicant, with the names 
of the applicants for the next 10,000 square feet of small additions placed on a 
Reallocation List for use in the event that projects originally accepted are reduced in 
size, withdrawn, abandoned or denied. All other potential applicants will be advised to 
reapply in January of the following year. 
 

(b) Initial Applications Greater than Annual Allocation.  If the total 
amount of small addition square footage requested in the applications received within 
the Initial Application Period exceeds the 20,000 square foot annual limit, plus any 
approved rollover, priority for square footage allocations will be determined by the 
casting of lots in a manner deemed appropriate by the Community Development 
Director.  Each proposed development project for which an application has been 
received will have one lot in the lottery, regardless of the number of small additions 
requested or the number of properties involved in the proposed project.  Projects will be 
allocated small addition square footage in the order drawn until the 20,000 square foot 
limit plus any approved rollover has been reached.  Projects which were not drawn 
during the initial 20,000 square foot allocation plus any approved rollover will continue to 
be drawn for priority placement on a Reallocation List for use in the event that projects 
originally accepted are reduced in size, withdrawn, abandoned, or denied. Subsequent 
to the lottery, all other potential applicants will be advised to reapply in January of the 
following year. 
 



 

Administrative Procedures - Growth Management Program Page 3 
 

 
D. Community Benefit Projects.   

 
An application for a land use permit for a nonresidential construction project 

which seeks designation by the City Council as a community benefit project shall be 
subject to the following procedure: 

 
(1) Contents.   

 
An application for a land use permit for a nonresidential construction project 

proposed as a Community Benefit project shall be submitted to the Community 
Development Department for a recommendation of community benefit.  The following 
information shall be included in the application packet: 

- A completed Master Application form; 
- 3 copies of a Plot Plan including the following: 

• Vicinity Map 
• North Arrow 
• Scale (not smaller than 1” = 20’) 
• Project address and property owners 
• Land Use Zone 
• Total site acreage 
• Property boundaries 
• Setback dimensions 
• Maximum height of the buildings 
• Assessor’s Parcel Number(s) 
• Location of proposed Structures 
• Indication of removal of any structures 
• Major trees should be indicated including those proposed for 

removal 
• Footprint of structures on adjacent properties  
• Location of existing and proposed parking spaces 
• Legend including: net lot area of parcel in square feet and acres, 

site statistics showing both square footage and percentage of site 
coverage for all buildings and parking statistics showing the number 
of spaces required by ordinance and the total number of on-site 
space (existing and proposed); 

- Letter from the applicant containing a description of the project including 
but not limited to the square footage of existing and proposed structures 
(consistent with the definition of Floor Area contained in Section 28.85.020 of 
the Zoning Ordinance), and the square footage associated with any proposed 
demolition; 

 



 

Administrative Procedures - Growth Management Program Page 4 
 

 
- For Community Priority Projects, a Needs Assessment providing Staff and 
the Council with information necessary to make the finding that the proposed 
project meets a “present or projected need directly related to public health, 
safety or general welfare”.  The content of the Needs Assessment should be as 
follows: 

• An introduction outlining the proposal 
• A summary of the development history of the site; past 

development activity at the site should be documented, noting 
types and dates of past permits 

• A description of the existing and proposed uses and associated 
square footage.  This section should address the need for 
expansion and reasons why an allocation is necessary. 

- For Economic Development Projects, an assessment providing Staff and 
the Council with information necessary to make the finding that the proposed 
project will “enhance the standard of living for City and South Coast Residents 
and will strengthen the local and regional economy”.  The content of the 
assessment should be as follows: 

• An introduction outlining the proposal. 
• A summary of the development history of the site; past 

development activity at the site should be documented, noting 
types and dates of past permits. 

• A description of the existing and proposed uses and associated 
square footage. This section should address the need for 
expansion and reasons why an allocation is necessary.  

• Documentation of how the project meets the definition of an 
Economic Development Project in Section 28.85.020 of the Zoning 
Ordinance. 

 
(2) Designation. 

 
The City Council shall consider an application for designation as a Community 

Benefit Project at a public hearing noticed in accordance with Section 28.87.380 of the 
Municipal Code. The staff recommendation shall be presented to the City Council for an 
identification of community benefit status.  The designation of a project as a Community 
Benefit Project enables the acceptance of the application for processing, but does not 
commit the City Council, or any City agency, board or commission to approval of the 
project.  If a project is granted a Designation as a community benefit project, the project 
application shall continue through the review process in place at the time of application. 
 



 

Administrative Procedures - Growth Management Program Page 5 
 

 
 A project designated by the City Council as satisfying one or more of the following 
categories is a Community Benefit Project: 

(a) Community Priority Project.  A Community Priority Project is a 
project that has a broad public benefit, is not principally operated for private profit, and 
is necessary to meet a present or projected need directly related to public health, safety 
or general welfare including, but not limited to, parks and recreation facilities; 
community centers; educational institutions and uses including schools; public cultural 
or arts facilities; youth development and childcare facilities; community gardens and 
urban farming, and a mixed use project on a site where the commercial component 
supports rental or affordable housing.  A Community Priority project is also defined as a 
project that meets the present or projected needs of persons with disabilities, the 
workforce that provides them direct support, and the agencies or organizations that 
assist persons with disabilities. 
    (b) Economic Development Project.  An Economic Development 
Project is a project that is consistent with the City Charter, General Plan and this Title, 
will enhance the standard of living for City and South Coast residents and will 
strengthen the local or regional economy by either creating new permanent employment 
opportunities or enhancing the City's revenue base.  An Economic Development Project 
should also accomplish one or more of the following: 
     i. Support diversity and balance in the local or regional 
economy by establishing or expanding businesses or industries in sectors which 
currently do not exist on the South Coast or are present only in a limited manner; or 
     ii. Provide new recreational, educational, or cultural 
opportunities for City residents and visitors; or 
     iii. Provide products or services which are currently not 
available or are in limited supply either locally or regionally; or 
     iv. Support a small and local business in the community that is 
started, maintained, relocated, redeveloped or expanded.  
For purposes of this Section, "standard of living" is defined as wages, employment, 
environment, resources, public safety, housing, schools, parks and recreation, social 
and human services, and cultural arts. 
    (c) Planned Development – New Automobile Sales.  A Planned 
Development – New Automobile Sales Project is a project within a Planned 
Development Zone that proposes a project involving new automobile sales, rental and 
leasing as allowed in Chapter 28.39 of this Code.   
 
(3) Reservation of Community Benefit Square Footage. 
 

If an application meets the following criteria, square footage from the Community 
Benefit categories can be reserved without applying for a land use permit. The 
application process for a reservation shall be the same as outlined in (1) and (2) above.  
In order to be eligible for a reservation of square footage, the project must exceed 
10,000 square feet and be a component of a recognized Master Plan with interrelated 



 

Administrative Procedures - Growth Management Program Page 6 
 

phases of construction, which has been reviewed by the Planning Commission and can 
be fully implemented within 10 years. 

 
For the purposes of a community priority or economic development project 

square footage reservation, a Master Plan shall include the following information: 
 

• The potential for short and long range development for the facility 
and site; 

• A brief history of development occurring at the facility; 
• Description of the type and number of parking spaces existing; 
• Plans to indicate the size and conceptual location of proposed 

structures; 
• Proposed schedule of implementation of each component. 

 
If Council finds that the project meets the definition of a Community Benefit 

Project, as specified in Section 28.85.020 of the Municipal Code, a reservation of 
square footage from the Community Benefit Category may be granted by a resolution of 
the City Council for a period not to exceed five years.  Prior to expiration of the 
Resolution reserving the square footage, the applicant shall submit a complete 
application for a land use permit. 

 
E. Hotel Room for Room Replacement. 

 
An application for a land use permit for a nonresidential construction project 

which involves the replacement or remodeling of existing hotel rooms on a room for 
room basis shall be submitted to the Community Development Department in 
accordance with the standard application process in place at the time of submittal.  All 
applications involving room for room replacement shall include a site plan identifying the 
location and size of all existing hotel rooms.  An additional site plan showing the 
proposed size and location of all rooms after the replacement project is completed shall 
also be submitted. 
 
2. Project Review and Approval. 
 
 The Nonresidential Growth Management Program Ordinance limits the 
categories of development available for allocation within certain Development Areas.  
The Traffic Management Strategy limits the ability to override project-specific traffic 
impacts.  The purpose of these limits is to promote the General Plan Policy of “Living 
within Our Resources”. 
 

Section 28.85.050 of the Santa Barbara Municipal Code implements the City’s 
Traffic Management Strategy as part of the City’s Nonresidential Growth Management 
Program by specifying what categories of development are available for allocation 
within a particular Development Area and specifying whether such development may 



 

Administrative Procedures - Growth Management Program Page 7 
 

have project specific significant traffic impacts.  The following discussion explains the 
organization of Section 28.85.050 and its operation: 
 

A. Default Rule for Project-Specific Significant Traffic Impacts  
 

Each subsection of 28.85.050 (A. - Downtown Development Area, B. - Outlying 
Development Areas, and C. - Airport Development Area) specifies a default treatment of 
project-specific significant traffic impacts for projects within that Development Area (i.e., 
whether or not project-specific significant impacts may be overridden).   
 

B. Categories of Development Available for Allocation 
 

Each subsection lists the categories of development that are available for 
allocation within that Development Area as separate numbered paragraphs.  If a 
category is listed, that category of floor area or project is available for allocation within 
that Development Area.  If a category of development is not listed, the category of 
development is not available for allocation within that Development Area. 
 

C. Exceptions to Default Rule for Project-Specific Traffic Impacts 
 

Some of the paragraphs listing an available category of development have a 
description of the treatment of project-specific significant traffic impacts for that category 
of development.  If a category of development is listed and has no further discussion 
within the numbered paragraph, then that category of development follows the default 
rule regarding project-specific traffic impacts stated at the beginning of the subsection.  
If there is further discussion following the listing of the category, the further discussion 
describes an exception for that category of development from the default rule for the 
Development Area.  

 
3. Tracking of Floor Area. 
 

A. Minor Additions.  
 

(1) Maximum.  Although Minor Addition Floor Area is excluded from the 
development limit, it is tracked by the Community Development Department.  For legal 
lots that existed as of December 6, 1989, the cumulative total of Minor Addition Floor 
Area allowed for each lot shall not exceed 1,000 square feet over the nonresidential 
floor area that existed on the lot as of December 6, 1989.   
 

(2) Minor Additions Developed with Other Categories of Development.  
Minor Addition square footage developed in conjunction with a Small Addition or 
allocations from other categories of nonresidential development specified in Section 
28.85.010 shall be counted as a Minor Addition. 

 



 

Administrative Procedures - Growth Management Program Page 8 
 

(3) Buildings Occupying Two or More Lots.  If an existing building 
occupies two or more lots, the maximum square footage available for allocation as a 
Minor Addition to the combined project shall equal the sum of the Minor Addition square 
footage that could be developed on the individual lots in compliance with current zoning 
standards (assuming surface parking).  The application shall demonstrate the ability to 
develop the square footage on a site plan. 
 

B. Small Additions. 
 

(1) Maximum.  For legal lots that existed as of December 6, 1989, the 
cumulative total of that Small Addition Floor Area allowed for each lot shall not exceed 
2,000 square feet over the nonresidential floor area that existed on the lot as of 
December 6, 1989.  In no case shall the combined total of Small Addition Floor Area 
and Minor Addition Floor Area on a lot exceed 3,000 square feet. 

 
(2) Buildings Occupying Two or More Lots.  If an existing building 

occupies two or more lots, the maximum square footage available for allocation as a 
Small Addition to the combined project shall equal the sum of the Small Addition square 
footage that could be developed on the individual lots in compliance with current zoning 
standards (assuming surface parking).  The application shall demonstrate the ability to 
develop the square footage on a site plan. 

 
C. Merged or Adjusted Lots. 

 
 If two or more lots are merged or have their lot lines adjusted as part of a 
development, any Minor Addition or Small Addition allocation that remains available to 
each of the individual lots prior to the merger or adjustment may be assigned to the 
merged or adjusted lot to the extent the application demonstrates on a site plan that the 
lot from which the allocation is assigned could have developed the remaining square 
footage in compliance with current zoning standards (assuming surface parking) prior to 
the merger or lot line adjustment. 
 

D. Subdivisions. 
 
 For lots subdivided after October 1988, any Minor Addition or Small Addition 
allocation remaining for the parent lot at the time of subdivision shall be divided evenly 
between all of the resulting lots.  The remaining Minor Addition or Small Addition 
allocation may be divided in a different manner between the resulting lots if subdivider 
documents the alternative division of the allocation in a written instrument approved as 
to form by the City Attorney and recorded with the County Recorder at the time of the 
recordation of the final or parcel map of the subdivision. 
 

E. Reallocation of Floor Area. 
 



 

Administrative Procedures - Growth Management Program Page 9 
 

(1) Prior-Pending and Prior-Approved Projects.  If a Prior-Pending Project 
or Prior-Approved Project expires or is withdrawn, any nonresidential floor area 
allocated to the project shall be extinguished and shall not be available for allocation to 
another project. 

 
(2) Small Addition Floor Area. Small Addition Floor Area that is not 

allocated within a calendar year may be rolled over to the Small Addition allocation for 
the subsequent year or to the Community Benefit Project category as determined by 
Resolution of the Planning Commission.  If a waitlist has been established for the 
allocation of Small Addition Floor Area pursuant to Section 1.C.(2)(b) of this Resolution, 
any Small Addition Floor Area that expires or is withdrawn during such calendar year 
shall be allocated to projects on the waitlist.  If any balance of expired or withdrawn 
Small Addition Floor Area remains after allocation to projects on the waitlist, the 
remaining balance may be rolled over to the Small Addition allocation for the 
subsequent year or to the Community Benefit Project category as determined by 
Resolution of the Planning Commission.   
 

(3) Community Benefit Projects and Vacant Property Projects. If a 
Community Benefit Project or a Vacant Property Project expires or is withdrawn, the 
nonresidential floor area allocated to the project shall return to the development 
category or categories from which it was allocated. 

 
 
 



 

Traffic Management Strategy Page 1 
 

EXHIBIT B  
 

Growth Management Program 
Traffic Management Strategy 

Policies and Procedures to  
Assess Traffic Impacts for Land Development Projects 

 
 

The following set of policies and procedures outline the operational details of the City of Santa 
Barbara’s Traffic Management Strategy, a part of the City’s overall Growth Management 
Program.  The strategy supports and implements the City’s policy, stated in the General Plan, 
for limited incremental nonresidential growth in order to minimize traffic impacts on City 
roadways.  The development anticipated over the next 20 years is expected to cumulatively 
result in increased traffic congestion citywide and up to 26 impacted intersections.  The intent 
of this strategy is to minimize the expected traffic impacts while balancing the need for 
economic development, and to establish a simplified, more certain, and less costly 
development entitlement process. 
 
The need for a traffic management strategy was identified in the Final Environmental Impact 
Report (FEIR) for the Plan Santa Barbara General Plan Update (2011).  The FEIR used a Traffic 
Model specifically developed for the City to estimate future traffic impacts and congestion.  
Based upon observations of actual traffic behavior within the City, the Traffic Model identified 
different traffic generation rates based on the location of uses within the City.  The model also 
determined that the effectiveness of the traffic mitigation measures identified in the FEIR 
varied based on location.  These findings substantially inform the policies and procedures 
adopted in this Traffic Management Strategy.   
 
The primary goal of this Traffic Management Strategy is to utilize existing transportation 
capacity efficiently and to reserve constrained transportation capacity for high priority land 
uses.  The City’s Adaptive Management Plan will be used to monitor impacted intersections and 
provide decision points during the 20-years life of the plan to apply traffic mitigation efforts, 
adjust land use growth, or re-think the strategy altogether.   
 
A. Policy Direction for Balancing Growth: Where, What, and How Much 
 

The General Plan establishes an overall Growth Management Program for 20 years 
prioritizing affordable housing and specific categories of new nonresidential development 
included in a development limit of 1.35 million square feet of net-new nonresidential floor 
area.   Per General Plan policy, there are categories of development that are not included in 
the 1.35 million square feet limit, including: Prior Pending and Prior Approved projects, City 
Government Buildings, Minor Additions, reconstruction of demolished floor area on-site, 
and floor area involved in a Transfer of Existing Development Rights.   The Nonresidential 
Growth Management Program Ordinance, in conjunction with these policies adopted by 



 

Traffic Management Strategy Page 2 
 

Council Resolution, establishes the parameters for development allowances consistent with 
the General Plan.   
 
The cumulative traffic impacts identified in the FEIR and found acceptable with the Council’s 
corresponding adoption of a Statement of Overriding Considerations provide the basis for 
approval of development consistent with the General Plan as implemented through this 
strategy. 
 
Included is a Map of the Growth Management Program Development Areas used in this 
Traffic Strategy.  The Development Areas are established based upon observations from the 
Traffic Model.  The Traffic Model demonstrated that traffic generation rates and 
distribution patterns vary within different areas of the City.  The Downtown Development 
Area is distinguished from all other Development Areas because land developed within this 
area will generate the least amount of traffic per square foot of development given the mix 
of land uses, the grid street system, and the availability of a variety of transportation modes 
including biking, walking and transit. Additionally, the mitigation measures included in the 
General Plan will have the greatest effectiveness of offsetting traffic impacts in the 
Downtown Development Area.   

 
To provide flexibility and to encourage infill and redevelopment in each respective 
Development Area, this strategy provides for the transfer of existing nonresidential floor 
area and hotel rooms.  For the Downtown Area, existing development rights may be 
proposed for a TEDR from anywhere in the City (other than from the Airport) to the 
Downtown Area.  Transfers within the Downtown Area are also allowed. 

 
1. Downtown Area 

 
Allowed Development Categories 

 
In support of General Plan goals and policies, the Traffic Management Strategy is 
designed to create flexibility and encourage the majority of future land development 
to occur within the Downtown Area.   The following are the categories of 
development allowed in the Downtown Development Area: 
 
1) Prior-Approved Projects 
2) Prior-Pending Projects 
3) Prior Approved Specific Plan Projects 
4) Minor Addition Floor Area 
5) Small Addition Floor Area 
6) Vacant Property (up to .25 Floor to Lot Area Ratio)  
7) Community Priority Projects 
8) Economic Development Projects * 
9) Nonresidential Transfer of Existing Development Rights (TEDR) * 



 

Traffic Management Strategy Page 3 
 

10) Hotel Room for Room Replacement 
11) Demolition and Reconstruction of Existing Nonresidential floor area on site, no 

net new floor area 
12) Government Buildings and Public Utility Projects 
13) Government Displacement Floor Area 
 

2. Outside of the Downtown - Outlying Development Areas 
 
Allowed Development Categories 
 
The Upper State Street, Mesa, Coast Village Road, and Riviera Development Areas 
(Outlying Development Areas) are all treated similarly in this strategy.  The Traffic 
Model showed that land development within the Outlying Development Areas 
would generate significantly more traffic per square foot or per unit than the same 
land uses located in the Downtown Development Area.  Additionally, the Traffic 
Model showed that the traffic mitigation measures identified in the FEIR are 
substantially less effective in reducing traffic impacts in the Outlying Development 
Areas.  Consequently, in order to reserve traffic capacity for high priority land uses, 
new nonresidential square footage is limited in the Outlying Development Areas to 
the following categories:   
 
1) Prior-Approved Projects 
2) Prior-Pending Projects  
3) Prior-Approved Specific Plan Projects 
4) Minor Addition Floor Area 
5) Vacant Property (up to .25 Floor Area Ratio) 
6) Community Priority Projects 
7) Transfer of Existing Development Rights (TEDR) from within the same 

Development Area* 
8) Demolition and Reconstruction of Existing Nonresidential floor area on site, no 

net new floor area 
9) Government Buildings and Public Utility Projects 

10) Government Displacement Projects 
11) Hotel Room for Room Replacement on site 
12) Planned Development – New Automobile Sales 

 
Should major development or redevelopment of the La Cumbre Plaza and Five 
Points properties be proposed, the General Plan anticipates that a Specific Plan 
process would be undertaken including further consideration of this traffic strategy. 
 

3. Limitations Related to Transfer of Existing Development Rights and Project Specific 
Impacts (for the project types noted with an asterisk*). 

 



 

Traffic Management Strategy Page 4 
 

Transfer of Existing Development Rights (TEDR) 
 

The Municipal Code provides development potential and a process for review and 
approval of transfers of existing development rights (TEDR).  This strategy and 
accompanying ordinance amends the TEDR ordinance.  A TEDR is allowed from the 
Outlying Development Areas, not including the Airport, into the Downtown 
Development Area but is not allowed from the Downtown Development Area to the 
Outlying Development Areas or the Airport Development Area.  TEDRs are not 
allowed between the various Outlying Development Areas or from the Downtown 
Development Area or any of the Outlying Development Areas to the Airport 
Development Area.   
 
These limitations on TEDR projects promotes the policy of focusing future 
development in the Downtown Development Area.  The Downtown Development 
Area is shown by the Traffic Model to generate the least amount of additional traffic 
and to be the most able to mitigate the effects of the anticipated traffic growth.  The 
allowance for transfers within the same Development Area reflects the nature of 
traffic patterns within the development areas observed in the Traffic Model.  A land 
use can move from one location to another location within the same Development 
Area and only experience slight changes in traffic patterns.  While shifts in traffic 
patterns within a Development Area will be measured using the Traffic Model, the 
change is not anticipated to rise to the level of project specific impact.  
 
Economic Development 

 
Projects seeking development allocations from the Economic Development category 
are encouraged; provided, the project does not cause a project-specific significant 
traffic impact.  Project-specific significant traffic impacts are viewed as an indication 
that an economic development project is consuming a disproportionate amount of 
the City’s transportation capacity.  Therefore, an economic development project 
that presents a project-specific significant traffic impact cannot be approved under 
this Strategy.  

 
Significant Project Specific Traffic Impacts 

 
The Traffic Management Strategy specifically identifies projects with contributions 
to cumulative traffic impact levels as assessed in the FEIR.  Council determined this 
cumulative traffic impact to be acceptable and consistent with the General Plan.  
However, when a project’s anticipated impact rises to the level of a project-specific 
significant traffic impact, it is inconsistent with this policy because a single project is 
using a disproportionate share of the remaining roadway capacity.    
 



 

Traffic Management Strategy Page 5 
 

The only categories of development allocation for which anticipated traffic impacts 
at the Project Specific level may be considered are:  
 
1) Prior Approved Specific Plan Projects 
2) Minor Addition Floor Area 
3) Community Priority Projects 
4) Nonresidential Transfer of Existing Development Rights (TEDR) of not more than 

1,000 square feet and within the same Development Area 
5) Hotel Room for Room Replacement on site 
6) Demolition and Reconstruction of Existing Nonresidential floor area on site, no 

net new floor area 
7) Government Buildings and Public Utility Projects 
8) Government Displacement Floor Area 
9) Vacant Property (up to .25 Floor to Lot Area Ratio)  
 
All other proposals must either reduce the size of the project or mitigate the project-
specific impact, which may require the construction of new public improvements.  In 
these cases, staff will strategize with developers to consider project alternatives that 
would avoid the Project Specific level of impact. 
 

4. Airport Development 
 
The FEIR considered traffic impacts in the Airport Development Area as part of the 
regional analysis.  It has been the City’s practice to coordinate the traffic analysis of 
projects at the airport with the County, City of Goleta and Caltrans, as appropriate.  
The level of service capacity and traffic thresholds for the transportation systems in 
and around the Airport are different than those applied to City intersections in the 
Downtown Development Area and the Outlying Development Areas.  This policy 
proposes to continue the City’s existing practices regarding traffic analysis of 
projects at the Airport and provides that additional environmental analysis, as 
necessary, will be completed prior to decisions on development proposals at the 
Airport.   
 
The development categories that may be considered for the Airport include: 
 
1) Prior-Approved Projects 
2) Prior-Pending Projects 
3) Prior-Approved Specific Plans 
4) Minor Addition Floor Area 
5) Small Additions Floor Area 
6) Vacant Property (up to .25 Floor Area Ratio)  
7) Community Priority 



 

Traffic Management Strategy Page 6 
 

8) Nonresidential Transfer of Existing Development Rights (TEDR) only to and from 
within the Airport Development Area 

9) Economic Development Projects 
10) Transfers of Existing Development Rights from within the Airport Development 

Area 
11) Demolition and Reconstruction of Existing Nonresidential Floor Area on site 
12) Government Buildings and Public Utility Projects 

 
B. Environmental Assessment Procedures  
 
Whenever appropriate, the 2011 FEIR will be used to inform decision makers of that 
development’s traffic impact.  Because the FEIR is a Program document, it may be used to 
streamline the environmental process.  If a proposed project is consistent with the 
development density established in a General Plan for which an EIR was certified, additional 
environmental review is not required, except as necessary to determine whether there are 
project-specific significant effects which are peculiar to the project or its site.  The City can find 
that these projects are covered by the overriding considerations made by the Council at the 
time the General Plan was approved.  Additional traffic modeling may be needed in cases 
where a project may generate a project-specific significant traffic impact. 
 
In all cases, discretionary projects will be assessed for potential environmental impacts and 
processed per City environmental review procedures and the California Environmental Quality 
Act (CEQA).   
 
Use of the General Plan EIR Traffic Model is anticipated as part of the project level 
environmental assessment, which will result in faster, more reliable proposal consistency 
determinations.  Using the City’s Traffic Model will also avoid developer expenses normally 
incurred investigating potential traffic impacts, and significantly reduce costs for further 
environmental review should that be required.   Periodic calibration of the model with current 
traffic counts will also occur in connection with the Adaptive Management Program.   
 
Regular maintenance of the City’s Traffic Model will require a revenue stream within the Land 
Development Team (LDT) process, which will be developed as a part of the LDT fee program.   A 
Traffic Model Review fee will provide the necessary revenue.  This fee will be charged to all 
projects that propose to add new nonresidential floor area or new residential units.  The fee 
will be scaled to the size and level of traffic impact generated by a development.  Proposals that 
require additional environmental review will require additional fees.  ` 
 
Project Level Access Requirements 

 
Each development proposal will also be evaluated for site access design to ensure that a project 
has an appropriate connection to the transportation system, including traffic flow, bicycle and 
pedestrian accommodations, and appropriate access to transit.  Some projects may require 



 

Traffic Management Strategy Page 7 
 

improvements to the project site design or its interface with the public right-of-way in order to 
accommodate a project’s access needs or in rare instances to reduce the project’s project-
specific traffic impacts to a less than significant level.   These types of improvements ensure 
safe access and minimize a project’s disruption to the traffic flow of adjacent street(s).  Any 
required access improvements must be in place prior to permission to occupy an approved 
development. 
 



 

Traffic Management Strategy Page 8 
 

Traffic Mitigation Program and Adaptive Management 

 
An important part of the Traffic Growth Management Plan is traffic mitigation.  Traffic 
mitigation measures were specifically identified in the 2011 FEIR and incorporated in to the 
General Plan.  A Traffic Mitigation Program will be developed alongside the Adaptive 
Management Program.  The purpose of the program is: 1) to offset anticipated cumulative 
traffic impacts and 2) to identify a funding mechanism to pay for the implementation of the 
mitigation measures.   
 
Because all new developments with additional nonresidential square feet and/or residential 
units are anticipated to contribute to a significant cumulative traffic impact, all projects will be 
required to participate in the mitigation program at some level as determined by the City 
Council with adoption of the program.  The program will include a preliminary schedule and 
prioritization of the implementation of mitigation measures.   
 
This program will be integrated with the Adaptive Management Program so the Planning 
Commission and City Council can make General Plan course corrections over the 20-year life of 
the plan.  The Adaptive Management Plan will measure the rise of traffic congestion over time.  
Decision makers will be able to respond to a rise in congestion levels by reprioritizing mitigation 
measures and/or increasing funding levels to quicken the pace of implementation. 
 
 



 

Traffic Management Strategy Page 9 

 



 

 
 

ATTACHMENT 3 

 
PLANNING COMMISSION 

STAFF REPORT 
 
REPORT DATE: November 29, 2012 

AGENDA DATE: December 6, 2012 

PROJECT: Amendments to Title 28 of the Municipal Code for Implementation of 
Nonresidential Growth Management Program 

 
TO: Planning Commission 

FROM: Planning Division, (805) 564-5470 
Bettie Weiss, City Planner 
John Ledbetter, Principal Planner 
Rob Dayton, Principal Transportation Planner 
Beatriz Gularte, Project Planner 

 

I. PURPOSE OF MEETING 

The purpose of the meeting is for the Planning Commission to formalize its recommendations 
to City Council on amendments to the City’s Zoning Ordinance implementing the General Plan 
Growth Management Policies, including: Policy LG2, Limit Nonresidential Growth and LG7, 
Community Benefit Nonresidential Land Uses.  Amendments are proposed for the 
Development Plan Ordinance , Santa Barbara Municipal Code Section 28.87.300, the Transfer 
of Existing Development Rights (TEDR) Ordinance Chapter 28.95, the Development Potential 
sections throughout the Municipal Code that refer to the Development Plan Ordinance , and the 
Council Resolution No. 12-075. 

 
The ordinance proposes a new Chapter 28.85, entitled “Growth Management Program” 
(Exhibit A).  The former Development Plan Ordinance, Section 28.87.300, is proposed to be 
deleted from the Zoning Ordinance.  Also attached is the proposed Council Resolution that 
provides direction for implementation of the new Growth Management Program (GMP). 
(Exhibit B). 

II. BACKGROUND 

The 2011 General Plan provides specific policies to guide the amount of nonresidential 
development, such as commercial, institutional, and industrial uses, allowed over the next 
twenty years.  The prior City growth management policy, known as Measure E1, has been 
implemented by Municipal Code Section 28.87.300, the Development Plan Ordinance (DPO) 
(Exhibit C) and Resolution No. 12-075.  The existing DPO contains many key provisions, 

                                                 
1 Charter Section 1508, known as Measure E, expired on January 1, 2010 due to its sunset clause and has been removed 
from the City’s Charter. 



Planning Commission Staff Report 
Amendments to Title 28 of the Municipal Code for Implementation of Nonresidential Growth 
Management Program 
November 29, 2012 
Page 2 
 

including definitions, allocation categories such as Community Priorities, Small Addition, etc., 
and standards and findings for processing nonresidential projects in the city.  The Council 
Resolution details the administrative procedures for the allocations.  

The existing DPO and procedures have served the City well in implementing the nonresidential 
growth limitations; however, amendments are needed to implement the latest General Plan 
policies and Planning Commission direction while carrying over relevant components.  Also, 
the past two decades provided experience with the ordinance that informs areas for 
improvements and that could streamline processing of projects. 
 
Proposed ordinance revisions would update the nonresidential square foot amounts and 
categories allowing allocation of up to 1.35 million square feet net new nonresidential 
development to the year 2033, as adopted through the PlanSB General Plan update.  Revisions 
also include: refining the category definitions, allocation process, and specifying the 
Development Plan permit process; including the required findings for approval.  The growth 
management program also includes a traffic strategy for analyzing projects with respect to 
traffic impacts, and use of the traffic model developed as part of PlanSB. 
 
On May 17, 2012, the Planning Commission initiated amendments to the GMP with 
recommendations for processing of Small Additions, Community Benefit Projects, 
amendments to the definition of floor area, and the findings currently required for Development 
Plans.  These are described in more detail below. 
 
On June 21, 2012 and September 6, 2012, meetings were held with the Planning Commission 
to discuss staff’s initial approach for the Traffic Management Strategy for direction to change 
the current traffic finding in the existing DPO.   
 
Between May and September, staff also met with two focus groups comprised of stakeholders 
knowledgeable about the development process (e.g., architects, planning consultants, traffic 
consultants, and land development attorneys).  The three goals of the focus groups were to 
explain the staff proposal, demonstrate the differences between the current system and the staff 
proposal, and to solicit informed input on the subject to assist during Planning Commission 
discussion and decision-making.   
 
On November 20, 2012, the Council adopted a one year time extension to the current 
Development Plan Ordinance and Resolution to allow time to process these zoning 
amendments.  The current Development Plan Ordinance will expire on January 1, 2014.  Soon 
after adoption of the new ordinance, Planning Staff will provide a final accounting of how 
much square footage was allocated and built from the Measure E three million square feet from 
1990 to 2013.   
 

III. KEY ORDINANCE PROVISIONS 

Any new project submitted after the effective date of the revised ordinance that results in net 
new square footage will need a square footage allocation from the 1.35 million or be excluded 



Planning Commission Staff Report 
Amendments to Title 28 of the Municipal Code for Implementation of Nonresidential Growth 
Management Program 
November 29, 2012 
Page 3 
 

from the provisions as described below.  An individual project can potentially obtain an 
allocation of square footage from multiple categories consistent with the Traffic Management 
Strategy. 

The GMP is being amended to implement the new 1.35 million square foot allocation for the 
next two decades and to track the cumulative total allocated per lot under the various category 
provisions initiated since 1989 when the existing ordinance went into effect.   

Below is a summary of the following key ordinance provisions: 

A. Establishment of the Nonresidential Growth Limit for the Next 20 Years and Identify the 
General Plan Allocation Categories - SBMC §28.85.010.A 

B. Identify the Types of Nonresidential Floor Excluded from the Development Limit – SBMC 
§28.85.010.B 

C. Definitions – SBMC §28.85.020 
D. Development Plan Review Procedures – SBMC §28.85.030 
E. Standards for Review and Findings – SBMC §28.85.040 
F. Traffic Management Strategy Implementation – SBMC §28.85.050 
G. Amendments Regarding Transfer of Existing Development Rights – SBMC Chapter 28.95 

 
A. General Plan Allocation Categories 

General Plan Policy LG2 establishes the new nonresidential square footage allowance for 
the next 20 years as 1.35 million square feet and specifies how allowance will be allocated 
by category.  The 1.35 million net new square feet is to be allocated to Small Additions, 
Vacant Property and Community Benefit categories as follows: 

  
1. Small Additions (400,000 s.f.) – General Plan Policy LG2 allocates up to 400,000 

square feet to Small Additions over 20 years.  In order to regulate the pace of growth, 
Small Additions are limited to 20,000 square feet annually with the potential for 
unallocated Small Addition square footage to roll over, increasing the amount of square 
footage that could be allocated in the following year.   
 
A project can be allocated up to 2,000 square feet per legal lot from the Small Additions 
category for a cumulative total of 3,000 square feet if combined with a 1,000 Minor 
Addition (see a discussion of Minor Additions under Excluded Square Footage below).  
Once Small Additions reach a cumulative total on the lot of 2,000 square feet over the 
amount of development that existed on the lot as of December 6, 1989 (beyond 1,000 
sq. ft. of Minor Additions), no additional Small Addition square footage can be 
allocated to that lot.  This is a continuation of the current development potential 
allowances established with Measure E. 

 
Under the current ordinance, at the end of each year, unused Small Additions square 
footage or Small Addition square footage that had been allocated to a project for which 
the land use permit approvals had expired during the year rolled over into the Economic 
Development category.  In May, the Planning Commission recommended that the 



Planning Commission Staff Report 
Amendments to Title 28 of the Municipal Code for Implementation of Nonresidential Growth 
Management Program 
November 29, 2012 
Page 4 
 

Planning Commission decide annually whether unused, expired or withdrawn Small 
Addition square footage would roll over to either the Small Additions or Community 
Benefit categories.  This change in the allocation process for Small Additions is 
explained in the GMP 28.85.010.A. and Resolution page 6. 

 
2. Vacant (350,000 s.f.) – In 1990, 500,000 square feet was allocated under Measure E for 

vacant properties.  The amount was based on a vacant land survey conducted in the City 
in 1988 that identified approximately 32 acres of vacant land and an additional 100,000 
square feet within the Airport Specific Plan area.  Vacant Property square footage 
allocations will continue to be available to those lots that were vacant as of October 
1988, at a rate of up to .25 Floor Area Ratio (FAR) of the lot area.  Under the current 
DPO, approximately 357,620 square feet remains unallocated from the 1990 Vacant 
category.  Staff expects the 350,000 allocation under General Plan Policy LG2 and 
incorporated into the new ordinance to be sufficient to accommodate anticipated 
development on vacant properties over the next 20 years.  The provisions of the Vacant 
Property allocation category are proposed to remain the same under the new ordinance. 

 
3. Community Benefit (600,000 s.f.)  - Community Benefit projects may be designated 

by Council as either a Community Priority or Economic Development project.  A 
Community Priority project is one that meets a present or projected need directly related 
to public health, safety or general welfare.  Under Measure E, a total of 300,000 square 
feet was provided in this category.  Approximately 228,810 square feet was allocated to 
projects from 1990 to the present.   

 
With the 2011 General Plan update, Community Priority category was revised to 
include other community benefit types of nonresidential projects (e.g. Economic 
Development projects) and was allocated 600,000 square feet.  These categories are 
further defined in proposed SBMC 28.85.020 with the designation process specified in 
the proposed Council Resolution (Exhibit B).   

 
In May, the Planning Commission recommended that the City Council designation and 
allocation from the Community Benefit category occur once at the beginning of a 
project permit process, rather than continuing the current procedure with a preliminary 
allocation for the initial application and a final allocation at permit approval.  It now is 
proposed that there be only one review at Council to determine whether the project can 
be designated as a Community Benefit Project and allocated floor area from that 
category, after which the project would proceed through the standard planning process 
required of the application.  It will no longer be necessary for the Planning Commission 
to make a recommendation to Council on a Community Benefit Final allocation.   
 
General Plan Policy LG7. identifies “Green” Economic Development as a Community 
Benefit Nonresidential land use category, and an associated implementation action 
further defines what constitutes a “green” product or job.  In addition, General Plan 
Policy EF5. calls for the promotion and economic development of “Green”/ Sustainable 



Planning Commission Staff Report 
Amendments to Title 28 of the Municipal Code for Implementation of Nonresidential Growth 
Management Program 
November 29, 2012 
Page 5 
 

businesses where practicable.   After further analysis, staff recommends at this time that 
the “Green” Economic Development category not be differentiated from other 
Economic Development because in doing so, we believe long-term reporting and 
monitoring would be required to ensure the use of the project remains “Green” and this 
is neither practical nor cost effective to implement. However, staff supports 
emphasizing promotion of “Green”/Sustainable businesses through programmatic 
incentives as envisioned under Policy EF5.    

 
B. Excluded Square Footage 

 
A “Nonresidential Construction Project” is defined in the GMP as one that adds new floor 
area and excludes repair or replacement of existing floor area in the calculation of new floor 
area.  With the adoption of the 2011 General Plan update, some additional categories of 
Nonresidential Construction Projects (Prior-Pending, Prior-Approved, and Government 
Buildings, for example) were approved for exclusion from the overall nonresidential growth 
allowance.  While these excluded categories do not require an allocation of square footage 
from the 1.35 million, some are subject to the Development Plan process outlined in the 
ordinance and described later in the report.   
 
Consistent with General Plan Policy LG2, the ordinance excludes the following 
development from the 1.35 million square feet allocated for Nonresidential Construction 
Projects:  

 
1. Demolished Floor Area - Square footage that is demolished and rebuilt on site or on 

another site as part of a Transfer of Existing Development Rights (TEDR) is excluded 
from the 1.35 million square feet.  If the square footage is rebuilt on the same site it 
does not count as new square footage and is not counted when determining whether 
Development Plan approval is required.  This treatment is intended to encourage 
rebuilding on-site and is a continuation of the current process that has been in effect for 
the last 20 years.  

 
If demolished square footage is transferred to another site, the transferred square 
footage is excluded from the 1.35 million limit; however, the project would still require 
a Development Plan under the TEDR ordinance.  The only change being an exception 
for TEDR projects of less than 1,000 square feet, which would not require a 
Development Plan. 
 
Historically, projects have generally rebuilt less square footage than what could have 
been reconstructed on site or elsewhere.  Currently, approximately 300,0002 square feet 
have been demolished since 1990 and have not been reconstructed, and 100,000 square 

                                                 
2 An additional 189,000 square feet was demolished as part of the Saint Francis hospital demolition, however, that square 
footage cannot be transferred per the Cottage Hospital Development Agreement.   



Planning Commission Staff Report 
Amendments to Title 28 of the Municipal Code for Implementation of Nonresidential Growth 
Management Program 
November 29, 2012 
Page 6 
 

feet are  approved for demolition.   Approximately 76,000 square feet of demolition are 
part of pending or approved TEDR projects.   
 
Under the proposed Traffic Management Strategy, the ability to transfer existing 
development rights will depend upon the location of the sending and receiving sites.  
Further explanation of TEDR projects is included later in this report. 

 
2. Minor Additions – Minor Additions are projects that add or convert 1,000 square feet 

or less as a cumulative total on a lot since December 6, 1989.  Staff considers Minor 
Additions to be reasonable, necessary improvements that should continue to be allowed 
with minimal process.  Minor Additions are an important aspect of small business 
flexibility and are important to the economic health of existing businesses and the 
community.  A project adding square footage only from the Minor Additions category 
does not require a Development Plan.  

 
3. Hotel Room for Room Replacement – This is a project that replaces existing hotel 

rooms on a room for room basis.   The GMP allows the reconstruction of larger rooms 
when replacing existing hotel rooms in order to support enhancements to existing 
properties and to maintain hotel rooms throughout the City.  Any square footage 
associated with the replacement of a hotel room with a hotel room is excluded square 
footage. 

 
4. Government Displacement – This is a project which involves the relocation, 

replacement, or repair of a structure or use acquired, removed or damaged by direct 
condemnation or acquisition by the government (federal, state or local), provided that 
the square footage does not exceed the square footage of the building acquired or 
removed.  At one time in the early 1990’s there were a few Government Displacement 
projects associated with the Cross Town Freeway.  Although we do not foresee many 
projects under this category, staff recommends maintaining the exclusion in the 
ordinance. 

 
5. Prior-Pending and Prior-Approved Projects - These are project applications that are 

currently in the permitting pipeline or have been approved, but not built.  Prior-Pending 
and Prior-Approved projects are allocated under the prior Measure E allocation and not 
from the 1.35 million.  The square footage for Prior-Pending Projects is approximately 
73,7543 square feet.  The square footage from Prior-Approved projects totals 
approximately 141,905 square feet for a combined total of 215,659 square feet (Exhibit 
D, Prior-Pending and Prior-Approved Projects).   

 
These numbers could change as projects continue to process until the GMP Ordinance 
is formally adopted by the Council.  If these projects expire or withdraw, the associated 

                                                 
3 This total includes 45,145 from the Paseo de la Playa, 101 Garden Street (Wright Specific Plan) that met the definition of 
an “Approved” project when Measure E was adopted, but has a current project permitting status of pending. 
 



Planning Commission Staff Report 
Amendments to Title 28 of the Municipal Code for Implementation of Nonresidential Growth 
Management Program 
November 29, 2012 
Page 7 
 

square footage allocated to them will be eliminated.  However, if a Prior-Pending or 
Prior-Approved project submits a revised project with an increase in the nonresidential 
square footage, the additional square footage would need to be allocated from one of the 
categories under the 1.35 million allocation established under the General Plan Policy 
LG2.  
 

6. Government Buildings – Council included this new category of projects that would be 
excluded from the 1.35 million net new square footage.  In the past, government 
buildings received a Community Priority designation for their square footage.  
Examples of past projects that would fall within this new category include: Harbor 
restrooms, Waterfront offices, and Cater Water Treatment Plant.   

 
7. Annexations – The policy regarding annexations is not proposed to change.  If a 

property with existing development is annexed into the City, the existing development 
does not count as new square footage needing an allocation.  If the annexation is 
proposed with new development, the new nonresidential square footage would require 
an allocation under the GMP.  In addition, once a lot is annexed any new development 
proposed on the lot would be subject to the GMP. 

 
C. DEVELOPMENT PLAN PROCESS 
 

1. Development Plan Initiation and Review 
 

The square footage allocations allowed from the categories of Minor Additions, Small 
Additions and Vacant Property will continue as cumulative totals on a lot since 
December 6, 1989.  Under the current DPO,  a Development Plan is initiated based on 
the cumulative total square footage that has been allocated to a lot since 1989.  Once a 
property has received 1,000 net new square feet, any additional square footage requires 
a Development Plan.  This has resulted in Development Plans being required for very 
small amounts if previous Minor or Small Additions have occurred on a lot in the past. 

 
Under the proposed ordinance amendments, a new nonresidential construction project 
of 1,000 square feet or more will continue to require a Development Plan; however, that  
requirement will be based on the size of the project being presently reviewed and not 
based on a cumulative total since 1989.  For example, if a project is allocated 900 
square feet of Minor Additions for the first time on a lot in 2013, no Development Plan 
is required.  If another project of 900 square feet of nonresidential floor area is proposed 
on the same lot in 2018, even though the second project would constitute a Small 
Addition of 800 square feet, the second project would not require development plan 
approval because the proposed project is less than 1,000 square feet of floor area.   
 
Exhibit E outlines the review process for nonresidential construction projects that do not 
require the preparation of an Environmental Impact Report (EIR).  Any project, 
irrespective of size, that requires an EIR will be subject to review and findings by the 



Planning Commission Staff Report 
Amendments to Title 28 of the Municipal Code for Implementation of Nonresidential Growth 
Management Program 
November 29, 2012 
Page 8 
 

Planning Commission.  These requirements are included in SBMC 28.85.030, 
Development Plan Review Procedures and are similar to current processing of projects 
 

2. Review of Public Utility Facilities 
 

Another recommended change to the Development Plan process is for future projects 
involving regional public utility equipment.  In May, the Planning Commission 
supported amendments to the current definition of floor area to exclude “infrastructure” 
spaces from the calculation of floor area (see Exhibit A, SBMC 28.85.020.F for revised 
definition).  The definition of floor area has historically also exempted nonhabitable 
areas used for regional public utility facilities from the calculation of floor area.  Staff 
believes this standard is awkward in that “habitable” usually refers to residential uses or 
conditioned space and for some utilities it is necessary to have conditioned space for 
equipment.  Staff believes the definition of Floor Area should continue to exclude those 
portions of regional utility buildings occupied exclusively by equipment, but floor area 
associated with office space or storage should not be excluded. 
 
Further, while Staff recommends excluding spaces occupied exclusively by equipment 
from the calculation of floor area for purposes of the development limit, staff 
recommends counting such floor area for purpose of determining whether a 
Development Plan is required. Staff recommends that any such facility with 3,000 
square feet of new construction require a Development Plan by the Planning 
Commission in addition to a Conditional Use Permit, if required.  This treatment of 
regional public utility facilities would allow for the review of a potentially large 
nonresidential construction project consistent with other provisions of the code (i.e. 
review of Community Benefit projects). 

 
D. TRAFFIC MANAGEMENT STRATEGY 

 
The 2011 General Plan Update FEIR found that the addition of up to 1.35 million square 
feet of nonresidential growth along with residential growth would cumulatively result in 
significant traffic impacts at identified intersections by the end of the allocation period. City 
Council deemed this level of potential traffic impact to be acceptable in light of the Plan’s 
benefits.  New projects will contribute to cumulative traffic impacts; therefore, the current 
traffic finding required for Development Plans is proposed to be replaced.  This finding is:  
 

 “The proposed development will not have a significant unmitigated adverse impact 
on the City’s Traffic; and resources will be available and traffic improvements will 
be in place at the time or project’s occupancy.”   

 
A new Traffic Management Strategy is proposed to manage and track traffic associated 
with future growth.  The General Plan FEIR used a Traffic Model specifically developed 
for the City to estimate future traffic impacts and congestion.  Based upon actual traffic 
behavior within the City, the Traffic Model identified different traffic generation rates 



Planning Commission Staff Report 
Amendments to Title 28 of the Municipal Code for Implementation of Nonresidential Growth 
Management Program 
November 29, 2012 
Page 9 
 

based on the location within the City (i.e., Downtown vs. outlying areas).  The model also 
determined that the effectiveness of the traffic mitigation measures identified in the FEIR 
varied based on location.  These findings substantially inform the policies and procedures 
adopted in the proposed Traffic Management Strategy (Exhibit B of the Resolution).     

 
The primary goals of the Traffic Management Strategy are to utilize existing transportation 
capacity efficiently and to reserve constrained transportation capacity for high priority land 
uses.  All new nonresidential projects will be subject to the Traffic Management Strategy 
that will specify the types and locations of nonresidential development that can be approved 
and also which development can be considered for overriding findings for project specific 
impacts.  Given the limited amount of development potential allowed under the Growth 
Management Program, an important component of the program is the ability to override 
project specific traffic impacts for those projects that the Planning Commission determines 
meet other objectives of the General Plan and are beneficial to the community. 

 
Please refer to Exhibit B of the Resolution (Exhibit B) for the proposed Traffic 
Management Strategy.  This strategy would become part of the Growth Management Plan 
through a Resolution of the Council. 
 

E. TRANSFER OF EXISTING DEVELOPMENT RIGHTS 
 
Currently, the City’s Transfer of Existing Development Rights (TEDR) Ordinance, SBMC 
Chapter 28.95, regulates the transfer of existing floor area.  Existing development rights are 
defined as existing floor area, approved floor area, demolished floor area, or converted floor 
area.  Floor area can currently be transferred from a sending site to a receiving site by 
obtaining a Development Plan approval for both sites by the Planning Commission. 
 
While a comprehensive revision  of the TEDR Ordinance is not a part of this work effort, 
some revisions are necessary at this time to ensure consistency with the Growth 
Management Program definitions, to streamline small transfers to a receiving site within the 
same Development Area as the sending site, to regulate transfers amongst the Development 
Areas in a manner consistent with the General Plan Policy of living within our resources.   
 
Historically, there were no particular limits on where existing development rights could be 
transferred within the City.  The system relied on the Development Plan findings to prohibit 
transfers that could cause traffic impacts.  The proposed TEDR Ordinance amendments are 
consistent with the proposed Growth Management Program and provide for the continued 
regulation of the transfer of existing nonresidential floor area and hotel rooms.  However, 
some limitations are proposed with the following rules: 

 
1. Existing development rights may be proposed for transfer between a sending site and a 

receiving site that are within the same development area anywhere in the city. 
 



Planning Commission Staff Report 
Amendments to Title 28 of the Municipal Code for Implementation of Nonresidential Growth 
Management Program 
November 29, 2012 
Page 10 
 

2. Existing development rights may be proposed for transfer from a sending site within 
any of the Outlying Development Areas to a receiving site in the Downtown 
Development Area. 

 
3. Existing development rights cannot be transferred from a sending site in the Downtown 

Development Area to a receiving site in any of the Outlying Development Areas or the 
Airport Development Area. 

 
4.  Existing development rights cannot transfer from a sending site in one of the Outlying 

Development Areas to a receiving site in a different Outlying Development Area or the 
Airport Development Area. 
 

5. Existing development rights cannot transfer from a sending site in the Airport 
 Development Area to a receiving site any other development area.   

 
These amendments to the TEDR process are intended to promote the General Plan Policy of 
focusing the majority of future land development within the Downtown Area while leaving 
flexibility to transfer existing development rights within the same development area.  This 
is consistent with the policy of focusing future development in the Downtown Development 
Area, which according to the Traffic Model generates the least amount of additional traffic 
and can best accommodate anticipated traffic growth that is shifted from one site to another.   
 
Staff is recommending that the Planning Commission also consider the following 
amendments to the existing TEDR Ordinance. 

 
Transfers of First 1,000 Square Feet or Less - Under the current TEDR, any proposed 
transfer of existing development rights, requires a Development Plan by the Planning 
Commission.  Staff would like to streamline transfers of existing development rights 
involving 1,000 square feet or less of demolished square footage in the same Development 
Area because this may be the only opportunity for some businesses to make small 
improvements if they have exhausted their Minor or Small Additions in the past 20 years 
without having to request an Economic Development allocation from Council.   
 
This amendment would establish a similar process to Minor Additions of 1,000 square feet 
or less that do not need a Development Plan.  Any one time transfer up to 1,000 square feet 
to a receiving site would not need a Development Plan and could be processed at the design 
review level for the exterior changes if no other land use permit is required from the Staff 
Hearing Officer or Planning Commission.   
 
Staff will develop the administrative procedures for tracking and recording the appropriate 
legal instruments, but these projects will not need Planning Commission review if the 
transfer is less than 1,000 sf.  This will assist in reducing the cost to the applicant: 
processing a Development Plan/TEDR at the Planning Commission level involves more 
time and cost than processing at the design review level without a Development Plan.  This 



Planning Commission Staff Report 
Amendments to Title 28 of the Municipal Code for Implementation of Nonresidential Growth 
Management Program 
November 29, 2012 
Page 11 
 

would be consistent with General Plan policy EF21, Small Businesses which calls for 
recognizing the economic importance of small business in the community and allowing 
flexibility in future expansion.  
 

F. DEVELOPMENT PLAN FINDINGS (STANDARDS FOR REVIEW) 
 
In May 2012, the Planning Commission supported Staff’s proposed amendments to the 
current Development Plan findings such that findings related to housing and water would 
no longer be necessary on a project specific case-by-case review level.  The recently 
adopted General Plan update and associated programmatic FEIR provide a substantial 
resource baseline and policy basis for future growth and development over the next 20 
years.  Possible resource impacts will now be tracked and policies and programs will be 
adjusted as necessary through the Adaptive Management Program. 

 
The following findings are recommended as those required to be made by the decision 
making body when a Development Plan is approved. 

 
1. The proposed development complies with all provisions of this Title (the Zoning 

Ordinance).  
This finding is fundamental; however, from time to time it is needed to explain that 
consistency may include granting of a modification or CUP.  This finding exists in the 
current DPO.  

 
2. The proposed development is consistent with the principles of sound community 

planning.   
 A project’s consistency is analyzed based on existing City goals, policies and 

ordinances including the General Plan, the Zoning Ordinance, the Local Coastal Plan (if 
in Coastal Zone) and applicable development or design guidelines.  In some cases, 
special studies have resulted in direction for development in a particular area such as in 
the Upper State Street Study.  This finding exists in the current DPO and allows for a 
significant amount of latitude on the part of the decision makers and is used to approve 
a project and provide the reasoning on a project by project basis. 

  
3. The proposed development will not have a significant adverse impact upon the 

neighborhood’s aesthetics/character in that the size, bulk or scale of the 
development will be compatible with the neighborhood based on the Project 
Compatibility Analysis found in SBMC §22.22.145 and §22.68.045.”  

 
Historically, design review by either the ABR or the HLC informs the Planning 
Commission for making this finding on a particular project.  In 2008, in order to 
promote consistency between the City land use decision making process (SHO or 
Planning Commission) and the City design review process, the Council adopted the 
Project Compatibility Analysis criteria.  The design review boards must consider the six 



Planning Commission Staff Report 
Amendments to Title 28 of the Municipal Code for Implementation of Nonresidential Growth 
Management Program 
November 29, 2012 
Page 12 
 

criteria in their review of every project that goes before them and a noticed public 
hearing is required.    

 
4. The proposed development is consistent with the policies of the City of Santa 

Barbara Traffic Management Strategy as expressed in the allocation allowance 
specified in Section 28.85.050. 

 
The current DPO and review standards pose significant limitation on the ability of the 
Planning Commission and Council to approve projects which contribute or result in 
significant traffic impacts for which the mitigation is not feasible or available.  This 
finding has historically been the most difficult for new construction projects and thus a 
significant amount of project environmental review was dedicated to analyzing existing 
traffic impacts and possible traffic effects for the next increment of growth.   
 
In order to utilize the City’s transportation capacity efficiently and to prioritize 
constrained transportation capacity for high priority land uses, a new Traffic 
Management Strategy as described earlier in this report is being proposed.  Only certain 
categories of development will be allowed in certain areas.  For those projects requiring 
a Development Plan, this finding will be required. 
 

G. ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW 
 
The General Plan Final Program Environmental Impact Report (FEIR) certified in 
September 2010 and December 2011 initially assessed citywide impacts associated with 
2,178,202 square feet of nonresidential development.  Subsequently, an Addendum to the 
Final EIR analyzed a revised, lower growth management program of 1.85 million square 
feet of nonresidential development (up to 1.35 million SF growth policy cap plus 0.5 
million SF for excluded development).  The FEIR and Addendum concluded that even with 
identified mitigation measures, unavoidable significant impacts associated with increased 
traffic congestion and greenhouse gas generation would occur by 2030 as a result of 
maximum allowable new development under the General Plan policies.   

 
On September 18, 2012, the City Council adopted the City’s Climate Action Plan.  An 
Addendum to the Program FEIR was prepared to document the Climate Action’s Plan 
updated greenhouse gas emissions analysis, which showed that future citywide greenhouse 
gas emissions would be lower than earlier identified in the FEIR and would meet the State 
target, thereby constituting a less than significant impact. 
 
The FEIR identified that vehicle trips associated with new development would increase the 
number of  intersections exceeding the City’s level of service standard from 13 to up to 20 - 
26 with the growth level provided under General Plan policies, and feasible mitigation 
measures would only partially offset the impact. The City Council adopted findings of 
overriding consideration for this significant cumulative traffic impact and also adopted 



Planning Commission Staff Report 
Amendments to Title 28 of the Municipal Code for Implementation of Nonresidential Growth 
Management Program 
November 29, 2012 
Page 13 
 

General Plan Circulation Element policies directing that traffic impacts should be 
minimized as feasible. 
 
The FEIR traffic model analysis completed for the General Plan found that the Downtown 
Area is distinguished from all Outlying Development Areas within the City because land 
developed within the Downtown will generate the least amount of vehicle traffic due to the 
mix of land uses/trip destinations and substantial travel via walking, biking, and transit.  
Additionally, transportation implementation actions recommended in the Circulation 
Element will predominantly be effective in the Downtown development area.  By helping to 
direct future incremental growth toward areas that would generate less traffic, the proposed 
Traffic Management Strategy component of the implementing ordinance amendments 
reflects the General Plan policies for growth limitation in a manner to minimize traffic 
impacts and conserve remaining roadway capacity. 
 
The zoning amendments implementing the General Plan growth limitation policies 
constitute a citywide program.  The policies and standards for the City’s projected growth 
have been previously analyzed for environmental impacts in the Final EIR and Addenda for 
the General Plan and Climate Action Plan. Specifically, the environmental and traffic 
impacts associated with implementing General Plan Policy LG2 and the growth limitation 
policy for up to 1.35 million net new square feet was included in the analysis of the General 
Plan FEIR and Addenda. Potential future development under these zoning amendments is 
within the growth projections and traffic distribution assumptions for that impact analysis. 

 
The California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) Guidelines Section 15168 for Program 
Environmental Impact Reports (EIRs) provide for preparing a Program EIR for a series of 
actions characterized as one large project related in connection with issuance of rules, 
regulations, plans, or other criteria to govern the conduct of a continuing program. Use of a 
Program EIR is intended to streamline environmental review and avoid duplicative 
reconsideration for subsequent implementing steps. 
 
CEQA Section 21083.3 and Guidelines Section 15183 mandate that projects which are 
consistent with the development density established by general plan policies for which an 
EIR was certified, and rezonings consistent with the plan, shall not require additional 
environmental review except under specified instances.  
 
The proposed implementing ordinance amendments do not trigger the additional 
environmental review requirements, as follows: There are no additional site-specific or 
project-specific significant effects which are peculiar to the proposed zoning amendments; 
there are no new significant effects not addressed in the prior Program EIR; and there is no 
new information since the FEIR that would involve more significant impacts than identified 
in the FEIR. Environmental review for the proposed implementing ordinance amendments 
is addressed by the General Plan Program EIR and Addenda, and no further environmental 
review is required. 



Planning Commission Staff Report 
Amendments to Title 28 of the Municipal Code for Implementation of Nonresidential Growth 
Management Program 
November 29, 2012 
Page 14 
 

H. RECOMMENDATION AND NEXT STEPS 
 

Staff recommends incorporation of the proposed amendments for the new Growth 
Management Program.  Staff requests that the Planning Commission consider the proposed 
draft ordinance amendments, the amended Council Resolution and the Traffic Management 
Strategy, and direct any changes and recommendations to the City Council for adoption of 
the overall Growth Management Program. 
 
Following Planning Commission review and recommendation, the Growth Management 
Program will be reviewed by the Council Ordinance Committee.  The program would then 
return to the Planning Commission only if significant changes are recommended by the 
Ordinance Committee.  Otherwise, the Ordinance Committee will review and make a 
recommendation for introduction and adoption by the City Council.  While the current DPO 
is in effect until January 2014, staff anticipates that the new Growth Management Program 
Ordinance and the accompanying resolution would be adopted in April of 2013. 

I. EXHIBITS 
 

A. Draft Growth Management Program and Transfer of Existing Development Rights 
Ordinance  Refer to Attachment 1 of Ordinance Committee Report, 1/15/2013 

B. Draft Council Resolution w/Exhibits Refer to Attachment 2 with Exhibits of Ordinance 
Committee Report, 1/15/2013 

C. Existing Development Plan Ordinance, SBMC 28.87.300 
D. Prior Pending and Prior Approved Projects Table 
E. Typical Process for Nonresidential Projects by Size of Project 



 

City of Santa Barbara 
Development Plan Ordinance 

 
 

                                                                               Attachment 3, Exhibit C Page 1 of 8 

Attachment 3, Exhibit C 

28.87.300 Development Plan Review and Approval. 
 A. DEVELOPMENT PLAN. 
  1. Requirement for Development Plan. 
   a. Planning Commission Review Required.  No application for a land use permit for a 
nonresidential construction project as defined in Subsection B of this Section will be accepted or 
approved on or after December 6, 1989 unless the project falls within one or more of the categories 
outlined in Paragraph 2 of this Subsection and defined in Subsection B of this Section.  Before any 
nonresidential construction project is hereafter constructed in any zone including zones at the Santa 
Barbara Municipal Airport, a complete development plan for the proposed development shall be 
submitted to the Planning Commission for review and approval.  In addition, before residential floor area 
in any building or structure located in any zone including zones at the Santa Barbara Municipal Airport is 
converted to nonresidential use, a complete development plan for the proposed conversion shall be 
submitted to the Planning Commission for review and approval.  Before any transfer of existing 
development rights may be approved pursuant to Chapter 28.95, development plans for both the sending 
site(s) and receiving site(s) as defined therein shall be approved by Planning Commission or City Council 
on appeal pursuant to this section.  
   Any nonresidential project except for Transfer of Existing Development Rights projects, 
which involves an addition of greater than three thousand (3,000) and less than ten thousand (10,000) 
square feet of floor area and which does not require the preparation of an Environmental Impact Report, 
shall be placed on the Planning Commission Consent Calendar for review and action.  The only findings 
in Paragraph D.1 applicable to these projects are Findings d, e, f, and g.  These findings shall be made at 
the time of Planning Commission approval. 
   b. Exceptions. 
    (1) Notwithstanding the provisions of Subparagraph a. of this Subsection, any 
nonresidential project which involves an addition of one thousand (1,000) square feet or less, and which 
does not require the preparation of an Environmental Impact Report, shall not be required to receive 
development plan approval. 
    (2) Notwithstanding the provisions of Subparagraph a. of this Subsection, any 
nonresidential construction project which involves the following shall not be required to receive 
development plan approval from the Planning Commission: 
     a. an addition of greater than one thousand (1,000) and less than or equal to three 
thousand (3,000) square feet of floor area, and; 
     b. does not require the preparation of an Environmental Impact Report, and; 
     c. does not require some other form of discretionary approval from the Planning 
Commission under other applicable provisions of this Code. 
    (3) Development plan approval for projects not requiring Planning Commission approval 
under subparagraph (2) above shall be required from the Staff Hearing Officer if the application requires 
discretionary review by the Staff Hearing Officer under another provision of this Code.  Otherwise, 
development plan approval for projects not requiring Planning Commission approval under subparagraph 
(2) above shall be required at the time of Preliminary Approval from the Architectural Board of Review, 
or the Historic Landmarks Commission if the property is located within El Pueblo Viejo Landmark 



Measure E Ordinance (Development Plan Review and Approval) 

                                                                         Attachment 3, Exhibit C Page 2 of 8 

District or another landmark district, or if the structure is a designated City Landmark.  Such projects are 
subject to the findings in Subsection E of this Section and the provisions of Section 28.87.350. 
  2. Development Potential. 
   a. Nonresidential Construction Project.  Nonresidential construction projects, as defined in 
Subsection B of this Section, shall be restricted to no more than three million (3,000,000) square feet until 
the year 2013.  This allowable square footage shall be allocated in the following categories, as defined in 
Subsection B of this Section.  

Category Square Footage 
  
Approved Projects 
Pending Projects 
Vacant Property 
Minor Additions 
Small Additions 
Community Priorities 

900,000 s.f. 
700,000 s.f. 
500,000 s.f. 
Exempt 
600,000 s.f. 
300,000 s.f. 

    Small Additions shall be limited to no more than thirty thousand (30,000) square feet 
annually.  Procedures for allocating square footage under these categories shall be established by 
resolution of City Council. 
    Notwithstanding the development restrictions established above, the Planning Commission 
or City Council on appeal may approve nonresidential development projects determined by the City 
Council to promote Economic Development.  However, the total development square footage of all 
Economic Development Projects approved prior to January 1, 2013, shall not exceed the total square 
footage of "Approved" or "Pending" projects which have expired or been abandoned and any unused 
development square footage remaining from the annual allotment in the "Small Additions" category as of 
the date the Planning Commission or City Council on appeal approves a particular Economic 
Development Project.  Nothing herein shall be deemed to authorize the approval of nonresidential 
development totalling in excess of three (3) million square feet above the October 1988 baseline condition 
until January 1, 2013. 
   b. Other Nonresidential Development.  Other nonresidential development may occur so long 
as it falls within the following categories, as defined in Subsection B of this Section. 
    (1) Government Displacement Project. 
    (2) Hotel Room for Room Replacement Project. 
 B. DEFINITIONS. 
  1. Approved Projects or Revisions thereto.  A project which satisfies any of the following 
criteria: 
   a. An application for a land use permit for the project (other than an application for Specific 
Plan approval) which was approved on or before October 26, 1989 and the approval is still valid. 
   b. The project pertains to implementation of a Specific Plan which was approved prior to 
April 16, 1986, and the Plan required the construction of substantial circulation system improvements, 
and all of those improvements were either: 
    (1) Installed prior to the effective date of this ordinance; or 
    (2) Subsequently constructed pursuant to an Owner Participation Agreement (OPA) and 
installed prior to the approval of any development plan(s). 
   c. The project consists of a revision to a project which qualifies under either Subparagraph a. 
or b. of this Paragraph B.2, provided the revision will result in no increase in floor area over the approved 



Measure E Ordinance (Development Plan Review and Approval) 

                                                                         Attachment 3, Exhibit C Page 3 of 8 

amount.  Once a revision to a project has been approved that reduces the floor area from the originally 
approved amount, the unused floor area shall not be reallocated to the project as part of a future revision.  
The unused floor area shall be available for Economic Development Projects. 
  2. Community Priority.  A project which has been designated by the City Council as a 
community priority necessary to meet a present or projected need directly related to public health, safety 
or general welfare. 
  3. Economic Development Project.  A project which has been designated by the City Council as 
a project that is consistent with the City Charter, General Plan and this Title, will enhance the standard of 
living for City and South Coast residents and will strengthen the local or regional economy by either 
creating new permanent employment opportunities or enhancing the City's revenue base.  An Economic 
Development Project should also accomplish one or more of the following: 
   a. Support diversity and balance in the local or regional economy by establishing or 
expanding businesses or industries in sectors which currently do not exist on the South Coast or are 
present only in a limited manner; or 
   b. Provide new recreational, educational, or cultural opportunities for City residents and 
visitors; or 
   c. Provide products or services which are currently not available or are in limited supply 
either locally or regionally. 
  For purposes of this Section, “standard of living” is defined as wages, employment, environment, 
resources, public safety, housing, schools, parks and recreation, social and human services, and cultural 
arts. 
  4. Floor Area.  Floor Area is the area included within the surrounding exterior walls of a building 
or portion thereof, exclusive of the area occupied by the surrounding walls, vent shafts and courts, or 
areas or structures used exclusively for parking.  Nonhabitable areas used exclusively for regional public 
utility facilities shall not count toward the calculation of floor area.  Any floor area which was 
constructed, approved, demolished or converted in violation of any provision of this Municipal Code, 
shall not give rise to any right to rebuild or transfer floor area. 
  5. Floor Area Ratio.  The area expressed as the ratio of floor area to total square footage of a 
parcel. 
  6. General Welfare.  A community priority project which has a broad public benefit (for 
example: museums, child care facilities, or community centers) and which is not principally operated for 
private profit. 
  7. Government Displacement Project.  A project which involves the relocation, replacement, or 
repair of a structure or use acquired, removed or damaged by direct condemnation or negotiated 
acquisition by the government (federal, state or local), provided the square footage of a project 
constructed to replace a building acquired or removed by the government does not exceed the square 
footage of the building so acquired or removed. 
  8. Hotel Room for Room Replacement Project.  A project which consists of replacement or 
remodeling of existing hotel rooms at the same location on a room for room basis. 
  9. Land Use Permit.  A governmental decision concerning a permit, license, certificate, or other 
entitlement for use of land, including a conditional use permit, variance, modification, development plan, 
specific plan, general plan amendment, coastal development permit, conversion permit, subdivision map 
(except those creating new single family lots), building permit, grading permit, demolition permit, water 
service connection or any similar approval or use. 
  10. Minor Addition.  A project which consists of a minor addition defined as: 
   a. A nonresidential addition of one thousand (1,000) square feet or less of floor area to an 
existing structure; or 



Measure E Ordinance (Development Plan Review and Approval) 

                                                                         Attachment 3, Exhibit C Page 4 of 8 

   b. Construction of a free standing nonresidential structure of one thousand (1,000) square feet 
or less of floor area on a parcel containing another structure; or 
   c. Conversion of residential floor area to no more than one thousand (1,000) square feet of 
nonresidential floor area; or 
   d. Concurrent construction of nonresidential floor area of one thousand (1,000) square feet or 
less associated with a new structure constructed under the Approved, Pending, Community Priority or 
Vacant Property categories. 
   e. The one thousand square foot limitation defined in subparagraphs a. through d. above is a 
cumulative total available per parcel.  Once a cumulative total of 1,000 square feet of Minor Additions 
has been reached, any further additions up to a total of 3,000 square feet (including the Minor Additions) 
shall be allocated from the Small Addition category. 
    (1) EXCEPTION:  If an existing or proposed building occupies two or more parcels 
created prior to October 1988, the maximum square footage available for a Minor Addition shall equal the 
sum of the Minor Additions which could be approved on the individual parcels pursuant to the findings in 
Subsection E of this Section.  For parcels created after October 1988, any remaining Minor Addition 
allocation shall be divided evenly between all of the parcels created from each parcel eligible for a Minor 
Addition.  The remaining allocation may be divided in a different manner between the parcels created if 
this division is executed in a legal instrument that is recorded with the County recorder and approved as to 
form by the City Attorney for each parcel involved at the time of recordation of the Final or Parcel map 
for the subdivision. 
  11. Nonresidential Construction Project.  A project, or portion thereof, which consists of the 
construction of or addition of new floor area for other than residential use or the conversion of existing 
residential floor area to nonresidential use.  Repair or replacement of existing floor area is not included in 
the calculation of new floor area for the purpose of this Section. 
  12. Pending Project or Revisions thereto.  A project which satisfies any of the following criteria: 
   a. An application for a land use permit for the project was accepted on or before October 26, 
1989 and the application:  (1) has not been denied by the City; (2) has not been withdrawn by the 
applicant; (3) has not yet received City approval or (4) has received City approval after October 26, 1989 
and that approval is still valid. 
   b. The project pertains to implementation of a Specific Plan which was approved prior to 
April 16, 1986 and the project does not qualify under Subparagraph 1.b. of this Subsection. 
   c. The project consists of a revision to a project which qualifies under either Subparagraph a. 
or b. of this Paragraph 12, provided the revision will result in no increase in floor area over the amount 
shown on the pending application.  Once a revision to a project has been approved that reduces the floor 
area from the originally approved amount, the unused floor area shall not be reallocated to the project as 
part of a future revision.  The unused floor area shall be available for Economic Development Projects. 
  13. Residential Unit.  A dwelling unit as defined in Chapter 28.04, but not including any of the 
following: 
   a. A hotel or boarding house as defined in Chapter 28.04 which includes a motel, bed and 
breakfast inn, or similar facility in which the average duration of stay of the residents, during the six 
month period prior to February 1, 1990, was less than thirty (30) days. 
   b. A mobile-home or recreation vehicle as defined in Chapter 28.04. 
  14. Small Addition.  A project which consists of a small addition defined as:  
   a. A nonresidential addition of more than one thousand (1,000) and less than or equal to three 
thousand (3,000) square feet of floor area to an existing structure; or 



Measure E Ordinance (Development Plan Review and Approval) 

                                                                         Attachment 3, Exhibit C Page 5 of 8 

   b. Construction of a free standing nonresidential structure of more than one thousand (1,000) 
and less than or equal to three thousand (3,000) square feet of floor area on a parcel containing another 
structure; or 
   c. Conversion of residential floor area to more than one thousand (1,000) and less than three 
thousand (3,000) square feet of nonresidential floor area; or 
   d. Concurrent construction of nonresidential floor area of more than one thousand (1,000) and 
less than or equal to three thousand (3,000) square feet associated with a new structure constructed under 
the Approved, Pending, Community Priority or Vacant Property categories. 
   e. The limitations on floor area defined in subparagraphs a. through d. above establish the 
cumulative total available per parcel.  In any case, the combined total of Minor and Small Additions shall 
not exceed a cumulative total of three thousand (3,000) square feet. 
    (1) EXCEPTION:  In the case where an existing or proposed building occupies two or 
more parcels created prior to October 1988, the maximum square footage available for a Small Addition 
shall equal the sum of the Small Additions which could be approved on the individual parcels pursuant to 
the findings in Subsection E of this Section.  For parcels created after October 1988, any remaining Small 
Addition allocation shall be divided evenly between all of the parcels created from each parcel eligible for 
a Small Addition.  The remaining allocation may be divided in a different manner between the parcels 
created if this division is executed in a legal instrument that is recorded with the County recorder and 
approved as to form by the City Attorney for each parcel involved at the time of recordation of the Final 
or Parcel map for the subdivision. 
   f. Procedures for allocating square footage in the Small Addition category shall be 
established by resolution of the City Council. 
  15. Vacant Property.  A project on a parcel of land which was vacant in October 1988, which 
consists of construction of a nonresidential structure with a floor area ratio of no more than 0.25. 
 C. REVIEW BY PRE-APPLICATION REVIEW TEAM.   All nonresidential construction projects 
requiring the preparation of an Environmental Impact Report or involving greater than 3,000 square feet 
of floor area and subject to this Section shall be reviewed by the Pre-Application Review Team as 
provided in Chapter 27.07 of this Code. 
 D. STANDARDS FOR REVIEW.  Unless specifically exempt, the following findings shall be made 
in order to approve a development plan submitted pursuant to this Section. 
  1. Findings: 
   a. The proposed development complies with all provisions of this Title; and 
   b. The proposed development is consistent with the principles of sound community planning; 
and 
   c. The proposed development will not have a significant adverse impact upon the 
neighborhood's aesthetics/character in that the size, bulk or scale of the development will be compatible 
with the neighborhood; and 
   d. The proposed development will not have a significant unmitigated adverse impact upon 
City and South Coast affordable housing stock; and 
   e. The proposed development will not have a significant unmitigated adverse impact on the 
City's water resources; and 
   f. The proposed development will not have a significant unmitigated adverse impact on the 
City's traffic; and 
   g. Resources will be available and traffic improvements will be in place at the time of project 
occupancy. 



Measure E Ordinance (Development Plan Review and Approval) 

                                                                         Attachment 3, Exhibit C Page 6 of 8 

  2. Potential for Overriding Considerations: 
   a. A finding of significant adverse impact under Subparagraph 1.c above can be overridden if 
it is determined that the economic, social or public benefits of the proposed development outweigh its 
significant adverse impacts. 
   b. A finding of significant adverse impact under Subparagraphs 1.a or 1.b above cannot be 
overridden. 
   c. A finding of unmitigated significant adverse impact under Subparagraphs 1.d, 1.e, 1.f, or 
1.g above for a Minor Addition Project, Government Displacement Project or that portion of a project 
which qualifies as a Government Displacement Project, a Community Priority Project, and an Approved 
Project or Revision thereto can be overridden if it is determined that the benefits of the proposed 
development outweigh its significant adverse impacts. 
  3. Exception.  Notwithstanding any provision of this Section to the contrary, a development plan 
shall not be denied based on a finding pursuant to Subparagraph 1.d of this Subsection E if (i) the plan 
incorporates revisions to a development plan approved by the Planning Commission under this Section 
prior to February 25, 1988, and (ii) the project shown on the plan will not generate a demand for new 
housing in excess of the demand generated by the previously approved project. 
 E. DEVELOPMENT PLAN NOTICE AND HEARING.  The Staff Hearing Officer, Planning 
Commission, or City Council on appeal, shall hold a public hearing prior to taking action on any 
development plan.  Notice of the public hearing shall be given in accordance with Section 28.87.380. 
 F. SUSPENSIONS AND APPEALS. 
  1. A decision by the Staff Hearing Officer under this Section may be suspended or appealed 
according to the provisions of Section 28.05.020. 
  2. A decision by the Planning Commission under this Section may be appealed according to the 
provisions of Chapter 1.30.  In addition to the procedures specified in Chapter 1.30, notice of the public 
hearing before the City Council on an appeal from a decision of the Planning Commission regarding a 
decision of the Staff Hearing Officer shall be provided in the same manner as notice was provided for the 
hearing before the Planning Commission. 
 G. FEES.  Fees for filing applications and appeals shall be established by resolution of the City 
Council. 
 H. EXPIRATION OF DEVELOPMENT PLANS.  A development plan approved pursuant to this 
Section shall expire pursuant to the provisions of Section 28.87.350.  For projects with floor area 
allocated from the Approved, Pending, Economic Development and Small Addition categories, the 
unused floor area shall be made available for allocation to Economic Development Projects upon 
expiration of the development plan.  For projects with floor area allocated from the Community Priority 
and Vacant Property categories, the unused floor area shall revert to the category from which the floor 
area was allocated upon expiration of the development plan. 
 I. MULTIPLE DEVELOPMENT PLANS.  When more than one valid approved development plan 
exists for a lot, upon issuance of a building or grading permit for any work authorized by one of the 
approved development plans, all other development plans approved for that lot are deemed abandoned by 
the property owner.  No building or grading permit shall be issued for any work authorized by a 
development plan following abandonment of that plan.  For projects with floor area allocated from the 
Approved, Pending, Economic Development and Small Addition categories, any unused floor area shall 
be made available for allocation to Economic Development Projects upon abandonment of a development 
plan.  For projects with floor area allocated from the Community Priority and Vacant Property categories, 
any unused floor area shall revert to the category from which the floor area was allocated upon 
abandonment of a development plan.  (Ord. 5493, 2009; Ord. 5380, 2005; Ord. 5378, 2005; Ord. 4995, 
1996; Ord. 4945, 1996; Ord. 4918, 1995; Ord. 4858, 1994; Ord. 4851, 1994; Ord. 4790, 1992; Ord. 4761, 



Measure E Ordinance (Development Plan Review and Approval) 

                                                                         Attachment 3, Exhibit C Page 7 of 8 

1992; Ord. 4696, 1991; Ord. 4670, 1991; Ord. 4557, 1988; Ord. 4535, 19858; Ord. 4530, 1988; Ord. 
4529, 1988; Ord. 4492, 1988;  Ord. 4361, 1986;  Ord. 4140, 1982.) 

28.87.350 Development Plan Time Limits. 
 A. TIME LIMIT.  A development plan approved pursuant to any provision of this Title shall expire 
four (4) years from the date of its approval, except as otherwise provided herein.  No building or grading 
permit for any work authorized by a development plan shall be issued following expiration of that plan. 
 B. CONDITIONS.  Any condition imposed on a development plan may, in the discretion of the body 
approving the development plan, also constitute (i) a condition to the issuance of and continued validity of 
any building or grading permit issued to implement that development plan, (ii) a condition to the issuance 
of the certificate of occupancy with respect to any improvements authorized by the development plan and 
(iii) if recorded with the County Recorder, to the continued validity of the certificate of occupancy.  
Violation of any such condition shall be grounds for suspension or revocation of any building or grading 
permit or certificate of occupancy issued with respect to the development plan. 
 C. EXTENSION OF TIME PERIOD.  Upon application of the developer filed prior to the expiration 
of the development plan, the time at which the development plan expires may be extended by the 
Community Development Director for one (1) year. 
 An extension of the expiration date of a development plan shall be granted if it is found that there has 
been due diligence to implement and complete the proposed project as substantiated by competent 
evidence in the record.  
 D. SUSPENSION OF TIME DURING MORATORIUM.  The period of time specified in Subsection 
A, including any extension thereof granted pursuant to Subsection C, shall not include any period of time 
during which a moratorium, imposed after approval of the development plan, is in existence, provided 
however, that the length of the moratorium does not exceed five (5) years.  For purposes of this 
Subsection, a development moratorium shall include (i) a water or sewer moratorium, (ii) a water and 
sewer moratorium, and (iii) a building or grading permit moratorium, as well as other actions of public 
agencies which regulate land use, development, or the provision of services to the land other than the 
City, which thereafter prevents, prohibits, or delays the completion of the development. 
 Once a moratorium is terminated, the development plan shall be valid for the same period of time as 
was left to run on the development plan at the time that the moratorium was imposed.  However, if the 
remaining time is less than 120 days, the development plan shall be valid for 120 days following the 
termination of the moratorium. 
 E. SUSPENSION OF TIME DURING LITIGATION.  The period of time specified in Subsection A, 
including any extension thereof granted pursuant to Subsection C, shall not include the period of time 
during which a lawsuit involving the approval of the development plan or related approvals is or was 
pending in a court of competent jurisdiction, if the stay of time period is approved by the Planning 
Commission or City Council pursuant to this Section.  After service of the initial petition or complaint in 
the lawsuit upon the City, the developer may apply to the City for a stay pursuant to the City's adopted 
procedures.  Within forty (40) days after receiving the application, the City shall either stay the time 
period for up to five years or deny the requested stay.  The City Council may, by resolution, establish 
procedures for reviewing a request for a stay, including, but not limited to, notice and hearing 
requirements, appeal procedures and other administrative requirements. 
 F. DEVELOPMENT PLANS ALREADY APPROVED. 
  1. Beginning Date – Development Plan Approvals.  For the purpose of calculating the expiration 
date of development plans approved prior to the adoption of the ordinance approving this Section, the date 
of approval of such development plans shall be deemed to be the date said ordinance is adopted by the 
City Council. 



Measure E Ordinance (Development Plan Review and Approval) 

                                                                         Attachment 3, Exhibit C Page 8 of 8 

  2. Specific Plan Development Plan Approvals.  For the purposes of calculating the expiration 
date of a Specific Plan project Development Plan approved in accordance with Santa Barbara Municipal 
Code Chapter 29.30, Development Plan approvals shall be deemed to expire eight (8) years after the date 
of the final City action approving the project Development Plan and shall include any related project 
approvals or modifications granted by the City in connection therewith. (Ord. 5380, 2005; Ord. 5308, 
2004; Ord. 4361, 1986.) 
H:\Group Folders\PLAN\Handouts\Zoning Cabinet\Measure E Ordinance - Development Plan.doc Revised October 12, 2009 



Prior-Pending and Prior-Approved Nonresdential Projects
December 2012

ATTACHMENT 3, EXHIBIT D

ADDRESS APN APPLICATION # Airport Downtown Riviera Upper State Coast Village Mesa
602 W ANAPAMU ST 039-151-014 MST90-02931 4,800
350 CHAPALA ST B 037-450-023 MST2012-00096 460
101 GARDEN ST - Wright Property 017-630-018 MST2006-00210 45,125
115 E GUTIERREZ ST 031-271-030 MST2012-00069 598
1298  LAS POSITAS RD - Elings Park 047-010-034 MST2006-00509 13,821
101   STATE ST 033-075-006 MST2011-00171 7,501
1936 STATE ST 025-372-001 MST2011-00167 1,449

0 59,933 0 0 0 13,821
Prior-Pending Total: 73,754 S.F.

412   ANACAPA ST 031-271-019 MST2008-00322 3,375
528   ANACAPA ST 031-201-029 MST2012-00300 2,000
710   ANACAPA ST 031-081-013 MST2008-00362 40
517   CHAPALA ST 037-163-007 MST2005-00088 429
1255   COAST VILLAGE RD 009-291-018 MST2011-00220 2,000
1298   COAST VILLAGE RD 009-230-043 MST2004-00493 1,778
4151 FOOTHILL RD 059-160-017 MST2008-00496 56,372
513 GARDEN ST 031-202-009 MST2010-00168 1,730
134   HARBOR WAY 033-120-018 MST2007-00356 66
702  LAGUNA ST 031-092-023 MST2010-00288 2,000
1900  LASUEN RD 019-170-022 MST2007-00140 6,000
803 N MILPAS ST 031-042-028 MST2006-00510 200
635  OLIVE ST 031-160-012 MST2012-00156 1,997
540 W PUEBLO ST - Cancer Center 025-090-046 MST2007-00092 25,845
35   STATE ST - Entrada 033-102-004 MST97-00357 8,508
125   STATE ST 033-075-012 MST2009-00119 14,691
518   STATE ST 037-173-046 MST2005-00477 1,487
3880   STATE ST 057-240-046 MST2006-00185 733
920   SUMMIT RD - Montecito CC 015-211-009 MST2005-00831 7,771
101 E VICTORIA ST 029-071-013 MST2006-00758 4,703
520 E YANONALI 017-113-016 MST2009-00011 180

0 67,251 6,000 57,105 11,549 0
Prior-Approved Total: 141,905 S.F.

Attachment 3, Exhibit D Grand Total 215,659 S.F.

Prior-Pending Net New Square Feet

Prior-Approved Net New Square Feet



ATTACHMENT 3, EXHIBIT E 

Typical Process for Nonresidential Projects by Size of Project1 
Project Size** Dev. Plan 

Required 
Design 
Review 

SHO or PC Notes Change in 
Current 

Process** 
1. 1,000 s.f. or less No Yes Only if other land 

use permit is 
needed 

• SHO for modifications, mixed use with 4 or less condos. 
• PC if mixed use with 5 or more condos or CUP.   

No 

2. 1,000 – 3,000 s.f. Yes Yes SHO • Design Review if no other land use permit is needed. 
• SHO if other land use permit is needed. 
• PC if mixed use with 5 or more condos or CUP. 

No 

3. 3,000 s.f. or more Yes Yes PC  
 

No 

4. Demo/Replace Same or 
Less 

No Yes Only if other land 
use permit is 

needed 

• SHO for modifications, mixed use with 4 or less condos. 
• PC if mixed use with 5 or more condos or CUP. 

No 

5. TEDR 1,000 s.f. or less 
 

No Yes Only if other land 
use permit is 

needed 

• When not combined with other square footage 
allocations.  Project review is based on total size of the 
addition. 

• SHO for modifications, mixed use with 4 or less condos. 
• PC if mixed use with 5 or more condos or CUP. 

Yes** 

6. TEDRs 1,000 s.f. or 
greater 

 

Yes Yes PC • Development Plan required for sending and receiving 
site. 

No 

7. Hotel Room for Room 
Replacement on site 

 

No Yes Only if other land 
use permit is 

needed 

• Any hotel expansion in addition to the rooms would 
require review based on project size. 

No 

8. Hotel Room for Room 
Replacement off site 
(TEDR) 

Yes Yes PC • Development Plan required for sending and receiving 
site. 

No 

9. Regional Public Utility 
Facilities Greater than 
3,000 s.f. 

Yes Yes PC • For structures 3,000 s.f. or greater. 
• If less than 3,000 s.f., Development Plan could be 

granted by other decision making body depending if no 
other land use permits needed (e.g. modifications or 
CUP) 

Yes** 

 

                                                             
1 This is a typical process when adding new nonresidential square feet.  Projects located in the Coastal Zone or zones that require a Development Plan by the Planning Commission or Planning 
Commission for any other reason specified in the Municipal Code could require reviews at the Planning Commission level.   



mamartinez
Typewritten Text
ATTACHMENT 4

mamartinez
Typewritten Text





mamartinez
Typewritten Text
ATTACHMENT 5







Agenda Item No.  1 
 

File Code No. 540.13 
 

 

 

CITY OF SANTA BARBARA 
 

COUNCIL AGENDA REPORT 
 
 

 
AGENDA DATE: January 15, 2013 
 
TO: Mayor and Councilmembers 
 
FROM: Engineering Division, Public Works Department 
 
SUBJECT: Contract For Preliminary Design Services For Aeration Basin System 

Improvements, Phase 2 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION:   
 
That Council authorize the Public Works Director to execute a contract, in a form 
approved by the City Attorney, with Brown and Caldwell in the amount of $259,215 for 
preliminary design services for the Aeration Basin System Improvements Project, Phase 
2, and authorize the Public Works Director to approve expenditures of up to $25,921 for 
extra services of Brown and Caldwell that may result from necessary changes in the 
scope of work. 
 
DISCUSSION: 
 
BACKGROUND 
 
On June 29, 2010, Council awarded a contract to Brown and Caldwell (B&C) to prepare 
an Assessment Report to evaluate and develop recommendations to improve the 
secondary treatment process at the El Estero Wastewater Treatment Plant (El Estero). 
B&C, working with staff, evaluated several alternative operational approaches for 
improving the secondary treatment process. This review resulted in B&C’s and staff’s 
recommendation to pursue the Aeration System Improvement Project (Project).  
 
On October 11, 2011, Council awarded a contract to B&C to prepare a Preliminary 
Design Report (PDR) for the Project. Since the Project will change El Estero’s existing 
secondary treatment operating strategy from a non-nitrifying system to a 
nitrification/denitrification system, a PDR was needed to thoroughly evaluate and define 
the recommended improvements and to develop design criteria to ensure that there is a 
clear project definition for the final design. This operational change will improve and 
stabilize the secondary effluent quality and reduce the use of potable water in the 
production of recycled water, which will improve the overall treatment process at El 
Estero.  



Council Agenda Report 
Contract For Preliminary Design Services For Aeration Basin System Improvements, 
Phase 2 
January 15, 2013 
Page 2 
 

 

 
 
PROJECT DESCRIPTION 
 
During B&C's work on the PDR, hydraulic limitations were identified that inhibit the 
denitrification process. B&C and staff recommend replacing the existing gravity flow 
secondary sludge withdrawal system with a pumped secondary sludge withdrawal 
system.  Additionally, the flow into the secondary clarifiers is not equally split, which 
affects these clarifiers’ performance and resulting overall treatment process effluent 
quality. The scope of work will revise the secondary clarifiers’ inlet structure to provide 
equal flow splitting into these clarifiers. 
 
The proposed improvements will address El Estero’s longstanding issues with highly 
variable secondary effluent quality, operational inflexibility and energy efficiency, while 
not reducing its current wastewater treatment capacity of 11 million gallons per day. The 
nitrification/denitrification process will produce a more stable secondary effluent, create 
higher quality process water for subsequent production of recycled water, and will yield 
a higher quality of treated effluent discharge into the Pacific Ocean.  
 
Given the complexity of the secondary treatment process, a PDR for the Phase 2 
improvements is now needed for this secondary sludge pumping and secondary clarifier 
flow splitting design work. The previously completed B&C Assessment Report, along 
with the final PDR for both Phases 1 and 2 will be used as the basis for final design 
work. A new competitive Request for Proposal process is planned to be used to select a 
separate engineering design firm for final design services for the Aeration Basin System 
Improvements. 
 
DESIGN PHASE CONSULTANT ENGINEERING SERVICES 
 
Staff recommends that Council authorize the Public Works Director to execute a 
contract with B&C in the total amount of $285,136, to prepare a PDR for the Phase 2 
Project. B&C was selected through a competitive process for the Assessment Report 
work effort and is on the City’s Pre-qualified Engineering Services List. B&C has 
successfully completed similar work efforts for El Estero and other wastewater 
treatment plants. 
 



Council Agenda Report 
Contract For Preliminary Design Services For Aeration Basin System Improvements, 
Phase 2 
January 15, 2013 
Page 3 
 

 

 
FUNDING 
 
The following summarizes all estimated total Project costs: 
 

ESTIMATED TOTAL PROJECT COST 
 
Assessment Report (by Contract) $284,621 
Project Administration (by Staff) $38,000 

 Subtotal $322,621 
Preliminary Design Phase 1 (by Contract)  $398,886 
Preliminary Design Phase 2 (by Contract) $285,136 
Project Administration (by Staff) $49,815 

 Subtotal $733,837 
Estimated Cost for Final Design and Construction $18,500,000 

Subtotal $18,500,000 
TOTAL PROJECT COST $19,556,458 

 
There are sufficient funds in the Wastewater Capital Fund to cover this professional 
services contract work. Currently, staff is pursuing several options to fund construction, 
including a low interest Clean Water State Revolving Fund loan and bonds.  
 
This item was presented to the City’s Water Commission at their meeting on December 
10, 2012. The Water Commissioners voted 4-0-0 in favor of staff’s recommendation.  
 
SUSTAINABILITY IMPACT: 
 
Nitrification/Denitrification will improve water quality for both recycled water production 
and treated effluent discharge into the Pacific Ocean. 
 
PREPARED BY: Joshua Haggmark, Principal Civil Engineer/LA/sk 
 
SUBMITTED BY: Christine F. Andersen, Public Works Director 
 
APPROVED BY: City Administrator’s Office 
 
 



Agenda Item No.  2 

File Code No.  170.04 
 

 

 

CITY OF SANTA BARBARA 
 
 COUNCIL AGENDA REPORT 

 
 

AGENDA DATE: January 15, 2013 
 
TO: Mayor and Councilmembers 
 
FROM: Information Systems Division, Administrative Services Department 
 
SUBJECT: Renewal Of Maintenance And Support For Advanced Utility Systems 

Software 
 
RECOMMENDATION:  
 
That Council approve a renewal of the technical support and maintenance agreement 
with Advanced Utility Systems Software for the utility billing system software for five 
years in an annual amount not to exceed $49,621 in the first year (Fiscal Year 2013) 
and increasing by no more than 5% per year in years two through five. 
 
DISCUSSION: 
 
The utility billing software is used by the Finance Department to bill and collect revenue 
for City water, wastewater, and solid waste services. Annually, maintenance and 
support for the software is purchased in order to receive needed bug fixes, 
enhancements, and technical support. 
 
BUDGET/FINANCIAL INFORMATION: 
 
In 2008, Council approved the software implementation contract, authorizing the 
payment of the maintenance and support fees for five years.  Approval for the next five 
years of maintenance and technical support services is needed at this time. The total 
amount is budgeted in the Solid Waste, Water and Wastewater Funds. 
 
SUSTAINABILITY IMPACT:   
 
The utility billing software provides access for City utility customers to view information 
about their billing and water usage and to pay their bills via the Internet.  Therefore, the 
number of utility customers’ trips to City offices should be reduced. 
 
PREPARED BY: Rob Badger, Information Systems Supervisor 
 
SUBMITTED BY: Marcelo López, Assistant City Administrator 
  
APPROVED BY:  City Administrator's Office 



Agenda Item No.  3 
File Code No.  570.05 

 

 

 

CITY OF SANTA BARBARA 
 
 COUNCIL AGENDA REPORT 

 
 

AGENDA DATE: January 15, 2013 
 
TO: Mayor and Councilmembers 
 
FROM: Recreation Division, Parks and Recreation Department 
 
SUBJECT: Parks and Recreation Community (PARC) Foundation Contributions 
 
RECOMMENDATION:  That Council:   
 
A. Accept a contribution from the Parks and Recreation Community (PARC) 

Foundation in the amount of $48,868 for Parks and Recreation Department 
programs; 
 

B. Increase Fiscal Year 2013 General Fund appropriations and estimated revenues 
for the Parks and Recreation Department in the amount of $4,368; and 
 

C. Increase Fiscal Year 2013 Miscellaneous Grants Fund appropriations and 
estimated revenues for the Parks and Recreation Department in the amount of 
$44,500. 

 
DISCUSSION: 
 
The Parks and Recreation Department in collaboration with the PARC Foundation was the 
recipient of various donations and grants totaling $48,868, which have been held in 
designated accounts belonging to the PARC Foundation.  These funds support various 
programs of the City’s Parks and Recreation Department.  The $48,868 contribution from 
the PARC Foundation is being appropriated to the Parks and Recreation Department 
General Fund and Miscellaneous Grants Fund budgets for Fiscal Year 2013 to covers 
costs related to the following programs.  
 
Santa Barbara Health Fair and Family Fun Day  
Hosted at Bohnett Park on September 22, 2012, this event targeted low-income and 
underserved Westside neighborhood residents and provided information on health, 
wellness, and recreation resources for children, women, men, and families. Of the $17,500 
in total donations raised for the event, $4,368 was spent out of the City’s General Fund 
providing event supplies, lunch for over 50 volunteers, and lunch and raffle prizes to over 
700 attending community participants. This appropriation will reimburse the Department’s 
General Fund expense. 
 



Council Agenda Report 
Parks and Recreation Community Foundation Contributions  
January 15, 2013 
Page 2 

 

The donations were provided by Santa Barbara Bank & Trust, Hutton Parker Foundation, 
Santa Barbara Foundation, Southern California Gas, PARC Foundation, United Way of 
Santa Barbara County, Cottage Health System, Santa Barbara Rotary, Westside Thrive, 
Just Communities, Santa Barbara County Fire, Santa Barbara City Fire, Santa Barbara 
City Police Department, and Santa Barbara County 1st District Office. 
  
Thrive Women’s Outreach Program  
This offshoot program of the Westside Thrive Foundation focuses on helping low income 
women who have difficulty with the English language and often need help in cases of 
domestic violence or sexual harassment. The program will establish a women’s group at 
the Westside Neighborhood Center to share information and identify resources to help 
address and resolve these issues. The $2,500 donation from Thrive will provide a program 
coordinator to facilitate a weekly meeting and identify resources of assistance to women 
and their families. 
 
Orfalea Feed Your Family Right Culinary Program  
This pilot project will provide culinary classes at the Westside Neighborhood Center 
kitchen with the goal of teaching families how to cook healthy meals within a limited budget 
and food resources. Parents and children will attend the program together to learn about 
fresh, wholesome foods and ways to prepare them. The $41,000 grant from Orfalea will 
provide staff salaries, kitchen equipment, and supplies.  
 
VITA/TCE Tax Program  
The IRS Volunteer Income Tax Assistance (VITA) and Tax Counseling for the Elderly 
(TCE) programs offer free tax help to residents who make $50,000 or less and need 
assistance preparing their tax returns. Priority is given to residents 60 years or older who 
have tax questions and issues unique to seniors. The $1,000 donation from United Way of 
Santa Barbara County will facilitate these programs being offered at City neighborhood 
centers and provide program supervision, staffing, and computer cabling for tax 
preparation purposes.   
 
The Parks and Recreation Department appreciates the grants and donations that support 
these programs and the PARC Foundation for accepting and distributing funds to City 
programs.  
 
BUDGET/FINANCIAL INFORMATION: 
 
Contributions from the PARC Foundation in the amount of $48,868 will provide funds to 
the Recreation Division in the General and Miscellaneous Grants funds to support event 
and program expenses. 
 
PREPARED BY: Mark Alvarado, Neighborhood and Outreach Services Senior  
 Supervisor 
 
SUBMITTED BY: Nancy L. Rapp, Parks and Recreation Director  



Council Agenda Report 
Parks and Recreation Community Foundation Contributions  
January 15, 2013 
Page 3 

 

 
APPROVED BY:  City Administrator's Office 



Agenda Item No. 4 
 

File Code No.  540.10 
 

 

 

CITY OF SANTA BARBARA 
 

COUNCIL AGENDA REPORT 
 
 

 
AGENDA DATE: January 15, 2013 
 
TO: Mayor and Councilmembers 
 
FROM: Water Resources Division, Public Works Department  
 
SUBJECT: Approval Of Emergency Purchase Order For Cater Water Treatment 

Plant Replacement Flocculation Variable Frequency Drives 
 
RECOMMENDATION:   
 
That Council approve an emergency purchase order to Steven Engineering in the 
amount of $26,266 to replace two Flocculation Variable Frequency Drives at the Cater 
Water Treatment Plant. 
 
DISCUSSION: 
 
The Water Resources Division is requesting retroactive approval of an emergency 
purchase order to Steven Engineering in the amount of $26,266. The General Services 
Manager issued emergency Purchase Order Number 77,965 on December 20, 2012, 
for staff to replace two failed flocculation Variable Frequency Drives (VFDs) at the Cater 
Water Treatment Plant (Cater).  
 
Cater treats the drinking water for the City of Santa Barbara, and the Montecito and 
Carpinteria Valley Water Districts. An essential part of the treatment process is 
flocculation, which entails adding a coagulant to the water which is then mechanically 
stirred to cause fine suspended particles to flock together, creating larger particles that 
are easily removed during the filtration process. The flocculation process requires VFDs 
to mechanically stir the water. 
 
Cater has two flocculation basins.  Each has a primary and secondary chamber 
equipped with two VFDs, for a total of four flocculation VFDs for each flocculation basin. 
One of the flocculation VFDs had failed and, because VFD replacement parts are 
obsolete, staff was in the process of seeking approval for a sole source contract with 
Steven Engineering for the procurement of a replacement VFD. However, on December 
20, 2012, a flocculation VFD in the other basin also failed.  Considering that flocculation 
is an essential part of the treatment process, and the long lead time for replacement 
VFDs, staff worked with the General Purchasing Manager on the issuance of an 
emergency Purchase Order to Steven Engineering for $26,266 for the replacement of 
the two failed flocculation VFDs.   



Council Agenda Report 
Approval Of Emergency Purchase Order For Cater Water Treatment Plant Replacement 
Flocculation Variable Frequency Drives 
January 15, 2013 
Page 2 

 

 
Steven Engineering’s quoted amount of $26,266 includes the control panel housing, 
VFDs and the associated wiring to match the current VFD configuration, flocculation 
controls, and SCADA communications. The estimated delivery date of the equipment is 
February 5, 2013.  The specified VFDs and enclosures are Schneider Electric/Square 
D, which are included on the Water Resources Standard Equipment List that was 
approved by Council on March 8, 2011.  
 
BUDGET/FINANCIAL INFORMATION: 
 
There are sufficient funds in the Water Fund to cover the cost of this Emergency 
Purchase Order.  
 
PREPARED BY: Cathy Taylor, Water System Manager/JW/mh 
 
SUBMITTED BY: Christine F. Andersen, Public Works Director 
 
APPROVED BY: City Administrator’s Office 
 
 



Agenda Item No.  6 
File Code No.  620.06 

 

 

 

CITY OF SANTA BARBARA 
 
 COUNCIL AGENDA REPORT 

 
 
 

AGENDA DATE: January 15, 2013 
 
TO: Mayor and Councilmembers 
 
FROM: Administration, Housing and Human Services Division, Community 
 Development Department 
 
SUBJECT: Loan Modification Request on Property Located at 4006, 4007 and 
 4021 Via Lucero Street (“El Patio”) 
 
 
RECOMMENDATIONS:  That Council: 
  
A. Approve a Restatement of the 1994 Loan Agreement Funded with 

Redevelopment Agency Housing Set-aside and Socioeconomic Mitigation 
Program (SEMP) Funds; 
 

B. Approve a Restatement of the Deed of Trust to secure the Restated Loan; 
 

C. Approve a New Affordable Housing Covenant with an Extended Term of an 
Additional 27 Years; and 
 

D. Authorize the Community Development Director to Execute Such Agreements 
and Related Documents, Subject to Approval as to Form by the City Attorney, as 
Necessary. 

 
DISCUSSION: 

Background:  

In 1994, the Redevelopment Agency (RDA) using housing set-aside funds and the City 
using Socioeconomic Mitigation Program (SEMP) funds provided El Patio Community 
Housing Partners (“Borrower”) a development loan for the construction of 113 rental 
housing units (“City Loan”) in the original amount of $3,350,000 with a simple interest 
rate of 4.5%. Repayment of the City Loan was based on the “residual receipts” 
calculation method.  The City Loan and the City’s Affordable Covenant (“Covenant”) 
have concurrent 30-year terms.   

In 1996, additional financing was secured and the City Loan was made subordinate to a 
land acquisition loan ($2,075,000), a construction loan ($3,500,000) and a long-term 



Council Agenda Report 
Loan Modification Request on Property Located at 4006, 4007 and 4021 Via Lucero 
Street (“El Patio”) 
January 15, 2013 
Page 2 

 

loan in the amount of $795,000. At that time, a Tax Credit Regulatory Agreement 
(TCRA) was also recorded. 

Both the City’s Covenant and the TCRA required that the 113 rental units be maintained 
as affordable rental dwelling units for low-income households. The TCRA regulatory 
agreement, however, had a 55-year affordability term, expiring in 2051, and the City’s 
Affordable Covenant had a 30-year term expiring in  2024.  

The City Loan contains typical “residual receipt” loan repayments terms.  Repayment is 
determined annually based upon the project’s previous twelve-month financial 
statements.  Monthly payments to the City are determined based upon the amount of 
positive cash flow experienced by the project in the prior twelve-month period (if there is 
no positive cash flow then no payments are made).  Since calendar year 1998, 
payments to the City from the Borrower have averaged approximately $10,000/month.  
These payments have not been sufficient to pay the interest accruing at 4.5% and, 
therefore, the principal balance due has been increasing.  The current principal balance 
of the City Loan is approximately $5 million. Under the existing Loan terms, the principal 
balance will continue to increase and in 2024, the principal balance plus all accrued 
interest will be due and payable in full.  

Current Modification Request:  

The Borrower has requested to change the terms of the City Loan to a fully amortized 
loan structure with fixed payments made monthly over 37.5 years at a lower interest 
rate of 3%.   The estimated monthly payment would be $18,500.  The loan would be 
paid in full on July 1, 2050.    
The current principal balance of the City Loan is approximately $5 million ($3,350,000 
plus accrued interest of $1,650,000).  The City will earn additional interest income of 
approximately $1.6 million over the remaining life of the existing City Loan. By 
converting the existing loan from 4.5% simple interest to the requested 3% amortized 
interest and extending the term, the total interest income of the City loan would be 
$4,950,000 ($1,650,000 plus $3,250,000). If modified, however, the City will receive 
increased fixed monthly payments.  

Loan Security 

The original City Loan is secured by a deed of trust, which is subordinate only to a loan 
in the amount of $605,000 held by the California Community Reinvestment Corporation 
(“CCRC”). The CCRC loan is fully amortized with a 3.9% interest rate that will be paid in 
full by 2026. The City’s risk position has improved over time. Originally, the City Loan 
was subordinate to $6,370,000 in debt.   

The modified City Loan will remain in second position with an estimated loan-to-value 
(“LTV”) of 33% based on a very conservative property valuation of $15 million.  The City 
Loan, together with the CCRC loan, result in a combined LTV of 37%.  Also, as both the 
City Loan and the CCRC loan are paid down, the City’s security will increase.    



Council Agenda Report 
Loan Modification Request on Property Located at 4006, 4007 and 4021 Via Lucero 
Street (“El Patio”) 
January 15, 2013 
Page 3 

 

Title reports covering the property show no defects to title.  At the close of this 
transaction, First American Title Company will issue its lender’s policy insuring the City 
against a defect  in the amount of the modified City Loan (approximately $5 million).    

Long-term Affordability 

Along with the modified City Loan, the Borrower has agreed to record a new City 
Affordable Covenant (“New Covenant”) with a term, concurrent with the City Loan, of 38 
years to expire on January 1, 2051.  The New Covenant will provide the City additional 
assurance that all of the 113 rental units remain affordable for low-income senior and 
family households during the term of the City Loan. 

The El Patio project is extremely well maintained and has always been in full compliance 
with the City’s affordability and reporting requirements.   
 
BUDGET/FINANCIAL INFORMATION: 

If the Council declines to approve the loan modification as requested, the borrower will 
seek new financing from a private lender and will pay-off the outstanding balance of the 
City Loan totaling approximately $5 million. If, alternatively, the Council approves the 
loan modification as requested, the City will receive fixed monthly payments secured by 
a deed of trust on the property in the approximate amount of $18,000.  The City will 
earn additional interest income in the amount of $1,700,000 ($4,950,000 minus 
$3,250,000). Additionally, the City will have the opportunity to extend the  Affordable 
Covenant 27 additional years.  
Staff is recommending the loan modification option because it provides increased fixed 
monthly payments to the City over the term of the Loan and an extended Affordable 
Covenant.  With the end of the Redevelopment Agency, it is important that long term, 
stable, funding sources that generate funds to pay for on-going monitoring and 
enforcement of the City’s affordable housing program, be maintained. 

Finance Committee Recommendation: 

On January 8, 2013, Council’s Finance Committee reviewed and approved the 
recommendations of this report and forwarded them to the full Council with a 
recommendation for approval. 
 
PREPARED BY: Sue Gray, Community Development Business Manager/ DR/DR 
 
SUBMITTED BY: Paul Casey, Assistant City Administrator 
 
APPROVED BY:  City Administrator's Office 
 



Agenda Item No.  7 
 

File Code No.  540.08 
 

 

 

CITY OF SANTA BARBARA 
 
 COUNCIL AGENDA REPORT 

 
 
 

AGENDA DATE: January 15, 2013 
 
TO: Mayor and Councilmembers 
 
FROM: Water Resources Division, Public Works Department 
 
SUBJECT: Annual Water Supply Management Report 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
That Council approve and adopt the City of Santa Barbara Water Supply Management 
Report for the 2012 water year, finding that groundwater resources are in long-term 
balance in accordance with the conjunctive management element of the City’s Long-Term 
Water Supply Plan.  
 
DISCUSSION: 
 
The Water Supply Management Report (WSMR) is an annual report summarizing 
activities of the past water year (October 1, 2011 through September 30, 2012).  The 
report fulfills a mitigation requirement of the Coastal Branch of the State Water Project 
to manage water supplies to prevent long-term overdraft of local groundwater.  City staff 
also uses the report to inform Council and the public about recent activities and current 
water supply conditions.  Key issues of the report are summarized below. 

 
• Lake Cachuma ended the year at 77 percent of capacity.  Remaining 2012 

entitlement water has been preserved in the City’s account as carryover water for 
future use.  As the City’s largest water supply source, Lake Cachuma is the most 
important indicator of the City’s water supply status.  The current level of storage 
indicates there is no immediate concern about local water shortage, but our water 
supply is always managed with the idea that any year may be the first year of a 
major drought. 
 

• The 2012 water year was the first complete year under the City’s updated Long-
Term Water Supply Plan (LTWSP).  An addendum to the City’s 2010 Urban Water 
Management Plan (UWMP) was submitted to the State Department of Water 
Resources in response to a request for further information.  The UWMP was 
subsequently determined to have addressed the required elements, thereby 
preserving the City’s eligibility for State grants and loans. 
 



Council Agenda Report 
Annual Water Supply Management Report 
January 15, 2013 
Page 2 

 

• Groundwater resources are in balance and long-term groundwater production does 
not exceed perennial basin yield. 

 
• Siltation related to the 2007 Zaca Fire resulted in significant reduction in storage 

capacity at Gibraltar Reservoir and continues to cause increased water treatment 
costs.  The reduced storage volume is the impetus for our work on initiating the 
“Pass Through” option under the 1989 Upper Santa Ynez River Operations 
Agreement (also known as the “Pass Through Agreement”). 

 
• A major ruling by the State Water Resources Control Board (SWRCB) on water 

rights for the Cachuma Project is still pending.  At issue is how water should be 
managed to balance the needs for water supply while protecting fish.  The updated 
Final Environmental Impact Report has been completed and was officially entered in 
the record following a hearing in March 2012.  We have been told that a draft water 
rights order is being prepared for consideration in the year 2013. 
 

• In accordance with the LTWSP, the Water Conservation Program is operated to 
minimize the use of potable water supplies, meet the requirements of the California 
Urban Water Conservation Council Best Management Practices, and achieve 
compliance with the State’s “20% X 2020” per capita water use reductions.  
Conservation measures are evaluated for cost effectiveness based on avoided cost 
of additional water supplies.  The popular Smart Landscape Rebate Program has 
had 404 applicants since its inception, with 205 having received rebates so far. 
Implementation of a comprehensive water conservation marketing plan is underway. 
New program elements this year include a free mulch pilot program, and workshops 
on water wise landscaping and graywater systems with partner organizations. 
 

• Demand for the year was 14,096 acre-feet (AF), with a per capita water use of 128 
gallons per person per day.  These values are somewhat above our targets but are 
not of concern, since they reflect a year with about 40 percent less local rainfall than 
average, with a corresponding higher irrigation demand. 

 
In summary, water supplies continue to be sufficient to meet the goals of the City’s 
updated LTWSP. 
 
The draft WSMR has been made available for public review and comment.  The Water 
Commission is scheduled to review the report on January 14, 2013.  Council will be 
briefed at the time of the report on any input from the Water Commission or the public.   
 
ATTACHMENT(S): 2012 Draft Water Supply Management Report 
 
PREPARED BY: Rebecca Bjork, Water Resources Manager/BF/mh 
 
SUBMITTED BY: Christine F. Andersen, Public Works Director 
 
APPROVED BY: City Administrator’s Office 



 Page 1, 2011-2012 Water Supply Management Report – Final Draft 

City of Santa Barbara 
   Water Supply Management Report 
   2012 Water Year (October 1, 2011 – September 30, 2012) 
 
   Water Resources Division, Public Works Department 
   December 2012 
 
 
 
INTRODUCTION 
 
The City of Santa Barbara operates the water utility to provide water for its citizens, certain 
out-of-City areas, and visitors.  Santa Barbara is an arid area, so providing an adequate 
water supply requires careful management of water resources.  The City has a diverse 
water supply including local reservoirs (Lake Cachuma and Gibraltar Reservoir), 
groundwater, State Water, desalination, and recycled water.  The City also considers water 
conservation an important tool for balancing water supply and demand.  The City's current 
Long-Term Water Supply Plan (LTWSP) was adopted by City Council on June 14, 2011.  
 
This annual report summarizes the following information: 
 

 The status of water supplies at the end of the water year (September 30, 2012)  
 Water conservation and demand 
 Drought outlook 
 Major capital projects that affect the City’s ability to provide safe clean water  
 Significant issues that affect the security and reliability of the City’s water supplies 

 
Appendix A provides supplemental detail.  Additional information about the City's water 
supply can be found on-line at:  www.SantaBarbaraCA.gov/water 
 
 
WATER SUPPLIES 
 
The City has developed five different 
water supplies: local surface water; 
local groundwater (which includes 
water that seeps into Mission Tunnel); 
State Water; desalinated seawater; 
and recycled water.  Typically, most of 
the City’s demand is met by local 
surface water reservoirs and recycled 
water, augmented as necessary by 
local groundwater and State Water.  
The City’s desalination facility is 
currently off-line. 
 
The City’s local surface water comes 
from Gibraltar Reservoir and Lake 

D  R  A  F  T 

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

70

80

2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012

Figure 1.  10‐Year Rainfall History at Gibraltar (inches/year)

Long -Term
Average:

28.42"

ATTACHMENT 

1



Page 2, 2011-2012 Water Supply Management Report – Final Draft 

Cachuma, both of which are located in the upper Santa Ynez River watershed.  The inflow 
to these reservoirs is rainwater, so rainfall data for Gibraltar Reservoir is important for 
water supply management purposes.  Figure 1 shows rainfall for the past ten years as 
compared to the 53-year average.  Additional historic  information is included in Appendix 
A.  Runoff generated by average rainfall is generally enough to fill Gibraltar; however, it 
typically takes above-average rainfall to produce any significant inflow to Cachuma.  
Rainfall in the Santa Ynez River watershed during 2012, as measured at Gibraltar, was 
48% below average, resulting in very little inflow to Lake Cachuma.  To enhance rainfall, 
the City participates in the cloud seeding program administered by the County of Santa 
Barbara.  However, the program has been limited in recent years due to budget 
considerations and concern about potential erosion of burn areas. 
 
Table1, below, summarizes the status of the City’s various water supplies at year-end. 
 

Table 1.  End of Year Status of City Water Supplies* 
Lake 
Cachuma 

Total Capacity:   186,636 AF  (2008 survey for 750’ elevation) 
End of Year Storage:   142,970 AF 
Percent of Total Capacity:       77% 
The City’s share of the Cachuma Project’s normal annual entitlement is 8,277 AF.  
Actual use was 8,935 AF, reflecting some use of carryover water as well as entitlement.  
Consistent with the LTWSP, the City purchased 267 AF of relatively low cost water 
from Carpinteria Valley Water District in preparation for potential continuing dry 
weather.  Remaining 2012 entitlement has been carried over to the current year.   

Gibraltar 
Reservoir 

Total Capacity:   5,251 AF  (2010 survey) 
End of Year Storage:   2,508 AF 
Percent of Total Capacity:       48% 
Gibraltar Reservoir typically fills and spills two out of every three years.  Deliveries over 
the past ten years have averaged 2,858 AFY.  Deliveries in 2012 were 2,343 AF. 

Mission 
Tunnel 

Groundwater that seeps into Mission Tunnel is an important part of the City’s water 
supply, providing 987 AF in 2012, about 14% below the long-term average. 

Groundwater Groundwater levels remain high in the downtown storage basin, since pumping has 
been less than the annual recharge rate during the past decade.  Levels in the outer 
State Street area have been lower than normal due to additional use of groundwater to 
meet water quality requirements.  Four of nine production wells are currently available 
for use.  The City used 1,070 AF of groundwater during 2012. 

State Water 
Project 
(SWP) 

The City has a 3,000 AF “Table A” allotment, plus 300 AF drought buffer.  The Coastal 
Branch and Santa Ynez Extension of the SWP are in place to deliver the City’s SWP 
water into Lake Cachuma, subject to availability of water supplies. The City used 625 
AF of State Water in 2012, all of it exchanged with Sana Ynez River Water 
Conservation District, Improvement District No. 1 pursuant to our obligation under the 
Exchange Agreement.   

Desalination The desalination plant remains in long-term storage mode and no water was produced 
this year.  Staff projects no need for desalinated water within at least the next 5 years.   

Recycled 
Water 

The City’s recycled water system serves parks, schools, golf courses, other large 
landscaped areas, and some public restrooms.  The system provided 802 AF, or 5.7% 
of the total customer water demand, plus 299 AF of process water at El Estero 
Wastewater Treatment Plant (EEWTP).  In recent years, recycled water has included a 
significant percentage of potable water for blending to meet water quality standards and 
reduce mineral content, with 859 AF of blend water used in 2012.  Design of a 
rehabilitated tertiary filter system is underway to reduce the use of potable water for 
blending in the near term and facilitate eventual elimination of blending.  

*The Water year runs from October 1 through September 30. All data above is as of September 30, 2012 

2



Page 3, 2011-2012 Water Supply Management Report – Final Draft 

CITY WATER CONSERVATION PROGRAM 
 
In accordance with the LTWSP, the Water Conservation Program is operated to minimize 
the use of potable water supplies, meet the requirements of the California Urban Water 
Conservation Council Best Management Practices, and achieve compliance with the 
State’s 20% X 2020 per capita water use reductions.  Conservation measures are 
evaluated for cost effectiveness based on avoided cost of additional water supplies. 
Highlights of the City’s Water Conservation Program include the following activities: 
 

 Implementation of the South Coast Water Conservation Marketing Plan, including 
working with partner agencies to develop an umbrella brand for the County-wide 
water conservation program; 
 

 Smart Landscape Rebate Program:  50% rebate on  eligible, pre-approved material 
costs for landscape water efficiency (404 pre-installation inspections completed and 
205 rebates issued since program inception); 

 
 Free residential and commercial water check-ups (479 completed this year); 

 
 Smart Rebates Program administered by the California Urban Water Conservation 

Council (CUWCC), providing incentives for water efficient fixtures; 
 

 Water wise landscaping and graywater workshops with local irrigation supply stores, 
Santa Barbara Botanic Garden, and non-profit organizations;  
 

 Launch of the new free mulch pilot program; 
 

 Water education program reaching approximately 5,000 K-12th grade students per 
year; and 
 

 Outreach and targeted assistance to highest water using customers. 
 
 
 
MONITORING OF WATER SUPPLY AND DEMAND 
 
Water demand has traditionally been measured by total water system production, because 
water is produced to meet the customer demand.  This includes both potable and recycled 
water.  New State requirements for water conservation have established a “20% by 2020” 
target based on gallons per capita per day (GPCD).  Since the production numbers provide 
historical context on our demand, and per capita water use is the new mandatory metric, 
both are being tracked.  Figure 2.A illustrates the traditional historical tracking of water 
system demand.  Total system water production was 14,096 AF for 2012.  Figure 2B 
shows monthly GPCD water use values, as well as a moving 12-month GPCD average.  
Usage for 2012 was 128 GPCD.  Both values are somewhat above the projected targets, 
which is to be expected given 40% less local rainfall than average during the year and a 
corresponding increase in irrigation requirement. 
  

3



Page 4, 2011-2012 Water Supply Management Report – Final Draft 

Figure 2.A. 

 
 
 

Figure 2.B. 

4



Page 5, 2011-2012 Water Supply Management Report – Final Draft 

DROUGHT OUTLOOK 
 
Because the City depends heavily on local surface water, our water supply reliability is 
vulnerable to prolonged drought.  Lake Cachuma is our primary source of surface water and 
its storage level is the most important indicator of potential near-term drought impacts.    
Figure 3 shows a recent history of storage levels at Lake Cachuma.  The severe drought 
period of 1987-1993 is also shown for comparison to the less severe dry period of 2002 
through 2005.  Cachuma members normally begin to take voluntary reductions in deliveries 
when the reservoir storage drops below 100,000 AF as a way of stretching supplies in case 
drought continues. 
 

Figure 3. 

0

50,000

100,000

150,000

200,000

250,000

1998 1999 2000 2001 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012

Water Year

Historical Storage Volumes

1987-1993 Period

Recent History of Lake Cachuma Storage Levels (AF)
With 1987-1993 Period Shown for Comparison

Figure 3
 

 
Under the current LTWSP, the City’s water supply is planned to meet 100% of unrestricted 
customer demand in most years and no less than 85% of demand during the latter portion of 
a 6-year period of below average rainfall, which defines our “critical drought period.”  When 
rainfall is below average, there is limited inflow to Lake Cachuma and the storage level 
continues to drop.  Our management plan assumes the first year after a spill at Cachuma 
may be the first year of a 6-year critical drought period.   Figure 4 shows a projection of how 
water supply sources would be used to meet demand over such a 6-year period.  Since 
2011 was the last spill at Lake Cachuma, 2012 was Year 1 of a potential critical drought 
period, and we are now in Year 2.  The projection assumes availability of supplies consistent 
with the assumptions in the LTWSP.  Use of Cachuma carryover and increased groundwater 
pumping offset reductions in surface water availability as the drought progresses.  The figure 
shows planned extraordinary demand reductions of 9%, 11%, and 13% for the fourth, fifth, 

5



Page 6, 2011-2012 Water Supply Management Report – Final Draft 

and sixth years respectively.  This is consistent with the LTWSP’s planned reduction policy 
during a critical drought period and is an important part of cost effective drought response. 
 

Figure 4. 

0

2,000

4,000

6,000

8,000

10,000

12,000

14,000

16,000

Year 1
(2012)

Year 2
(Current
Year)

Year 3 Year 4 Year 5 Year 6

Banked Water/ 
Water Purchases

Groundwater

State Water

Cachuma Carryover

Gibraltar/Mission 

Tunnel/MWD

Cachuma

Recycled Water

6‐Year Dry Weather Water Supply Projection (AF)
Assumes Below Average Rainfall, 14,000 AFY Demand,

& Planned Demand Reductions Up to 15% During Critical Drought

Planned Demand Reductions 

 
 
 
CAPITAL PROJECTS  
 
Staff continues work on a number of projects to improve the reliability and quality of City 
water supplies:  
 
 Ortega Groundwater Treatment Plant:  A comprehensive process to identify the 

optimal treatment scheme was conducted.  Construction of the facility upgrade is 
underway and expected to be completed by June 2013 with funding from a low-interest 
State Revolving Fund (SRF) loan.  The project goal is to maintain availability of an 
important part of the City’s water supply to meet peak demands, provide back-up for 
depleted surface water supplies during drought, and provide an emergency water 
supply in the event of catastrophic supply interruptions, such as tunnel failure. 
 

 Advanced Water Treatment Project:  The project adds ozone pre-treatment facilities 
at the Cater Water Treatment Plant.  The project is currently under construction and is 
anticipated to be completed in April 2013.  A low-interest SRF loan was used to fund 
this project. The ozone project is a regional solution for the City of Santa Barbara and 
Montecito and Carpinteria Valley Water Districts to reliably comply with the federally-
mandated Stage 2 Disinfection By-product Rule for drinking water, which goes into 
effect December 2012. 

6



Page 7, 2011-2012 Water Supply Management Report – Final Draft 

 Recycled Water Treatment Plant Rehabilitation:  Design of a project to rehabilitate 
the recycled water filters is underway.  The preliminary design has been done and final 
design is expected to be completed in early 2013.  The goal of this project is a filter 
process upgrade to reduce the use of potable blend water and maintain compliance 
with wastewater discharge standards. 

 
 Corporation Yard Well Replacement:  A new potable water production well has been 

designed to replace the current well at the City’s corporation yard on Laguna Street.  
The existing well is over 35 years old and has deteriorated to the point of no longer 
being usable.  The new well is planned for construction during February 2013 and will 
preserve a significant portion of our groundwater production capacity.  

 
 
WATER SUPPLY ISSUES 
 
There are a number of significant issues related to the City’s water supplies, discussed 
briefly below.   
 
Long-Term Water Supply Plan:  The past water year was our first full year under the 
recently updated Long-Term Water Supply Plan (LTWSP).  This was the product of 
numerous technical studies and a year-long collaboration between staff and the Water 
Commission to appropriately quantify our water supplies and develop policies to guide our 
water supply management over the next twenty years. The updated plan is available to the 
public on the City’s website at the following address: 
 

http://www.santabarbaraca.gov/Resident/Water/Rates/Documents.htm 
 
The updated LTWSP was the basis for the City’s State-mandated Urban Water 
Management Plan update (UWMP).  The UWMP, including one addendum, has now been 
determined to have addressed the required elements, thereby preserving the City’s 
eligibility for State grants and loans. 
 
 
Recycled Water Demand:  In accordance with the LTWSP, recycled water use by City 
customers will be expanded by 300 AFY, for a total of approximately 1,100 AFY of 
customer demand, not including process water at EEWTP.  This year’s strategy was to 
focus on maximizing recycled water use by existing customers and adding new sites that 
are adjacent to the recycled water distribution system.  Efforts to facilitate increased 
recycled water use at the Santa Barbara Zoo, Cottage Hospital, and Samarkand 
Retirement Community were successful.  A new site, Stonecreek HOA, is also in the final 
stages of the process to connect to recycled water for irrigation. 
 
The LTWSP states that a contingency plan for eliminating the need for blending will be 
developed for implementation based on economic, regulatory or water supply 
requirements.  In accordance with this policy, the design of a rehabilitated tertiary filter 
system is underway to reduce blending requirements in the near term and facilitate 
eventual elimination of blending.  
 

7



Page 8, 2011-2012 Water Supply Management Report – Final Draft 

Cachuma Project Water Rights Hearing:  The Bureau of Reclamation (Reclamation) and 
the members of the Cachuma Project continue to await a decision on Cachuma Project 
water rights by the State Water Resources Control Board (SWRCB).  The decision will 
reflect SWRCB’s determination on a long-standing review of the Cachuma Project 
operations in terms of its effects on downstream water users and on public trust resources 
(steelhead trout).  A December 2002 settlement agreement resolved a number of issues 
among several of the participants in the hearing, and is under consideration by the 
SWRCB.  The Final EIR for the decision has been officially entered into the hearing record 
and a draft water rights order is anticipated in 2013.  The SWRCB decision is important to 
the City because it could affect the amount of water available from Lake Cachuma for 
water supply purposes.   
 
Gibraltar Pass Through Operations:  The 2007 Zaca Fire burned approximately 60% of the 
Gibraltar Reservoir watershed, which normally contributes up to 35% of the City’s water 
supply.  On top of historical siltation, the reservoir’s storage capacity has now been 
reduced by an additional 1,535 AF, leaving a storage volume of 5,250 AF.  In 1989, the 
City entered into the Upper Santa Ynez River Operations Agreement (the “Pass Through 
Agreement”) with other Santa Ynez River water agencies.  The City agreed to defer its 
planned enlargement of Gibraltar Reservoir in exchange for provisions that would allow the 
City to “pass through” a portion of its Gibraltar water to Lake Cachuma for storage and 
delivery through Cachuma Project facilities.  Due to the Zaca Fire effects, the City has 
elected to commence this phase of operations and is working with the Reclamation to 
negotiate a “Warren Act” contract, as required by federal law to allow such use of the 
Cachuma Project.  A second round of computer modeling work to assess the effects of 
Pass Through operations is almost complete and will be the basis for environmental 
review.  The Pass Through option will allow the City to stabilize its Gibraltar deliveries as 
the reservoir continues to fill with sediment.  An updated assessment of sediment 
management options is also planned, per the LTWSP.    
 
State Water Project/Delta Issues:  The Sacramento-San Joaquin Delta is a critical 
conveyance link for all water moved to the south by the State Water Project.  There is 
substantial debate about the relative importance of water supply and environmental 
benefits in regard to how the Delta is managed.  The current approach, expressed in the 
State’s Bay Delta Conservation Plan, is that these two co-equal goals need to be 
acknowledged as a part of any solution.  The City relies on State Water to a limited extent, 
but it can be an important source of water for banking as a way of increasing the reliability 
of our water supply.  Currently available banking opportunities are in groundwater basins in 
the western San Joaquin Valley. 
 
Groundwater Management Plan:  The City has relatively small groundwater storage, but it 
plays an important part in meeting demand during drought periods. It is also our only active 
potable water supply that is truly local.  The latter is important in the event of a catastrophic 
interruption of water supplies from one or both tunnels through the Santa Ynez Mountains.  
During 2012, staff commenced efforts to develop a formal Groundwater Management Plan 
to ensure that groundwater resources are managed so as to be available to contribute to 
the City’s water supply during normal years, drought periods, and emergency conditions.  
A grant application for funding under the California Groundwater Assistance Program has 
been submitted. 

8



Appendix A - Page 1, 2011-2012 Water Supply Management Report – Final Draft 

Appendix A – Supplemental Water Supply Information 
 
Groundwater Balance 
 
Project conditions of the State Water Project (SWP) require the City to use SWP water to offset 
any demonstrated groundwater basin overdraft.  Under the LTWSP, the City uses groundwater 
conjunctively with surface supplies, such that significant groundwater use only occurs when 
surface supplies are reduced.  Basins are rested following periods of heavy pumping to allow water 
levels to recover.  As summarized in Table A-1, the perennial yield exceeds current and projected 
average annual pumping and groundwater basins are in long-term balance with no overdraft 
projected.  More detailed analysis is available in the LTWSP. 

Table A-1.  Groundwater Balance 
Estimated Perennial Groundwater Yield of Two Groundwater Storage Units in Use: 1,800 AFY
Approximate Pumping by Private Pumpers: -500 AFY
Net Perennial Yield Available to the City: 1,300 AFY
Average projected City groundwater pumping under LTWSP at target supply of 
15,400 AFY: 1,083 AFY
Groundwater Production in 2011-2012: 1,070 AF

 
 
Projection of Supply Availability 
 
Table A-2 summarizes the City's water supply sources and fulfills a requirement of the project 
conditions for the SWP.  The Water Year (WY) 2012-2013 Supply Plan reflects a projected total 
demand of 14,000 AF. 

 
 

Table A-2.   Sources of Supply (AF) 
 

Source of Supply 
WY 2012

Original Supply 
Plan 

WY 2012 
Actual 

WY 2013  
Supply Plan 
(Projected) 

Gibraltar Reservoir 3,413 2,343 3,413 
Cachuma Project 7,039 8,935 7,039 
Mission Tunnel 1,100 987 1,100 
Devil's Canyon (w/ Gibraltar) 0 (w/ Gibraltar) 
Juncal Res. (300 AF from MWD) (w/ Cachuma) (w/ Cachuma) (w/ Cachuma) 
State Water Project 650 625 650 
Groundwater 999 1,070 999 
Desalination 0 0 0 
Recycled Water 800 802 800 
Net Other Supplies1 (na) -667 (na) 

Total Production: 14,000 14,096 14,000 
Total Demand: 14,000 14,096 14,000 

Percent Shortage: 0 0 0 
       1 Represents miscellaneous production sources (positive values) and water used from the distribution 

system for purposes such as transfers to adjacent water purveyors, groundwater recharge, or 
blending with recycled water (negative values). 

 

9



Appendix A - Page 2, 2011-2012 Water Supply Management Report – Final Draft 

Long-Term Rainfall Data 
 
 

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

70

80

Water Year

Annual Rainfall (inches)

Average

Rainfall at Gibraltar Reservoir by Water Year

 
 

10



Agenda Item No.  8 
 

File Code No.  540.03 
 

 

 

CITY OF SANTA BARBARA 
 
 COUNCIL AGENDA REPORT 

 
 
 

AGENDA DATE: January 15, 2013 
 
TO: Mayor and Councilmembers 
 
FROM: Water Resources Division, Public Works Department  
 
SUBJECT: Cachuma Conservation Release Board Amended Fiscal Year 2013 

Budget  
 
RECOMMENDATION:  That Council:  
 
A. Ratify the amended Fiscal Year 2013 budget for the Cachuma Conservation 

Release Board; and 
B. Appropriate $234,889 from Water Fund reserves to the Water Operating Budget.  
 
DISCUSSION: 
 
The Cachuma Conservation Release Board (CCRB) is a joint powers agency formed by 
the City of Santa Barbara, the Goleta Water District, and the Montecito Water District. 
CCRB was established to represent its members in protecting their Cachuma Project 
water rights and other related interests, including work to mitigate the effect of the 
Cachuma Project on downstream fisheries. CCRB's activities are funded by its 
members.   
 
The Cachuma Project was constructed by the United States Bureau of Reclamation 
(Reclamation) during the early 1950's to provide a reliable water supply for the South 
Coast of Santa Barbara County and a portion of the Santa Ynez Valley. CCRB works 
closely with Reclamation to address issues related to the operation of Cachuma on 
downstream interests, including water supply, water rights and fisheries. CCRB has 
been the lead agency for the preparation of a number of technical studies to support the 
protection of endangered Steelhead Trout (Steelhead) downstream of Cachuma.  The 
National Marine Fisheries Service is currently evaluating the effect on the Reservoir and 
Dam Steelhead, and CCRB is developing a number of technical studies and data to 
support the analysis of this evaluation.  At the request of the National Marine Fisheries 
Service and Reclamation, the technical work is being accelerated, which necessitates a 
budget increase to fund the additional work this fiscal year. On December 18, 2012, the 
CCRB board voted to amend the budget to include $574,582 in additional funds to pay 
for the accelerated work.  The CCRB budget must be ratified by all of the member 
agencies.   
 



Council Agenda Report 
Cachuma Conservation Release Board Amended Fiscal Year 2013 Budget  
January 15, 2013 
Page 2 

Rev. 7-29-11 Sect. 1b 

BUDGET/FINANCIAL INFORMATION: 
 
The budget adjustment will increase the City’s contribution to CCRB by $234,889. This 
amount was not anticipated and is not included in the Fiscal Year 2013 budget.  Staff 
recommends that this additional budget expense be appropriated from Water Fund 
reserves.  There are adequate reserves to cover this expense.  
 
 
PREPARED BY: Rebecca Bjork, Water Resources Manager/mh 
 
SUBMITTED BY: Christine F. Andersen, Public Works Director 
 
APPROVED BY: City Administrator’s Office 
 
 
 



Agenda Item No.  9 

File Code No.  160.03 
 

 

 

CITY OF SANTA BARBARA 
 
 COUNCIL AGENDA REPORT 

 
 
 

AGENDA DATE: January 15, 2013 
 
TO: Mayor and Councilmembers 
 
FROM: City Attorney’s Office 
 
SUBJECT:  Conference with Legal Counsel – Pending Litigation 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION:   
 
That Council hold a closed session to consider pending litigation pursuant to subsection 
(a) of section 54956.9 of the Government Code and take appropriate action as needed. 
 
The pending litigation is: 
 
Luke Brost as Trustee for the Luke Brost Living Trust, et al., v. City of Santa Barbara, 
Case No. 1342979; and  
 
Ruben Barajas and Pamela Barajas as trustees for the Ruben and Pamela Barajas 
Living Trust, v. City of Santa Barbara, Santa Barbara Superior Court Case No.1383054 
 
SCHEDULING:  Duration, 20 minutes; anytime 
 
REPORT: None anticipated 
 
SUBMITTED BY: Stephen P. Wiley, City Attorney 
 
APPROVED BY:  City Administrator's Office 
 



Agenda Item No. 10 

File Code No.  440.05 
 

 

 

CITY OF SANTA BARBARA 
 
 COUNCIL AGENDA REPORT 

 
 
 

AGENDA DATE: January 15, 2013 
 
TO: Mayor and Councilmembers 
 
FROM: City Administrator’s Office 
 
SUBJECT: Conference With Labor Negotiator 
 
RECOMMENDATION:   
 
That Council hold a closed session, per Government Code Section 54957.6, to consider 
instructions to City negotiator Kristy Schmidt, Employee Relations Manager, regarding 
negotiations with the Police Officer’s Association, Fire Management Association and the 
Firefighters Association, and regarding discussions with certain unrepresented 
managers about salaries and fringe benefits. 
 
SCHEDULING:  Duration, 30 minutes; anytime 
 
REPORT:  None anticipated 
 
PREPARED BY: Kristy Schmidt, Employee Relations Manager 
 
SUBMITTED BY: Marcelo López, Assistant City Administrator 
 
APPROVED BY:  City Administrator's Office 
 


	1.DOC
	2.DOC
	3.DOC
	4.DOC
	5.DOC
	6.DOC
	7.DOC
	8.PDF
	9.DOC
	10.PDF
	11.PDF
	12.DOC
	13.DOC
	14.DOC
	15.DOC
	16.DOC
	17.DOC
	18.PDF
	19.DOC
	20.DOC
	21.DOC
	Mayor
	Bendy White
	JANUARY 15, 2013
	AGENDA
	ORDER OF BUSINESS



